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Corporate Introduction
N R
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Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited (“Kingdee International” or “Kingdee”) was established in 1993. It is listed on the Main Board of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 0268.HK) and headquartered in Shenzhen, the PRC. Adhering to the core values of “Acting in all Conscience, with
Integrity and Righteousness”, the Company is committed to helping businesses achieve their growth targets and let the sun shine on every company through
dedicated services. It strives to provide them with the most trusted enterprise service platform.

Through persistent efforts to explore China’s Cloud enterprise service market, Kingdee has retained the largest share in the enterprise application software
sector for fast-growing enterprises for 16 consecutive years, and has grasped the biggest share in the enterprise-grade SaaS Cloud services industry for the 4
years. Kingdee is currently the only SaaS cloud service provider of Chinese enterprises selected into Gartner's global market guide, and has become the only
Chinese SaaS company winning the 2020 IDC SaaS Customer Satisfaction Award.

In addition, Kingdee's diverse Cloud services and products are the preferred choices of leading enterprises. They include “Kingdee Cloud Cosmic”
(digitalization and ecosystem platform for large enterprises), “Kingdee Cloud Galaxy” (intelligent growth service platform for medium-sized enterprises),
“Kingdee Cloud Stellar” (intelligent growth service platform for micro and small-sized enterprises), “Cloud-Hub” (intelligent Cloud office), “Guanyi Cloud”
(Cloud services for E-commerce operators), “Cargeer” (Cloud services for auto dealers) and “Wojia Cloud” (Cloud services for Property Industry). With its
strengths in management software and Cloud services, Kingdee provides services and products to more than 6.8 million enterprises, government agencies
and other organizations around the world.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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LEGAL COUNSEL
Hong Kong:

CFN Lawyers

27/F, Neich Tower

128 Gloucester Road
Wan Chai, Hong Kong

Cayman Islands:

Conyers Dill & Pearman
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
PO Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL BANKS

PRC:

China Merchants Bank

Bank of China

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Bank of Communications

Ping An Bank

Hong Kong:
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
PO Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC
Kingdee Software Park

No.2 Kejinan 12 Road

South District

Hi-Tech Industrial Park

Nanshan District

Shenzhen Guangdong Province

The PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
9/F, York House, The Landmark

15 Queen’s Road

Central

Hong Kong

COMPANY WEBSITE

www .kingdee.com
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MEHE

Year ended 31 December

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—z-2E ZT-NF —T-NF —TtF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR%TT AREFT NSO AREFTT AREFL
Revenue EEE 3,356,445 3,325,590 2,808,658 2,303,458 1,862,207
(Loss)/profit attributable to AN FJ4EZS
owners B ANERS (8B,
of the Company B (335,479) 372,580 412,106 310,004 288,230
Dividends per share BRERE - HKDAE 401,29 HKDAEE 49119 HKD& & 491,65 -
(Losses)/earnings per share &% (518) /&7
- basic -ER RVMBAE®(10.128 RMBARK1152%  RMBARM1319%5  RMBAREN.04% RMBA R 9.98%
—(iluted -1 RVMBAE®(10.128 RMBAREN.2S  RMBARM1245%  RMBAREI0.75% RMBAR9.74%
(Losses)/earnings Per Share - Basic Return on Equity
BR(ER) BF-&F BREKEE
RMB'000
AREFT Bt
8.2

2016

11.04

2017

13.19
11.52

2018 2019

(10.12)

2016

T CTFFR

1.7

2017

74

2018

2019
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBHE

Revenue
BES

RMB'000
ARETT

3395 500 3,356,445

2,808,658
2,303,458
1,862,207

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Profit/(loss) Attributable to Owners of the Company
FARREBRFTARGERT(HR)

RMB'000
ARETT

412,106 372,580

288.230 310,004

2016 2017 2018 2019

(335,479)
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Operating Profit/(loss)
BERT(HR)

RMB'000
ARBETT

420,759 453,307 423787

248,900

2016 2017

2018 2019

(415,353)

Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities

BEETDELEMBLS
RMB'000
ARETT
962,927
905,515

823,690

612,093
473,017

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
AFERFER

Year ended 31 December

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—EIBF —_ThEF ZT-N\F ZT—+tF T F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRE AREBTIT ARBTT AREFTT ARETE
Revenue ] 3,356,445 3,325,590 2,808,658 2,303,458 1,862,207
(Loss)/profit before income tax HBRET1S AT
(E518),/ &7 (382,739) 396,131 448,030 378,420 209,275
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(ER),BF (341,695) 365,798 409,270 323,612 215220
Assets
Non-current assets EREEE 4,538,665 4,178,706 4,419,040 3,268,476 3,020,595
Current assets REEE 6,183,414 4241 447 3,159,513 3,533,582 2,956,719
Total assets BEE 10,722,079 8,420,153 7,578,553 6,802,058 5,977,314
Equity and liabilities BaRaRE
Equity attributable to owners of RARE=FAA
the Company R 7,789,631 5,986,928 5,466,060 3,995,341 3,475,810
Non-controlling interests DEMEE 168,846 158,743 66,607 47,739 60,356
Total equity B 7,958,477 6,145,671 5,532,667 4,043,080 3,536,166
Non-current liabilities EREBEME 165,013 276,389 179,319 1,354,101 1518414
Current liabilities nEEE 2,598,589 1,998,093 1,866,567 1,404,877 922,734
Total liabilities BEE 2,763,602 2,274,482 2,045,886 2,758,978 2441148
Total equity and liabilities BEZREE 10,722,079 8,420,153 7,578,553 6,802,058 5,977,314
—ToTHEFH SEHEBRSGEEREARLT 7



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ES R

2020 is a year of challenges, but also a year of resurrection. The COVID-19
pandemic and trade dispute have brought many challenges to enterprises. Nevertheless,
challenges mean opportunities, and difficulties mean resurrection. Kingdee has timely
captured the opportunity of digital transformation and took the initiative to phase out the
traditional on-premise products and accelerate the transformation of subscription-based
cloud services. By helping enterprise customers to empower digital capability, discover
hidden value, as well as focusing on customer success and leading in the cloud market,
we have achieved a rapid growth of 45.6% in the cloud business.

2020 is a year for Kingdee to reach strategic breakthroughs in the Large
enterprise market. As China's first local cloud-native platform with building EBC five
capabilities as its core targets, Kingdee Cloud Cosmic has captured the window period
of localization and innovation and occupied the high ground of this strategic market.
Cosmic has been well recognized by a number of large enterprises. During the year, the
Company has signed with 367 customers with a total contract value of approximately
RMB467 million, of which newly signed customers amounted to 283, including State
Power Investment Corporation, China Merchants Group, China Tobacco Yunnan, Qingdao
Hisense, HBIS Digital, Zhejiang Communications Investment, PowerChina Real Estate
and other central enterprises and large state-owned enterprises, as well as renowned
enterprises such as Huawei, HAECO Xiamen, Kerry Logistics, DIT Group, Rongan Property,
efc.

2020 is the year for Kingdee to continuously expand its leadership in Medium
and Small enterprise market. Kingdee Cloud Galaxy maintained a robust growth
of over 31.4% yoy to RMB1,141 million in revenue. Dollar retention rate was over 86%.
Despite of technology challenges, Galaxy team spent 68 days with Huawei Marine to
replace 184 existing systems, which was a industry miracle. Galaxy has cumulatively
empowered digital capabilities for 17,200 customers, including iFlytek, Megvii, Yanjin
Shop Food, Seamild Food, Yuan Qi Sen Lin, RLX Technology and CYG Sunri. Kingdee
Cloud Stellar has been trusted by over 3,000 customers since its introduction in 2020,
with an average subscription reaching 4 to 5 times of Jingdou Cloud. Meanwhile, Kingdee
Jingdou Cloud has realized a rapid revenue growth of 62.4% yoy, aggregating over
160,000 customers and a dollar retention rate of approximately 76%.

20202 B —F - BERBAKEEN—F - FTERIE
HE  EHEETE  ROXEHREEHRE - EHI
PRECADIE - HHEEE - SRIEBMA - ERE
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFE®mE

2020 is a year of responsibilities and rewards for Kingdee. In the backdrop of
pandemic outbreak, Kingdee donated RMB10 million through China Siyuan Foundation
for Poverty Alleviation. In addition, Kingdee supported Jointown Pharmaceutical who
fought the pandemic in the frontline, to achieve a full process management on medical
materials and equipment. Kingdee has been consistently helping and supporting medium,
small and micro enterprises, which were in tough time for survival. Kingdee was selected
into the product recommendation list in over 50 provincial and municipal governments,
and participated in the SME digital empowerment special action. Kingdee also launched
the SME Smart Growth Project, implemented SME Support Preferential Policies and
committed to help small, medium and micro enterprises achieve the resumption of
work and production. In the face of the difficulties and challenges, Kingdee upheld the
philosophy of “customer-centric, hardworking as foundation” to walk alongside with
our customers, and thus receiving their heartfelt recognition. Kingdee has ranked No.1
in SaaS ERM market share for four consecutive years. Kingdee was ranked No.1 in Saas
ERP customer satisfaction in 2020 IDC Global SaaS Customer Satisfaction Survey, and
was the only Chinese SaaS company receiving the customer satisfaction award out of all
SaaS categories. In addition, we received 295 customer appreciation letters through Xu
Shaochun Wechat Personal Official Account. Behind every appreciation and recognition is
Kingdee employees’ dedication and payoff. The ordinary can make the greatest achievement
and hero comes from everyone. We will carry on with the trust and anticipation of our
customers.

Outlook

In 2021, Kingdee will continue to walk side by side with every customer, practicing
the Kingdee Philosophy of “customer-centric, hardworking as foundation, long-term
professionalism”. By leveraging the Wechat official account of Xu Shaochun, we will
advance in innovation and operation transformation, products and services, strategy and
business models and culture. We will strengthen technological leading edges and strive to
be the most reliable enterprise service platform, to bring sunshine to every enterprise.

In the next three years, we will create a new Kingdee with subscription business model,
helping the enterprise reconstruct digital competitiveness and leap forward in cloud model
with thousands of enterprises.

Acknowledgement

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to extend our sincere gratitude to all
Kingdee customers, shareholders and all investors for your confidence and support during
the special year of 2020. Meanwhile, | would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to all
Kingdee employees for keeping the heart and the conscience, and for their unwavering
innovation and hard work.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
RIGEBRE RE

Group Financial Results

In 2020, the Group continued to progress the cloud transformation strategy,
focused on the development and promotion of subscription-based cloud products
as well as the Group’s cloud services business maintained rapid growth of 45.6%
yoy, which accounted for 57.0% of the total revenue. As subscription-based
cloud services delivered strong growth, the subscription service-related contract
liabilities expanding by 95.7% yoy. Kingdee Cloud’s subscription annual recurring
revenue (ARR) amounted to approximately RMB1 billion, with an increase of 58%
yoy.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded total revenue of
approximately RMB3,356,445,000, up by approximately 0.9% when compared with
2019 (2019: RMB3,325,590,000). Revenue from Management Software business
decreased by 28.2% yoy, mainly attributable to the halt of certain management
software license products sales.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company recorded a loss of
RMB335,479,000 attributable to owners of the Company (2019: a profit of
approximately RMB372,580,000 attributable to owners of the Company). The
aforesaid decrease was mainly due to the termination of partial management
software license products and the enhancement on the research and investment on
cloud products mainly Cosmic.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, basic loss per share for loss attributable to
owners of the Company amounted to approximately RMB10.12 cents (2019: basic
garnings per share of approximately RMB11.52 cents).

Net cash inflow from operating activities of the Company was approximately
RMB473,017,000 (net cash inflow in 2019: approximately RMB962,927,000).

Group Strategy Review

Aiming to become the most trusted enterprise service platform, the Group is
striving to build a mutual benefit and win-win enterprise ecosystem for common
growth. The Group is committed to develop the Kingdee Cloud ecosystem, based
on the remarkable insights into enterprise management as well as the digital
transformation.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
FBOERRE

1

12

The Group'’s five strategic initiatives include:

- Promoting the combined strategy of “Platform + Finance & HR Application
+ Ecosystem” to strengthen the product competitiveness.

- Establishing industry’s best practice, and leading tens of millions small,
medium and micro enterprises and startups to grow in a sound way.

- Implementing the integrated service mode of sales and delivery, and
developing large enterprise market with high quality.

- Helping channel partners transform from market-oriented to service-
oriented to realise reciprocal value.

- Building successful customer-based operation system to benefit customers,
with direct access to every Kingdee employees.

Group Business Review

Kingdee received recognition from international research institutions during the
year. IDC data shows that the Company has maintained No. 1 position in the
enterprise application software for fast-growing Enterprises and the enterprise-
grade SaaS ERM (Cloud ERP). Kingdee has not only retained the largest share in
the enterprise application software for fast-growing enterprises for 16 consecutive
years, it has also maintained No.1 position in the enterprise-grade SaaS ERM
(Cloud ERP) and Financial Cloud services for 4 consecutive years. Kingdee has
become the only SaaS company in China which received the IDC 2020 SaaS CSAT
Award, ranking No. 1 in the ERP SaaS CSAT. The Company has become a Top 10
major constituent stock of Hang Seng Tech Index, which was newly established by
Hang Seng Indexes Company Limited (“Hang Seng Indexes”) and launched on 27
July 2020.

Cloud Services Business

During the Reporting Period, revenue from the cloud services business grew by
approximately 45.6% yoy from RMB1,313,595,000 in 2019 to RMB1,912,385,000,
accounting for 57.0% of the total revenue.

Kingdee Cloud Cosmic strengthened R&D, focused on self-developed
technology innovation, capturing the high-end market of large
enterprises.

Going into the post ERP era, large enterprises have laid out new requirements for
digitalization platform and industrial internet platform. Kingdee Cloud Cosmic,
as the first cloud-native platform with building EBC Top 5 capabilities as the core
targets, was able to gain attractions of many large enterprises.

Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited

1
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
FBOERRE

Kingdee Cloud Cosmic is China’s first local and innovative cloud-native platform
solution, providing complete enterprise SaaS service and PaaS service for large
enterprises, and registered total of 160 patents. These patents cover technological
innovations of cloud-native technology, application development, enterprise
management and other areas, of which one of the core patents of Kingdee Cloud
Cosmic native technology framework has received the national patent award.

Kingdee Cloud Cosmic has officially launched the V3.0 version at the end of
2020, continued to accelerate the R&D of application modules and strengthen the
technological advantages. In terms of cloud services and modules, Kingdee Cloud
Cosmic newly introduced e-commerce cloud, manufacturing cloud, industrial
loT cloud, data platform, management accounting cloud, and many more in
different fields, and launched over 70 business modules or features such as risk
control and management, product data management, equipment management,
cost management, credit management, pricing and quotation management, retail
management, store coordination and online stores. Meanwhile, Kingdee Cloud
Cosmic has conducted an important upgrade for the platform structure and has
optimized the openness of platform, including several compatible main-stream
micro service framework, the launch of distributed computing engine and the
optimization of platform structures such as enterprise model management pool.
Kingdee Cloud Cosmic has been included in the Gartner’s High-Productivity
PaaS global vendor list. As of V3.0 version, Kingdee Cloud Cosmic has released
180+ business modules and features on 30+ cloud applications. In the meantime,
the open structure and large potential of Kingdee Cloud Cosmic have driven the
prosperity of the platform ecosystem. To date, Cosmic has 430 ISV partners with
355 products available in the Cosmic Marketplace. These ISV products cover
several areas, including foreign trading system, equipment management, TMS
(transportation management service), medical quality compliance management and
control system, and public welfare project management system.

During the Reporting Period, Kingdee Cloud Cosmic recorded RMB190 million in
revenue, representing an increase of 220% yoy. In 2020, Kingdee Cloud Cosmic
has a total of 367 contracted customers, with the contracting amounting to RMB467
million, including 283 newly-signed customers, namely State Power Investment
Corporation, China Merchants Group, China Tobacco Yunnan, Hisense, HBIS
Digital, Zhejiang Communications Investment, Powerchina Real Estate and other
central enterprises and state-owned enterprises; and renowned large enterprises
such as Huawei, HAECO Xiamen and Kerry Logistics, DIT and Rongan Property.
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Kingdee Cloud Galaxy deepened the digital and intelligent
empowerment, recognized as the star product in medium enterprise
market.

Kingdee Cloud Galaxy provided cloud solutions for closed loop of enterprise value
chain, including channel Marketing Cloud, Intelligent Finance Cloud, Intelligent
Manufacturing Cloud, Smart Supply Chain Cloud, PLM R&D Cloud, Low Code
Collaborative Development Cloud and Amoeba operation. Galaxy also innovated in
remote customer engagement and marketing and upgraded onling implementation
platform, realized the quick launch of subscription products which efficiently
helped enterprises restructure digital enterprise capability, using Digital Tools and
Enabling Intelligence to accelerate transformation and upgrade of enterprises. In
the face of the pandemic challenges, Kingdee Cloud Galaxy efficiently helped small
and medium enterprises to restore production and operation. Galaxy has been
included in the 50 Provincial and Municipal Governments Recommended Products
List, also participated in the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology's
SME Digital Empowerment Special Project and launched the Smart Growth Plan
for Micro, Small and Medium Businesses. Having built ecosystem partnership with
major laaS (Infrastructure as a Service) players in China, Kingdee Cloud Galaxy
carried out strategic collaboration upgrade regarding cloud services of enterprises
and has achieved breakthroughs progressively. Galaxy has won the China Smart
Manufacturing Recommended Products of the Year (Intelligent Manufacturing
Cloud, PLM Cloud) and the Outstanding Supplier of Intelligent Management
Solutions of the Year, the CEIA Best Enterprise Management Cloud Service Award
and the Best SaaS MES Application Award.

During the Reporting Period, Kingdee Cloud Galaxy continued maintain steady
growth, with its revenue increased by over 31.4% year-on-year to RMB1.141
billion. Customer dollar retention rate was over 86%. By the end of 2020, Galaxy
accumulated over 17,200 customers. It has signed with established enterprises
such as Huawei Marine, iFlytek, Megvii, Yanjin Shop Food, Seamild Foods,
Yuan Qi Sen Lin, RLX Technology and CYG SUNRI. In the meantime, the Group
continued to transform channel partners into service partners, and migrated
existing customers to cloud. In 2020, a total of 1,793 existing customers have
upgraded to Galaxy.

Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited
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Kingdee Cloud Stellar focused on operation + management integrated
solution, building a service platform for the intelligent growth of small
and micro enterprises.

During the Reporting Period, Kingdee launched a service platform for the intelligent
growth of small and micro enterprises based on the Cosmic platform - Kingdee
Cloud Stellar. It focuses on the online operation and digital management of small
and micro enterprises, emphasizing on “new accounting & taxation, new marketing
and new business model”. It provides SaaS services such as Finance Cloud, Tax
Cloud, Purchase, Sales & Inventory Cloud, and Ordering Mall to support customer
acquisition, intelligent management and real-time decision-making of small and
micro enterprises. Since initial introduction in 2020, Stellar has been trusted
by over 3,000 customers with an average subscription price amounting to 4-5
times of Jingdou Cloud. The revenue of Kingdee Jingdou Cloud has achieved a
rapid growth of 62.4% yoy, with over 160,000 customers in aggregate and dollar
retention ratio of approximately 76%.

Multi-field cloud deployment, deep cultivation in industry best
practices.

During the Reporting Period, EAS Cloud focuses on the upgrading of financial
and tax management and control, the integration of business and finance, and
the improvement of data intelligence in the digital era so as to facilitate the Cloud
upgrade of the customers. Kingdee s-HR Cloud launched its localized version,
helping Chinese enterprises comprehensively improve information security, and
has signed with renowned enterprises in the industry such as CRRC Zhuzhou,
Hesteel Group, Sinotrans, China United Cement, Tencent Cloud, SF Express,
Dalian Metro and East Hope.

Kingdee Guanyi Cloud launched the Cosmic E-Commerce Cloud version,
Cloud-Hub timely released “Health Check-In" feature and enhanced audio/
video conferencing technology, helped customers work from home; Kingdee
Finance was awarded with Ministry of Industry and Information Technology of the
People’s Republic of China's SME Recommended Product, CB Insights Top 50
China FinTech Companies, IDC China FinTech TOP 50; Wojia Cloud has covered
165 cities in the country and signed with top 100 properties such as Lushang,
Shenzhen Science Park and Logan Estate; Cargeer continued to help new and
existing customers achieve digital upgrade and transformation. The number of
car owners of cloud service has increased by 36% yoy; Xinnong Interconnection
Technology has built the R&D of general function module on Kingdee Cloud
Cosmic platform for daily livestock management; Yundee has launched the V3.0
version and has been included in the SME Digital Empowerment Service Product
and Event Recommendation List as a digital platform recommended player.

(3)

(4)
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During the Reporting Period, Kingdee continued to plan the layout and strategically
invested in Dtwave, enhanced the platform capabilities of “business platform + data
platform”, helping the enterprises build their digital competitiveness; increased
capital on FXiaoKe and commenced further cooperation with FXiaoKe products. In
the investment and merger sector, the Company will continue to focus on the key
sector technologies and leading cloud service companies.

ERP Business

During the Reporting Period, revenue from ERP Management Software business
decreased by approximately 28.2% yoy from RMB2,011,995,000 in the same
period last year to RMB1,444,060,000.

The Group continued to deepen cloud transformation and terminated the sale of
KIS and K/3 WISE license products. License of Kingdee EAS business declined by
22.3% yoy. Kingdee Apusic passed the Jakarta EE8 certification and became one of
the two Chinese players to obtain the certification.

Investment Property Business

For the ended 31 December 2020, the Group had carrying amount of investment
properties of RMB1,650,971,000 (2019: RMB1,856,200,000). During the
Reporting Period, the Group fully used and leased available space in software
parks in Beijing, Shanghai and Shenzhen. The Group generated net rental income
of RMB73,129,000 during the period (2019: RMB73,243,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
THREFRR S

1. Major Financial Information 1.
Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded total revenue
of RMB3,356,445,000, representing a year-on-year growth of 0.9% (2019:
RMB3,325,590,000). Revenue from the Cloud Services increased by 45.6% yoy to
RMB1,912,385,000 (2019: RMB1,313,595,000). Revenue from the ERP business
amounted to RMB1,444,060,000 (2019: RMB2,011,995,000), down by 28.2%
year-on-year.

FEMERA
EXE

HE-ZT-_ZHF+_A=+—H1k ' *5H
5L T AR %3,356,445,0000T © FIEL1E
K0.9% (ZZ—NFRH : AR¥ES,325,590,000
TL) o REERBWARLLIE RS 6%E AR
#1,912,385,000c (= — NLFRIHE : AR
1,313,595,0007T) ° (EEREEFEIZEFHKA
BAREED 4440600000 (ZE—NEFERE : AR
#2,011,995,0007T) + [RLL TFE28.2% ©

2020 2019
—s=®E T %
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TRT ARET T

Cloud services business ERRIGER 1,912,385 1,313,595
— Enterprise cloud services —EERG 1,356,311 927,375
—Finance cloud services — I E R 288,766 169,873
— Industry cloud services —(TEERG 172,479 142,901
— Other cloud services —HMER 94,829 73,446

ERP business PEBREREIEB 1,444,060 2,011,995
— Sales of software and hardware products — SHE B MR E 447,626 945,631
— Software implementation services —HMHEBERE 453,067 488,476
— Software solution consulting, maintenance, —FERTTER B EBH

upgrade and other supporting services FHR R H AR AR 543,367 577,888
3,356,445 3,325,590

The above mentioned decrease in revenue in ERP business was mainly attributable
to the proactive termination of the sales of certain software license products. The
increase in revenue from cloud services business was mainly attributable to the
increase in revenue from subscription services of Kingdee Cloud Cosmic, Kingdee
Cloud Galaxy and Jingdou Cloud products.
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Gross profit

Prior to 1 January 2020, the Group recorded certain outsourcing service fees
related to ERP and Cloud implementation in “selling and marketing expenses”.
For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group reassessed the nature of the
above outsourcing services and considered that the service fees charged by the
outsource vendors are directly related to the ERP and Cloud implementation
services provided by the Group to customers and should therefore be recorded in
the “cost of sales”. Adjustment was made to reclassify the outsourcing service fees
of RMB270,370,000, which was accounted in “selling and marketing expenses” for
the year ended 31 December 2019, to “cost of sales” in order to meet the reporting
requirements of this year. These changes have been applied retroactively to IAS 8
and have no net effect on the profits for the year ended 31 December 2019 and the
financial condition as at 31 December 2019.

The impact on the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 December
2019 is as follows:

¥

“ETE-A-HZA  ARBEHER
HEEE M P ACEk 7 BEERPAIE B hE A0 B ) K 4L
SNEREE RBE-_Z-_ZF+_A=+—
BILFE - AEEEHNE T LSNERBH
HE - WRAIMERERERHE L RE B R A L
B[R = R ERPIE i IR TS B 12 A8RE
F R SHER AT - CAEH AR KR
RBEZZT-—NF+_A=+—HBLEFEN
MHEREERERIARNIIMEREERARYE
270,370,000 TEHM D EEHERAK] - U AR
FENE2HRIA - ELEFTERRER A
RIFESSRENRA  WBE-T-NF+-A
=t HLEFENNBNBEE-Z-NF+ =
A=1+—BOPBRRREFZE

HE_Z-NF+-A=+—HBIFEHEH
WK 2T

Year ended

31 December 2019
BIE_Z—hEF
+-A=+—HEE
RMB'000

ARBFT

HERANE N
EMRD

Increase of cost of sales
Decrease of gross profit
Decrease of selling and marketing expenses

SHE A HE A AR >

270,370
(270,370)
(270,370)

The Group recorded gross profit of RMB2,209,008,000 (2019 as restated:
RMB2,403,217,000), down by 8.1% yoy. The gross profit margin declined 6.5
percentage points yoy to approximately 65.8% (2019: approximately 72.3%). The
decrease of 6.5 percentage points in gross profit margin was mainly due to the
implementation of many flagship projects signed by Cosmic and the yoy increase
of outsourcing service cost and laaS cost.

Selling and marketing expenses

Selling and marketing expenses amounted to approximately RMB1,425,080,000
(2019 as restated: RMB1,374,014,000). This represented a yoy increase of 3.7%.
As a percentage of revenue, the percentage of selling and marketing expenses
increased from 41.3% in 2019 to 42.5% in 2020.
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Administrative expenses and net impairment losses on financial
assets and contract assets

During the reporting period, administrative expenses and net impairment losses
on financial assets and contract assets were RMB483,495,000 in aggregate,
representing a yoy increase of 11.2% (2019: RMB434,740,000). In terms of
revenue percentage, the percentage of administrative expenses and net impairment
losses on financial assets increased from 13.1% in 2019 to 14.4% in 2020, mainly
due to the increase of share-based compensation expenses.

Research and development expenses

During the Reporting Period, the Group continued to focus on Platform +
Finance & HR & Tax Ecosystem” and increased R&D investment in Kingdee
Cloud Cosmic. Total research and development costs were RMB882,559,000,
representing a yoy increase of 35.7% (2019: RMB650,499,000), of which, during
the Reporting Period, the R&D capitalization rate dropped to 35.6% (2019:
73.4%), the capitalized amount was RMB314,119,000, down by 34.2% yoy
(2019: RMB477,654,000). Amortisation of research and development costs was
RMB415,434,000, representing a yoy increase of 0.4% (2019: RMB413,982,000),
and the research and development costs recognised in the consolidated income
statement was RMB983,874,000 up by 67.7% yoy (2019: RMB586,827,000).

Fair value gains on investment properties

During the Reporting Period, fair value gains on investment properties was
RMB5,550,000, representing a year-on-year decrease of 86.1% (2019:
RMB39,994,000). Fair value of investment properties is determined by
management based on the valuations performed by independent professional
valuer primarily using the income approach. The relevant key assumptions include
term yields, reversionary yields and fair market rents.

Other income and gains - net
During the Reporting Period, other income and gains-net was RMB262,538,000,

representing a yoy decrease of 30.2% (2019: RMB376,157,000), mainly due to
loss from change of foreign currency exchange rate.
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Operating loss/profit

As at 31 December 2020, the Group recorded an operating loss of
RMB415,353,000 (2019: operating profit was RMB423,787,000), due to the
fact that the Group continued to promote the development and transformation
strategy of cloud business, proactively halted the sales of certain management
software license products and increased the R&D investment in cloud products
mainly Cosmic. ERP business’ operating profit decreased by 77.7% yoy to
approximately RMB112,754,000 (2019: RMB505,615,000). Cloud business’
operating loss increased by 211.1% to RMB606,786,000 (2019: operating loss
of RMB195,065,000). Investment properties operating business’ operating profit
declined by 30.5% yoy to RMB78,679,000 (2019: RMB113,237,000), due to the
decrease in fair value gains on investment properties.

Finance income - net

During the Reporting Period, the finance income — net value amounted to
RMB35,934,000. In the same period of 2019, the finance income — net value was
RMB5,370,000.

Income tax credit/expense

During the Reporting Period, the income tax credit amounted to RMB41,044,000
(2019: income tax expense amounted to RMB30,333,000), mainly due to the loss
of the Group during the Reporting Period.

Net loss/profit and basic loss/earnings per share

As at 31 December 2020, the current loss attributable to owners of the Company
was RMB335,479,000 (2019: profit of approximately RMB372,580,000). Net loss
margin was 10.0% (2019: net profit margin of 11.2%). Basic loss per share was
approximately RMB10.12 cents (2019: basic earnings per share of RMB11.52
cents).
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss amounted to RMB1,616,395,000, representing an increase of
RMB591,453,000 as compared with 31 December 2019, including the non-current
portion of RMB622,739,000 (2019: RMB428,791,000) and the current portion of
RMB993,656,000 (2019: RMB596,151,000).

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss included the following:
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UNARBEFEAEEHAAEANEREE
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2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TTT AREEFTT
Investments designated at fair value through profit BEARBEZEE AIBETN
or loss &3
Wealth management products (i) BETEER() 993,656 687,312
Unlisted equity investments (ii) FE_E T BRI & (i) 622,739 278,491
Listed stock FTRE - 59,139
1,616,395 1,024,942
Less: non-current portion W IERENE Y (622,739) (428,791)
993,656 596,151

(if)

This represented the Group’s investments in various wealth management
products issued by commercial banks and state-owned financial
institutions. These products have a term ranging from 3 months to 12
months. They have an expected annual return rate ranging from 1.35% to
4.85%. No single wealth management product investment accounted for
over 5% of the Group’s total assets. The fair values of these investments
were determined based on income approach.

The current year’s increase of the unlisted equity investments mainly
represented the Group's further investments in Facishare Co., Ltd., which
is mainly engaged in the business of social network working platform for
precise interactive marketing and enterprise collaborative management, and
the investment in #71 N SUR R A MR A 7], which is mainly engaged
in the business of data middle platform. The fair value of these investments
was determined based on market approach.
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Investments in associates BERSE
2020 2019
ok Jot 3 ZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TT ARBFT
At 1 January »—HA—H 282,649 234,403
Additions (a) HEh0(a) 127,500 110,241
Disposal BE (3,797) (26,401)
Dividend received L ) AR ) = (50)
Share of losses of associates (b) ZHEBERENEELEE(D) (3,320) (35,544)
At 31 December »+=-—RA=+—H 403,032 282,649
(a) It mainly includes the capital increase of RMB120,000,000 to the associate @ FEOEFAUBELRTEEESR
CITIC Consumer Finance Co., Ltd. BR AT AR #120,000,0008715 & -
(b)  Individually immaterial associates (b) FEEREVEFEHRE
In the opinion of the directors, none of the associates is material to the AEFBESRE  ASEHEEANEE
Group. Summarised aggregate financial information of the individually WE - FARERFZENEERE AR
immaterial associates that are accounted for using the equity method are as ARIBEEEANT -
following:
2020 2019
ol St 3 —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TTT ARBFT
Aggregate carrying amounts of individually @5t
immaterial associates 403,032 282,649
Aggregate amounts of the Group's share of: AEE LR
Loss for the year FEEE (3,320) (35,544)
Other comprehensive income HAvsra WA - -
Total comprehensive loss FeESNE (3,320) (35,544)
() Allthe associates of the Group are unlisted and operate in Mainland China. € AKEFAEAEBEQRHEAELTAR -
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The Group has no significant contingent liabilities related to the liabilities
of associates.
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Contract assets

During the Reporting Period, the contract assets of the Group were
RMB356,658,000 as at 31 December 2020 and RMB451,685,000 as at 31
December 2019.

Contract liabilities

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s contract liabilities amounted to
RMB1,483,943,000. The corresponding contract liabilities amounted to
RMB996,996,000 as at 31 December 2019. The increase in contract liabilities
during the year was mainly due to the growth of the Group’s cloud business.

Liquidity, financial and capital resources

As at 31 December 2020, the Group recorded a total cash and bank deposits of
RMB4,046,980,000 (31 December 2019: RMB2,586,565,000). As at 31 December
2020, the Group held wealth management products of RMB993,656,000 (31
December 2019: RMB687,312,00). A substantial part of the Group’s cash, bank
deposit and wealth management products were denominated in RMB and the RMB-
equivalent of the part denominated in foreign currencies were RMB1,813,457,000 as
at 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: RMB180,074,000), which were mainly
denominated in US dollar and Hong Kong dollar (*HKD").

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s net current assets amounted to approximately
RMB3,584,825,000 (31 December 2019: RMB2,243,354,000). As at 31 December
2020, the current ratio of current assets to current liabilities is approximately 2.38,
a slightly improvement from 2.12 as at 31 December 2019.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s borrowings amounted to RMB120,000,000
(31 December 2019: RMB199,625,000), representing a yoy decrease of 39.9%.
Gearing ratio is calculated as net debt (representing total borrowings less cash and
cash equivalents) over total capital (representing total equity plus net debt). The
Group was at net cash position as of 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2020. As
a result, the Group has no net debt ratio at the end of the Reporting Period.
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Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates is mainly attributable to its
borrowings. Borrowings carried at floating rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest-rate risk whereas those carried at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value
interest-rate risk.

The Group currently does not use any interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure to
interest rate risk. However, the Group will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

As at 31 December 2020, borrowings of the Group which were bearing at floating
rates amounted to approximately RMB120,000,000 (2019: RMB85,625,000). As at
31 December 2020, if the interest rates had been 50 basis point higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant, the Group’s post-tax loss for the years ended
31 December 2020 would have been higher/lower by approximately RMB540,000
(2019: 385,000).

Foreign exchange risk

The functional currency of the Company and its major subsidiaries is RMB. The
majority of the revenues of the Group are derived from operations in the PRC.

Foreign exchange risk is the risk of loss resulting from changes in foreign currency
exchange rates. Fluctuations in exchange rates between RMB and other currencies
in which the Group conducts business may affect its financial position and results
of operations. The foreign exchange risk facing the Group mainly comes from
movements in the US dollars (“USD")/RMB and Hong Kong dollars (“HKD")/RMB
exchange rates.

The Group does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the
management of the Group monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

As at 31 December 2020, if RMB had weakenedy/strengthened by 5% against HKD
with all other variables held constant, loss before tax for the year would have been
higher/lower by RMB80,399,000 (2019: RMB6,279,000), mainly as a result of
foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of HKD denominated cash at bank
and in hand.

As at 31 December 2020, if RMB had weakened/strengthened by 5% against USD
with all other variables held constant, loss before tax for the year would have been
higher/lower by RMB10,202,000 (2019: RMB18,332,000), mainly as a result of
foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of USD denominated borrowing and
cash at bank and in hand.
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Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, contractual cash flows of debt
instruments carried at amortised cost, at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)
and deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to
customers, including outstanding receivables.

The management manages the credit risk of cash and cash equivalents, pledged
and short-term bank deposits, long-term bank deposits and wealth management
products (classified as financial assets at FVPL) by transacting with state-owned
financial institutions and reputable commercial banks which are all high-credit-
quality financial institutions in the PRC and Hong Kong.

In relation to trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has two kinds of
distribution channels, one is sales to distributors and the other is sales to end
customers.

For distributors, the Group has assessed the credit quality of the distributors,
taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors.
Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external ratings in accordance
with limits set by the board. The compliance with credit limits by distributors is
regularly monitored by management.

For sales to end customers, the Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk in trade receivables since the balance of trade receivables is composed of
numerous individual small items and the exposure spreads over a large number of
customers.

The Group's investments in debt instruments, including loans to the third
parties and related parties as well as entrusted loans are considered to be low
risk investments. The credit ratings of the investments are monitored for credit
deterioration.

For other receivables, the management considers the possibility of default when
assets are initially recognized and whether the credit risk increased significantly on
an ongoing basis. The directors of the Company believe that there is no material
credit risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding balances of other receivables.
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Fund and working capital management

Our funds and liquidity management are centrally carried out by our fund
management department. Our fund management department is generally
responsible for overall management and implementation of funds, including
formulating the capital management policy for our Group, guiding, coordinating
and standardizing the fund management of regional companies, making annual
funding plans, reviewing and summarizing annual capital budget, overseeing and
assessing fund management of each regional company. Our finance departments of
regional companies are committed to implementing the fund management policies
formulated by our headquarters and are responsible for making funding plans and
executing capital operations at subsidiary level. We have also adopted sophisticated
fund management policies and implemented a set of rules and guidelines on fund
management, such as the Group Capital Internal Control Management Measures
(EBEESEMAEEE L)) and Fund Settlement Of Branch Offices
Management Measures ({9 X #1E & S & EEIRHE)), to enhance the
effectiveness and efficiency of fund management, thereby ensuring our financial
security and reducing cost of capital.

To manage our idle cash on hand, we purchase and redeem wealth management
products using them as our “cash pool” from which we could readily access cash
as needed and generate higher yield than bank deposits. The underlying financial
assets of the wealth management products in which we invested primarily consist
of the low- risk wealth management products issued by financial institutions. The
amount of the purchase will be determined based on our surplus funds. Our main
treasury policy on fund management is the Wealth Management Administration
Solution ((E £ IBBIEIZEH1E)). We consistently comply with our treasury
policy during the procedures of purchasing the wealth management products and
managing the relevant departments, as well as in conducting business, accounting
and filing.

We are committed to safeguarding overall financial security and maintaining a
strong cash pasition and a healthy debt profile with strong repayment ability. By
adopting a full, reasonable and professional assessment mechanism, preparing
annual and monthly funding plans, we have established disciplined fund
management principal, which allows us to efficiently manage market risks.

For budget management, we have established a monthly, quarterly and annual
budget management system, then seek approval from our chief financial officer.
The capital budget plans should be made based on the objective basis of the
Group’s business plans, project schedules, and contractual payment terms to
ensure that the plan accurately matches the actual business needs.
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Major propetties EEME

TRERTAEBHE T _ZTFE+_A
=t+—HIFEVENAD -

The following table sets forth the details of the major properties held by the Group as
of 31 December 2020.

Property name Location Existing use Lease term  Total Fair value

fESAT sht RERE HEHR  AFGRE

RMB'000

ARBTT

Beijing Kingdee Software Park Valley No. 4 Fuxing Street, Mapo Town, Shunyi District, Beijing City, the PRC Offices Long-term 665,576
Tre ket LR IES [ S A SR R /NS =31

Shanghai Kingdee Development Center No. 88 Chenhui Road, Zhangjiang High Technology Park, Pudong District, Offices Long-term 375,290
HEEREHE Shanghai City, the PRC N R

FE BRI LR E R R B85
No. 2, No.12 Technology Road South, High Technology Park, Nanshan District, Offices Long-term 537,875

Shenzhen Kingdee Development Center

sl SNk Shenzhen City, Guangdong Province, the PRC NS R
HEERE R MR LR R R B 125825
Shenzhen W1-B Level 4, Building W1, High-tech Industrial Village, No. 1 Technology Road South, Offices Long-term 72,230
RIIWA-8 Nanshan District, Shenzhen City, Guangdong Province, the PRC /N R
FEEREMIMRELEREE - BRREIENWBE ENE
1,690,971
2. Employee and Remuneration Policy 2. BEERFHHE

WEMA - SEME T ABUE0,663A  ANEH
AR EEE - TEEIRZLEEER

During the Reporting Period, total number of employees in the Group reached
10,663. Based on core value of “Acting in all Conscience, with Integrity and

Righteousness”, the Company implements Kingdee Philosophy, commending EZEER(EREE)  REAKREFLBARE
the employees and organizations who have made outstanding contributions to BRIWME AL  ZBETURPAFLHX
the satisfaction of customers, and consolidating the customer-centered culture. 1t o AR - SEEESEEQKMITEIFANED
At the same time, the Group continued to reward those who achieved innovation mE R - B ATETT T BRI R E B
in product technology and improvement in product quality, and made strategic B mEBA - SEEEREHAMSRE D TOEE
deployment and incentive for R&D professionals. During the Reporting Period, the B PEEEAEEAS  SHEAEEINS

Group fully implemented the strategy of international strategic positioning, market-
based corporate governance, high-end industry layout and global human resources
in organizational capability, deployed leading talents of cloud transformation,
encouraged R&D and delivery of high potential talents to grow in rotation,
continuously introduced elite talents and top-class fresh graduates, promoting the
realization of younger, rank-based, professional and echelon-based employees.

BATWERE - BESIESRAT M—RE
[EEEE  HBERETF™ME Bl =&
Eib -~ BBIE -
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During the pandemic, Kingdee leveraged its advantages in cloud platform and
big data, provided data monitoring and analysis for small- and medium-sized
enterprises to resume work and production, guaranteed 24-hour telephone
and online customer services and maintained normal operation of customers’
business. In addition, Kingdee provided priority services to enterprises in affected
areas. Meanwhile, Kingdee, together with management experts and leaders from
18 industries, released the Smart Growth Plan for Micro, Small and Medium
Businesses to help SMEs break through business bottlenecks and achieve smart
growth. Kingdee also helped enterprises tide over difficulties with the “Golden
Selection Plan”, which selected quality products from served enterprises and
promoted them in the market, as well as a number of support measures for
enterprises and products preferential services.

Kingdee donated RMB10 million through China Siyuan Foundation for Poverty
Alleviation to support front-line medical workers fighting against COVID-19
in Wuhan and surrounding areas, continued to support the Siyuan Foundation
Ya'an Poor Students Phase IIl Project and initiated the Third Kingdee Education
Relocation Class Project. During the reporting period, Kingdee contributed to the
China Management Model 50, a public forum promoting theoretical and practical
dialogues, communication and cooperation. Kingdee, management experts and
entrepreneurs jointly advanced enterprise management in China.

Outlook

Kingdee will continue to execute the cloud subscription transformation strategy,
continue to focus on “Platform + Finance & HR & Tax + Ecosystem”, increase
R&D investment in Kingdee Cloud Cosmic, take the leading position among
platforms, focus on the core applications, vigorously develop cloud ecosystem,
actively penetrate into high-end market, consolidate the market advantages among
small and medium-sized enterprises, and create a new Kingdee with subscription
business model in the next three years.

Committed to the philosophy of “customer-centric, hardworking as foundation
and long-term professionalism”, Kingdee has always been with every enterprise
customer side by side. In the future, Kingdee will help more enterprises and
customers grow up against challenges and strengthen themselves in adversity,
embracing the belief in victory, and reconstruct digital enterprise capability.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Directors
Executive Directors

XU Shao Chun (2> %F), aged 57, is the founder of the Group, chairman of the Board,
chief executive officer and the Government Special Allowance Expert awarded by the
State Council. Mr. XU graduated from the Southeast University in Computer Science and
obtained a Master of Accounting from the Research Institute for Fiscal Science, Ministry of
Finance (now known as the Chinese Academy of Fiscal Sciences) and an Executive Master
of Business Administration (EMBA) from China Europe International Business School.
Mr. XU is a member of the Accounting and Information Technology Commission of the
Ministry of Finance. He has served as a member of each of the Ninth and Tenth Central
Committee of China Democratic National Construction Association, a director of the
China Siyuan Foundation for Poverty Alleviation, the vice president of the China Software
Industry Association, and the vice president of Shenzhen Private Entrepreneurs Chamber
of Commerce, and the vice president of Shenzhen Young Scientific and Technological
Workers Association. Mr. XU has been an independent non-executive director of Zero2IPO
Holdings Inc., a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1945) (“Zero2IPQ”),
since December 2020. By virtue of the profound understanding of the corporate strategy
and operation management, the forward-looking technology sensitivity and keen insight
on the development trend of the global software industry, Mr. XU has been actively
promoting the objective of “Enable the Chinese management model to rise in the world”,
and is committed to leading the Group to become the world’s leading service provider
of management and IT integrated solutions. Owing to his outstanding achievements in
implementation of this undertaking, Mr. XU was awarded frequently. He has been awarded
“World Indigenous Entrepreneur Award of the United Nations”, “China Qutstanding Youth
Science and Technology Innovation Award”, “10 Outstanding Youths of China’s Software”,
“10 Outstanding Entrepreneur Award”, “Outstanding Leader of China’s Information
Industry”, “30 Effective People who Contributed to the Success of Shenzhen’s 3 Decades
of Reform and Opening”, “Meritorious Shenzhen Business Leaders who Contributed to the
Success of Shenzhen’s 4 Decades of Reform and Opening” and “Shenzhen Science and
Technology Innovation Mayor's Award”.

LIN Bo (#kif), aged 48, is an executive Director. Mr. LIN obtained a bachelor's degree
of Computer Science from the Xiamen University. He is currently the chief financial
officer of the Company. After joining the Company in 1997, Mr. LIN has served as the
general manager of the Company in the Fujian Province Region, the general manager of
the Operation Management Department and the director of the Strategic Development
Department of the Group. Mr. LIN has extensive experiences in strategic planning,
marketing management and financial management. Mr. LIN has been awarded “Top 10
CFQ in China of the year 2018”.
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Non-executive Directors

DONG Ming Zhu (EBAZk), aged 66, is a non-executive Director who joined the
Company in 2012. Ms. DONG obtained a Master Degree of Business Administration from
the Zhongnan University of Economics and Law. She is now the chairman of the board and
President of Gree Electric Appliances, Inc. of Zhuhai (stock code: SZ000651), a company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, Ms. DONG had been awarded the “National May
Day Labor Prize”, and had been elected as a member of each of the 10th, 11th, 12th and
13th National People’s Congress, a member of the Standing Committee of the China
National Democratic Construction Association, and a member of the 10th, 11th and 12th
Executive Committee of All-China Women'’s Federation. Ms. DONG has solid experience
in marketing and management of household appliances, and the Regional Sales Model
that she developed has been commended as an “Excellent Achievement of Modernizing
Enterprises’ Management of Guangdong Province”. Ms. DONG has been dedicated to
creating local Chinese brands and was granted the “Innovation Award of CCTV's China’s
Economic Figures of the Year 2010, and “CCTV's China’'s Economic Figures of the Year
2013".

Mr. ZHOU Bo Wen (F4B3Z), aged 45, is a non-executive Director who recently joined
the Company in 2020. Mr. ZHOU received a Ph.D. in Electrical & Computer Engineering
from the University of Colorado Boulder, the United States of America and a bachelor’s
degree from the University of Science & Technology of China. Mr. ZHOU serves as Chair
of JD Technology Committee, the Head of JD Exploration Labs and President of JD Cloud
& Al, a group which integrates the charter and responsibilities of three major former
business departments under JD.com, Cloud, Al and loT. Mr. ZHOU is a fellow of the
Institute of Electrical and Electronic Engineers (abbreviated as IEEE) and an expert member
of the National New Generation Artificial Intelligence Development Research Center. Mr.
ZHOU formerly was also a director of the Al Foundations Lab at International Business
Machines Corporation (“IBM”) Research in New York and the chief scientist of the IBM
Watson Group. Mr. ZHOU has decades of experience in natural language processing
technology, machine learning and artificial intelligence.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Gary Clark BIDDLE (B ETE), aged 69, is an independent non-executive Director.
Mr. BIDDLE is the Professor of Financial Accounting at the University of Melbourne, and
a visiting professor at each of the Columbia University Business School, The University
of Hong Kong and the London Business School. Mr. BIDDLE earned his MBA and PhD
degrees at University of Chicago. He has served as a professor at each of the University
of Chicago and the University of Washington, the dean of the Faculty of Business and
Economics at The University of Hong Kong, a chair professor at each of the Accounting
Department of The University of Hong Kong and PCCW, and an associate dean of the
School of Business and Management of The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology, where he was also a member of the Council, Court, Senate and held the
title of Synergis-Geoffrey Yeh Chair Professor. He has served or is serving as visiting
professor at globally leading business schools, including the Columbia Business School
of the Columbia University in the United States of America, the London Business School
in the United Kingdom, the International Institute for Management Development in
Switzerland, the China Europe International Business School in China and the Moscow
School of Management SKOLKOVO in Russia. Mr. BIDDLE is a member of each of the
American Accounting Association, American Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
Hong Kong Business and Professionals Federation, Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and Hong Kong Institute of Directors, and he is the former president
and co-founding council member of the Hong Kong Academic Accounting Association.
He is a leading expert in financial accounting, financial markets, valuation, value creation,
corporate management and performance metrics, including economic value appreciation
rate. Mr. BIDDLE s also an independent non-gxecutive director of Shui On Land Limited
(stock code: HK-272), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Ni Zheng Dong ({R1E3R), aged 46, is an independent non-executive Director
who joined the Company in 2021. Mr. NI obtained a bachelor’s degree in engineering
mechanics from Hunan University in 1996, and a master’s degree in engineering
mechanics from Tsinghua University in 2000. He also graduated from a business
administration PhD programme from Tsinghua University in 2007. Mr. Ni has been the
chief executive officer, executive director and chairman of the board of Zero2IPO since
August 2019, and is primarily responsible for the overall management of the business,
strategy and corporate development of Zero2IPO and its subsidiaries. Mr. Ni started the
business of Zero2IPQ in 2001 and has over 20 years of experience in the equity investment
service industry. In addition, Mr. Ni currently serves as the chair of the Limited Partners
Association of China and as the secretary general of China Angel Investment Association.
Mr. Ni has been an independent director of Talk Web Information System Inc., a company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002261) since September 2017.
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LIU Chia Yung (BIZR %), aged 62, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr. LIU
obtained a Master Degree of Business Administration from the University of Missouri in
the United States of America. Mr. LIU joined Trend Micro Inc., a company listed on the
Tokyo Stock Exchange (stock code: TY0-4704) in 2002, and served as the president of
the Asia Pacific region and then the general manager of global services business group,
being responsible for the overall business operation in Asia Pacific region, research and
development, and Trend Micro’s global enterprises cyber security outsourcing service
planning. Mr. LIU joined Green and Associates in 2007 and has served as the general
manager, focusing on strategic human resources consulting since then. Mr. LIU has
rich experience in Hi-Tech marketing, business strategy planning and global corporation
management. Mr. LIU has acted as the adjunct professor at the Soochow University
in Taiwan and a visiting professor at the Peter F. Drucker Academy in Beijing. Mr. LIU
has been an independent director of Opple Lighting Co., Ltd., a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 603515), and an independent director of Nanjing
0Olo Home Furnishing Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock
code: 603326).

Company Secretary

SIU Man Ho, Simon (3 %), aged 47, is a practicing solicitor of the High Court of
Hong Kong. He obtained a Bachelor of Laws degree from The University of Hong Kong
in 1996 and is a partner of a law firm, namely Sit, Fung, Kwong & Shum. Mr. SIU is
also a China Appointed Attesting Officer appointed by the Ministry of Justice of the PRC.
His areas of practice include corporate finance, capital markets, securities, mergers and
acquisitions, joint ventures and general commercial matters. He also actively participates
in charitable and social services in Hong Kong. He was previously appointed as the
director of Hong Kong Pok Qi Hospital. He is currently acting as the legal adviser for
United Hearts Youth Foundation, VQ Foundation and Hong Kong Taekwondo Association
as well as the school manager of The Association of Directors and Former Director of
Pok Oi Hospital Ltd. Leung Sing Tak College. He is also the member of the Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference in Yangjiang City of Guangdong
Province, the PRC. Mr. SIU was an independent non-executive director of each of Weiye
Holdings Limited (stock code: HK-1570) from March 2016 to December 2018 and Jiashili
Group Limited (stock code: HK-1285) from June 2015 to December 2015. Mr. SIU is
currently an independent non-executive director of each of Wai Yuen Tong Medicine
Holdings Limited (stock code: HK-897), Brilliant Circle Holdings International Limited
(stock code: HK-1008), Shuang Yun Holdings Limited (stock code: HK-1706) and HKE
Holdings Limited (stock code: HK-1726), which are companies listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange.
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Senior Management

XU Shao Chun (&2 %), chief executive officer of the Company — see the paragraph
under “Executive Directors” above.

LIN Bo (#Fi%), chief financial officer of the Company — see the paragraph under
“Executive Directors” above.

SHEN Chong Feng (#E5R21&), aged 50, is the rotating president of Kingdee Software
(China) Co., Ltd* (“Kingdee China”). Mr. SHEN is mainly in charge of the management
software business in the Company. Mr. SHEN graduated from the Changchun University
of Science and Technology (now known as the Jilin University) with a master’s degree in
engineering. Before joining Kingdee, Mr. SHEN was a lecturer at the Changchun University
of Science and Technology. He joined Kingdee in 1998 and has served as the department
manager of Shenzhen Branch, the general manager of Dongguan Branch, the general
manager of Shenzhen Branch, the general manager of South China and the senior vice
president of Kingdee China and the president of Shanghai Guanyi. He is currently the
rotating president of Kingdee China. Since joining Kingdee in the past 21 years, Mr. SHEN
has made important contributions in the key management positions of Kingdee, and has
rich theoretical and practical experiences in business management.

Zhang Yong (E35), aged 46, is the rotating president of Kingdee China. Mr. ZHANG
Graduated from China Europe International Business School, joined the Company in
1995 and has served as General Manager of Shanghai Branch and General Manager of
East China Region successively. Mr. ZHANG has played vital roles in the marketing and
marketing management etc. Therefore, he has rich experience in marketing and team
management. Mr. ZHANG is one of the “Second Session IT Youth Top Ten New Talent in
Shanghai”, one of the “Fifth Session Top Ten Outstanding Youth in Putuo District”, and
one of the “2008 Shanghai Information Service Industry Leaders”. Also, He was once a
member of the Standing Committee of the 12th CPPCC in Putuo District, Shanghai, and
vice president of Shanghai Informatization Youth Talent Association.
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The Directors are pleased to present to the shareholders their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020.

Principal Activities and Geographical Analysis of Operations

Shares of the Company are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (Stock Code: 0268) and the Company is headquartered in
Shenzhen, PRC. Adhering to the core values of “acting in all conscience, with integrity and
righteousness”, the Company is committed to helping businesses achieve their growth
targets and let the sun shine on every company through dedicated services. It strives to
provide them with the most trusted enterprise service market. Through persistent efforts to
explore China's Cloud enterprise services market, Kingdee has retained the largest share in
the enterprise application software sector for fast-growing enterprises for 16 consecutive
years, and has grasped the biggest share in the enterprise-grade ERM SaaS (as known as
Cloud ERP) and financial Cloud services industry for the forth consecutive year.

In addition, Kingdee's diverse Cloud services and products are the preferred choices of
leading enterprises. They include “Kingdee Cloud — Cosmic” (a Cloud service platform
for large enterprises), “Kingdee Cloud-Galaxy” (a digital innovation cloud service platform
for medium and fast-growing enterprises), “Kingdee Cloud — Stellar” (one-stop Cloud
services platform for micro and small-sized enterprises), “Cloud-Hub” (intelligent Cloud
office), “Guanyi Cloud” (Cloud services for E-commerce operators) and “Cargeer” (Cloud
services for auto dealers) and “Wojia Cloud” (Cloud services for Property Industry). With
its strengths in management software and Cloud services, Kingdee provides services
and products to more than 6.8 million enterprises, government agencies and other
organizations across the globe.

The revenue and loss attributable to the owners of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2020 were approximately RMB3,356,445,000 and RMB335,479,000,
respectively. Of such revenue, approximately 43.0% was derived from the sales of ERP
business and approximately 57.0% was derived from the Cloud services business. For
details, please refer to the consolidated income statement set out on page 85.

The Group has established three software parks which are located in Shenzhen, Shanghai
and Beijing, respectively. As at 31 December 2020, the Group had nearly 50 branches
mainly engaging in marketing and service and had approximately over 2,000 cooperation
partners providing consultation, technical support, implementation services and
distribution of its products and after-sale services to the customers of the Group.
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Business Review

A fair review of the business of the Group and a discussion and analysis of the Group’s
performance during the year as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”), including (i)
a discussion of the principal business risks and uncertainties facing the Group; (ii)
an indication of likely future developments of the Group’s business; (iii) key financial
performance indicators of the development, performance and position of the Group’s
business; and (iv) a discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and performance
and the Group’s compliance with the laws and regulations having significant impact on the
Group's business are provided in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section, on
pages 17 to 28 of this annual report and Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Final Dividend

The performance for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 85.

The Board does not recommend the declaration and payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

Closures of Register

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 17 May 2021 to
Friday, 21 May 2021 (both days inclusive), during which periods no transfer of shares will
be registered. In order to be qualified to attend, participate in and vote at the AGM to be
held on Friday, 21 May 2021, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office
in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Room 1712-1716,
17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Friday, 14 May 2021.

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

Details of bank loans and other borrowings for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set
out in Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
are set out in the statement of changes in equity on page 87 of the annual report.

Donations

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounted to approximately RMB10,000,000 (2019: approximately RMB1,000,000).
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Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
financial years is set out on page 7 of this annual report.

Fixed Assets

Details of movements in the fixed assets of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020 are set out in Note 6 to the financial statements.

Interests of the Directors in Contracts

Save as disclosed under the heading “Continuing Connected Transactions” and “Related
Party Transactions” in this report, no Director or an entity connected with a Director has
or had a material interest in any transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to the
Group’s business for the year ended 31 December 2020 in which the Group was a party.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions regarding pre-emptive rights under the laws of Cayman Islands
or the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”), which would
oblige the Company to issue new shares to its existing shareholders in proportion to their
existing shareholdings.

Principal properties

Details of the principal properties held for development and/or sale and for investment
purposes are set out on page 27 of this annual report.

Tax Relief

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to its shareholders by
reason of their holding of the shares of the Company.

Share Capital and Options

° Share Capital
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2020 are set out in Note 18 to the financial statements. Shares were
issued during the year as a result of the placing of new shares and exercise of
share options. Details about the issue of shares are also set out in Note 18 to the
financial statements

° Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

During the year ended 31 December 2020, neither the Company, nor any of its
subsidiaries, had repurchased, sold or redeemed any of its listed securities.
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Share Option Schemes

The share option schemes were adopted by the Company to encourage and reward the
contribution of eligible persons to the Company. Eligible persons include employees,
directors, partners, consultants, suppliers and customers of the Group.

Pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by the Company at the extraordinary general
meeting on 11 July 2005 (the “2005 Scheme”) and the adjustment made due to the
bonus issue in 2011, an aggregate of 529,501,600 share options were granted, of which
313,522,193 share options were exercised and 192,132,407 share options lapsed since
its adoption. During the year ended 31 December 2020, 7,988,000 share options were
exercised and 13,299,100 share options were lapsed, thus, 23,847,000 share options
remained outstanding as at 31 December 2020.

At the annual general meeting of the Company convened on 8 May 2015, the Company
terminated the 2005 Scheme and adopted a new share option scheme (the “2015 Scheme”)
with a validity period of ten years. The remaining life of the 2015 Scheme was around 4
years as at the date of this report. As at 31 December 2020, the Company had granted
40,000,000 share options pursuant to the 2015 Scheme, of which 16,639,500 shares
options were exercised and 6,260,000 share options lapsed since its adoption. Hence,
17,100,500 share options remained outstanding. During the year ended 31 December
2020, 4,640,000 share options were exercised and 1,750,000 share options were lapsed.
According to the scheme limit of the 2015 Scheme approved by the annual general
meeting on 8 May 2015, the Company may further grant 219,264,096 share options (being
259,264,096 share options less the 40,000,000 share options granted), representing
approximately 6.32% of the total number of issued shares of the Company as at the date of
this report.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon exercise of the share options granted
under the 2015 Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the Company (including
exercised and outstanding share options) to each eligible participant in any 12-month
period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue as at the date of grant. Any
further grant of share options in excess of such 1% limit shall be subject to the issue of a
circular by the Company and the approval of the shareholders of the Company at a general
meeting.

The grant of share options to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder, or to
any of their respective associates, is subject to the approval in advance by the independent
non-executive Directors, excluding the independent non-executive Director(s) who is/
are the grantee(s) of the share options. In addition, the grant of any share option to a
substantial shareholder of the Company or an independent non-executive Director, or
to any of their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue as at the date of grant and with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of
the shares of the Company as at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, is subject to the issue of a circular by the Company and the approval
of the shareholders of the Company in advance at a general meeting. The grantee, his
associates and all core connected persons of the Company must abstain from voting at
such general meeting. The granted options can be exercised during its respective validity
period under the respective share option schemes.
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The exercise price of the share options is determined by the Board, but may not be less
than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily
quotation sheet of the Stack Exchange on the date of grant, which must be a trading day; (ii)
the average closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of the shares of the Company.

Details of the movements of the share options pursuant to the 2005 Scheme and the 2015
Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2020 are as follows:

BREZTEEREFSET  ETSERTII=F
ZE®E () ARRARNMREHER(WARRXHE)
R P A MERMINZHEHE : ()ARAB DR
SRFEHE AN RER S B ERZMEHRERAT
2 EWTE  R(i)AATRMD 2 EE

HE-_Z-ZF+-_A=Z+—HL BE-ZTZTHF
BRREE N T - AT B EEF BN RN
TRIE -

Bieise ~ Ereciseprice  Opfonsheldat  Opfionsgranted ~ Opfionsexercised ~~ Optionslapsed ~ Options held at
period fer share 31 December turing the during the turing the 31 December
Date of grant (Note 2) (HKD) M9 reporing period  reportng period  reporling period w0
RZE-1%  u 23
fileh filR® +ZB=H-B BEMARE  REORGE  BEOA%Y  f2RZr-H
Name or categoryofparicipants BEgSHERN RHiRg (Wi (Bm)  cHEHME  MRBEBE  GBREBE  OWREMA  CRBERA
Oenal Go Linfed (ot 1) (et Gold imed (1) 230 BT 2% 25000 - - - 2500000
20404
12512015 105101870 ) 2500000 - - - 2500000
110502028
Subfotal it 5,000,000 5,000,000
Lino b Thgart 103201170 4m 4000 - - - oo
g1
12512015 1051201870 ) 300000 - - - 000
110502028
Subfotal it 0000 000
Dong Ming Zhu L 252018 203201310 13 20000 - - - 2000
210502028
12512015 1051201870 ) 20000 - - - 2000
110502028
Subfotal It 400,000 400,000
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Biewise ~ Ereciseprice  Opfionheldat  Opfionsgranted ~ Opfionsexercised ~~ Optionslapsed ~ Options held at
period fer sharg 31 December uring the during the turing the 31 December
Date of grant (Note 2) (HKD) 29 reporng period  reporting period  reportng period 00
RZE-1E a3
fife# filR® +ZR=H-B BEMARE  REORGE  REORRY  f2RZt-H
Name or categoryofparicipants REGSHERN RiRg (Hit) (B7)  CHREBE  WRREBE  ORBEBRE  MRRERE  JRREMA
(e emplyees ElEe 234010 B4t 2517 172100 - 2368000 5353000 0
20400
LRI 103110 1m 1340000 - #0000 500000 101000
15082021
19 1908201170 3 6157000 - 667,000 548000
108201
28201 20301310 13 1567180 - 213050 6723600 1050
210308
230 B4au 2% 1034450 - 2350 1250 12950
2042024
125201 10e/0t670 i 24050 - 4640000 1750000 11050
110612025
Other employees in aggregate AtRRAE 6252400 - 12628000 B30 HH4TA
TOTAL At 8,624,600 12,628,000 15,049,100 40,947,500
Notes: P -

(1) Mr. Xu Shao Chun, an executive Director, the chairman of the Board, the president and
the chief executive officer of the Company, holds 100% interests in Easy Key Holdings
Limited, which in turn holds 100% interests in Oriental Gold Limited.

2) The vesting period of the share options granted is four years and the vesting schedule is
25% after 12 months from the date of grant, 25% after 24 months from the date of grant,
25% after 36 months from the date of grant, and 25% after 48 months from the date of
grant.

(3) The weighted average closing price immediately before the dates of the exercise of the
options was approximately HKD12.37.

For further details, please refer to Note 21 to the financial statements.

(1) RFARTES EELFEREENTERLESL
4 2B #E A Easy Key Holdings Limited » &2 AR 2 &%
Oriental Gold Limited ©

(2 BRERTORBHANT BEHAEREA
HRE12E AR E25% - B AHREXER BB
25% » B B IR E361E A HE25% - AR A
FEEE481E A 5B/ 25% o

()  EBETEHEABANMEFHRBRENR1237E
B o

BLZHABN - B2RYBFHRERME2 -
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Share Award Scheme

The share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) was adopted by the Company on 4
December 2015 to provide incentives and reward the contributions of certain employees
and directors of the Group. The Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years commencing from the adoption date. The Board may, from time to time,
in its absolute discretion select the Selected Participants after taking into various factors as
they deem appropriate and determine the number of Award Shares to be awarded to each of
the Selected Participants. the Awarded Shares will be comprised of Shares subscribed for
or purchased by the Trustee out of cash arranged by the Company out of the Company’s
funds to the Trustee and be held on trust for the Selected Participants until such Shares are
vested with the Selected Participants in accordance with the provisions of the Share Award
Scheme.

The Board shall not make any further award of Awarded Shares which will result in the
nominal value of the Shares awarded by the Board under the Scheme exceeding 3% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time. For the avoidance of doubt, the 3%
provided above shall exclude any Shares which have been vested in Selected Participants.
The maximum number of shares which may be awarded to a Selected Participant under the
Scheme in any twelve (12)-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital
of the Company from time to time.

For details of the Share Award Scheme, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 18 December 2015.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company had granted 10,826,300 award
shares pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, of which a total of 4,350,000 awarded shares
granted to the Directors were still outstanding, details of which are as follows:

B {7 88 Bh &t &)

KRR ZFE-—HF+ =AM B R KRG EEEE
(TR An 2R =t 81 ) A SR A B A B SR AN SR 5 T B
BREEMENER - B0 B 8 ARMZ BER
BHARTF - EFERERNEFRARAENZHAR
BRATK2ENEEEE2EE - WEIIRTEE
E2EENZBROBE - RERHBEEZFEAR
RUARRIBAEEAERNERNRSRBAEE
MR - RFEABRERTAREESRERE KE)
Bty - EEZFBRMRBEBN LR IRRE T
BE2EERI

HE— SR L EBR N EEHEFTSREEE LN
RO EEBERAR TR D EITRANI% - AESE
ETFE—IROERRND - RRERRE - LR
RSN TEEFREMCSEE TRESEENRD
RRFTBIREA+ —(12)[E A BRI TR EES
HENRD LRI SEBARR N EITRAN
1% °

BRRNERFEZHBFEL2ERANA-_F—0F
TZATNABZAM -

REE-T-_ZTF+_A=+—HIEFE ' RERKH
HEENET 9% 1 +£5110,826, 300AX 2EEIAR (D - NAFIES
137 & K 57 [ BY 22 Eh A% 1 ££4,350,0000% - B RE=FB a0
T

As at Granted during

Vested during As at

31 December 2019 the reporting period the reporting period 31 December 2020

RIE-1E RISZEE

Name of Director EERE +ZB=+-H REMARH REMABEE +-A=t—-H

Xu Shao Chun BwOE 4,200,000 300,000 1,800,000 2,700,000

LinBo WK 2,250,000 250,000 850,000 1,650,000
For further details, please refer to Note 21 to the financial statements. BEZHMEER - BRREHMISHRRWE2 -
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Equity-linked agreement

On 21 August 2020, the Company and J.P. Morgan Securities plc (the “Placing Agent”)
entered into the placing agreement (the “Placing Agreement”), pursuant to which the
Company has agreed to appoint the Placing Agent, and the Placing Agent has agreed to act
as agent for the Company to procure placees to subscribe for, or failing which to subscribe
as principal, 133,280,000 new Shares (the “Placing Shares”) at the price of HK$17.82 per
Placing Share (the “Placing”), representing approximately 4.00% of the existing issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of the Placing Agreement and approximately
3.85% of the enlarged issued share capital of the Company immediately following the
completion of the Placing on 28 August 2020 (the “Completion”). The aggregate nominal
value of the Placing Shares under the Placing is HK$3,332,000. The closing price per
share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on the date of signing of the Placing Agreement
was HK$18.32. The Directors consider that the Placing will raise capital for the Company
to maintain the cash flow position of the Group, enhance the capital base of the Company
and prepare for any future potential investments, including to support the Company’s cloud
transformation, and the Placing is in the interests of the Group and the Shareholders as a
whole.

Completion took place on 28 August 2020. The Placing Shares were allotted and issued
under the general mandate granted to the Board at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 12 May 2020, to more than six professional, institutional and other
investors with the price of HK$17.82 per placing share on Completion. Upon Completion,
the gross proceeds raised from the placing was approximately HK$2,375.1 million and
the net proceeds (after deducting the placing commission and other related costs and
expenses and professional fees) arising from the Placing were approximately HK$2,353.0
million. On this basis, the net price per Placing Share was approximately HK$17.65. The
net proceeds were intended to be used in accordance with the intended purposes disclosed
in the announcement of the Company dated 21 August 2020.

B 4 4 R 135 %%

2020F8 H21H » AR RIEERABEHFBR DR (T
WIEEREDRF TREHE(THEIEREHED
Rz AREIRBREEENRE  BEERIE
RIBEEARARRNIE - MeEARAREREER
717828 TR (M ARBEK D AIA T EAH N RE)
133,280,000R% AL &S Bt » FL & AR 3 KI5 BC & 1k B 2
A2 BITIRAREY4.00% - 122020578 A28 H B & E18 5%
FRIE AR R R R E 3 1TA R Y 493.85% © BC&E A D
AR ZEEER3332,00087T - KEWEZESRH - 2
RN SR EBERIBRET - EFETRA
AREEBR/AARBRES - WEBAKENRSE
AR IBSR AR BV EARERE - W ARKNERE
EREMSEE  BRXBAARNEEE - ARE
ENAAREERZBIRNME -

Al E Sepk B B17320209F8 A28 R » RS A IR AR A A
202005 ARARITHFERRASRTEFTSN —
R - MBENRER  BEBREMREELEMN
AT UEBRIT82B TR E - BRENARENR
235 B EET  REEARFREGIREERE R
HAEARA A REXERR)NR23308 88
TC e BUATE - SREERDAFELN/ITLET
AR BRI A AR 20206F8 H 21 B B ) N R B
HIEEREEA -

Proceeds utilised  Unutilised funds Expected timeline

Proceeds from upto asat 31 for unutilised
the Placing 31 December 2020  December 2020 funds (Note 1)
HE2020F #HE2020F RERL
128318 12A31H SERY
HERE CEANEE HRERNLE ERER%
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT EETT BT
Research and development (50.0%) & £50.0% 1,176,850 210,849 966,001 2022467
Future potential investments (30.0%) RIEERE0.0% 706,110 213745 432,365 0215128
Working capital and general corporate purposes (20.0%) HEE S N—RARAR00% 470,740 178515 292,025 215128
Note: BT

(1) The expected timeline for utilising the unutilised funds is based on the best estimation
of the future market conditions made by the Group. It may be subject to change based on
the current and future development of market conditions.

Save for the Placing Agreement as disclosed above, there was no equity-linked agreement
being entered into during the year or subsisting at the end of the year.

(1) ERRERESHNEHRBRENREBE KRS
SRR RERE - JREEREE AN ARRTS F
e ERMEL -

B EXER BRI - AFENRE R R
HEE - WRAEARFEEREEREAFRNE
HRRA ek
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Directors

The composition of the Board during the financial year ended 31 December 2020 and up to
the date of this report is as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Xu Shao Chun (Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lin Bo (Chief Financial Officer)

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Dong Ming Zhu

Mr. Zhou Bo Wen (appointed on 18 March 2020)
Mr. Shen Yuan Ching (resigned on 18 March 2020)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Gary Clark Biddle

Mr. Ni Zheng Dong (appointed on 4 January 2021)
Mr. Liu Chia Yung

Mr. Cao Yang Feng (resigned on 4 January 2021)

According to the Articles of Assaciation, each Director shall retire by rotation at least once
every three years and all the retiring Directors are eligible for re-election at the AGM in that
year. At the AGM, three Directors, namely Mr. Xu Shao Chun, Ms. Dong Ming Zhu and
Mr. Zhou Bo Wen shall be retired by rotation and be eligible for re-glection. Additionally,
Mr. Ni Zheng Dong, who was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 4
January 2021, shall hold office only until the AGM and shall also be eligible for re-glection
at the AGM.

None of the Directors who shall be retired and proposed for re-glection at the forthcoming
AGM has an unexpired service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which
is not terminable within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

The Company received a written confirmation from each independent non-executive
Director of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). The Company considers all the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests or Short Positions
in the Shares, Underlying Shares or Debentures

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SF0”)), which will be
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or which will be required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO
to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which will be required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules, were as follows:
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Long positions/short positions in shares/underlying shares of the FLFRERKEHREHPZES
Company
Percentage of
Number of shares/ total number of
underlying shares issued share
(where appropriate)  Capacity (approximate)
B{n, +HRA EERTERF
Name of Directors EENR Bn®EH(MBA) #aN" HaES L
Xu Shao Chun woEHE 682,198,624(L) Interests of controlled corporation (Note 1)
PRI A T ws (M EED)
2,700,000(L)  Beneficiary of a trust (Note 2)
EEmA )
18,684,760(L)  Beneficial owner
EnEEA
Aggregate; B 703,583,384 20.30%
LinBo MO 1,164,004(L)  Beneficial owner
EmEB A
1,650,000(L)  Beneficiary of a trust (Note 3)
FEEEm A (7E3)
Aggregate: a5t 2,814,004 0.08%
Gary Clark Biddle Gary Clark Biddle 1,180,000(L)  Beneficial owner
EmEA A
Aggregate: AFF: 1,180,000 0.03%
Dong Ming Zhu ERRTR 400,000(L)  Share option (Note 4)
RE R (P Ed)
Aggregate: I 400,000 0.01%
Liu Chia Yung 2Rk 200,000(L)  Beneficial owner
EmEB A
Aggregate: ARt 200,000 0.01%
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Notes:

The percentage of the total number of issued shares was calculated by the number of the
aforesaid interests or short positions divided by the total number of issued shares as at 31
December 2020 of 3,466,598,571.

1. 0f the 682,198,624 shares, 386,312,000 shares (of which 5,000,000 were share options)
were held through Oriental Gold Limited and 295,886,624 shares were held through
Billion Ocean Limited. Easy Key Holdings Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Xu Shao
Chun, which wholly owns Oriental Gold Limited and Billion Ocean Limited. Therefore,
Mr. Xu Shao Chun is deemed to be interested in those 682,198,624 shares.

2. The 2,700,000 shares are the awarded shares granted to Mr. Xu Shao Chun and held
by the trustee to the Share Award Scheme — Bank of Communications Trustee Limited.
Details of the awarded shares are set out in the section headed “Share Award Scheme” of
this annual report.

3. The 1,650,000 shares are the awarded shares granted to Mr. Lin Bo and held by the
trustee to the Share Award Scheme — Bank of Communications Trustee Limited. Details
of the awarded shares are set out in the section headed “Share Award Scheme” of this
annual report.

4, Details of the share options are set out in the section headed “Share Option Schemes” of
this annual report.

5. (L) denotes long position.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company had any interests and short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFQ), which will be required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or which will
be required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which will be required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ Rights to acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Schemes” above, none of the
Directors or their respective associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) was granted
by the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, any rights or options to acquire shares or
debentures in the Company during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests
and Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures

As at 31 December 2020, as far as the Directors were aware, the following persons (other
than the Directors and chief executive of the Company) had interests and short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Part XV of the SFO and required to be recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO:

FERRRATATIREFEFRES
HERERE

BEEMH R-T-_TF+_A=1t—H HUTA
T(ARRREERFZSTHRABRINAAR RN &
HER D P HEEREE SRS GEOIEXVENRES
BRARRIRERRIEE S LR GRPIE3361FRE
BHEFEZELMAT R EamskR

Interests in shares/underlying shares of the Company FLOTFRG, AR ZES
Percentage
Number of shares/ of issued
underlying shares share capital
(where appropriate) Capacity (approximate)
B3, 486 HERT
Name A 13 B {n 8 H (miE ) HarE BREESLE
Easy Key Holdings Limited Easy Key Holdings Limited (B &¥1) 682,198,624 (L) Interest of controlled corporation 19.68%
(Note 1) PR AT 2R
Oriental Gold Limited (Note 1)~ Oriental Gold Limited (Fff#£1) 386,312,000 (L) Beneficial owner 11.14%
E=xBBA
Billion Ocean Limited (Note 1) Billion Ocean Limited (Pff£1) 295,886,624 (L) Beneficial owner 8.54%
ERBEEA
JPMorgan Chase & Co. (Note 2) ~ JPMorgan Chase & Co. (Ffi7¥2) 16,758,799 (L) Interest of controlled corporation
3,485,014 (S) ISEE NEIWA 3
107,284,000 (L) Investment manager
REKE
93,197,759(L) Approved lending agent
RAREHAEA
7,272,000 (L) Person having a security interest in shares
BERMMREERDA
SUBTOTAL: &5t 224512558 (L) 6.48%
3,485,014 (S) 0.10%
93,197,759 (P) 2.69%
JD Oriental Investment Limited ~ JD Oriental Investment Limited 200,180,000 (L) Beneficial owner 5.77%
(Note 3) (BT5E3) REKE
BlackRock, Inc. (Note 4) BlackRock, Inc. (Fif#E4) 214,464,559 (L) Interests of controlled corporation 6.19%
4,959,000 () RERA B2 0.14%
FMR LLC FMR LLC 209,200,485(L) Investment manager 6.03%
REKR
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Notes:

The percentage of the total issued shares was calculated by the number of the aforesaid interests
or short positions divided by the total number of issued shares as at 31 December 2020 of

3,466,598,571.

ff

BB TR 1) £ F 3,466,598 5T1FTETH ©

1. 0f the 682,198,624 shares, (i) 386,312,000 shares (of which 5,000,000 share options) 1.
were held by Oriental Gold Limited; and (ii) 295,886,624 shares were held through
Billion Ocean Limited, each a company wholly owned by Easy Key Holdings Limited.

2. According to the disclosure of interest form filed by JPMorgan Chase & Co. on 17 2.

December 2020:

(a) JPMorgan Chase & Co. was deemed to be interested in the shares of the

Company as follows:

A AR R B BT AR B B 0 e ThAR R A b 4 2 OK
BENBEDRBUARRAR _Z_2F+_A=+—A0K

1£682,198,624 /% B 15 7 - (i)386,312,000 A% A% 17 (H A
5,000,0000% /85 A% 4%) £ Oriental Gold Limited (F3Easy Key
Holding Limited 2 & % A)#54E - (i1)295,886,624% A% 1
FaBillion Ocean Limited (F3Easy Key Holdings Limited & &

HE)RHE -

BIE_ZT=_ZFF+ =+t HmHJIPMorgan Chase &
ColRRMERE TR ¢

(@) JPMorgan Chase & Co% & {ER 20 T AR 15 B 1

fm -

Direct interest Number of
Name of controlled corporation Name of controlling person % interest (Y/N) shares
EREEHEE BREATHREENEE EHESEN BERS(Y/N) 47k 4
China International Fund Management Co., Ltd. JPMORGAN ASSET MANAGEMENT (UK) LIMITED 49 Y 1,807,000 (L)
China International Fund Management Co., Ltd. JPMORGAN ASSET MANAGEMENT (UK) LIMITED P
JPMorgan Asset Management (Taiwan) Limited JPMorgan Asset Management (Asia) Inc. 100 Y 4,156,000 (L)
JPMorgan Asset Management (Taiwan) Limited JPMorgan Asset Management (Asia) Inc. =
J. P. Morgan AG J.P. Morgan International Finance Limited 100 Y 1,455 (L)
J. P. Morgan AG J.P. Morgan International Finance Limited P
J. P. Morgan Securities LLC J.P. Morgan Broker-Dealer Holdings Inc. 100 Y 1,904,000 (L)
497,000 (S)
J. P. Morgan Securities LLC J.P. Morgan Broker-Dealer Holdings Inc. =
JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A. - LONDON BRANCH JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association 100 Y 93,197,759 (L)
JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A. - LONDON BRANCH JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association =
JPMORGAN ASSET MANAGEMENT (UK) LIMITED JPMORGAN ASSET MANAGEMENT HOLDINGS (UK) 100 Y 5,695,000 (L)
LIMITED
JPMORGAN ASSET MANAGEMENT (UK) LIMITED JPMORGAN ASSET MANAGEMENT HOLDINGS (UK) =
LIMITED
J. P. Morgan Investment Management Inc. JPMorgan Asset Management Holdings Inc. 100 Y 14,293,000 (L)
J. P. Morgan Investment Management Inc. JPMorgan Asset Management Holdings Inc. =
J. P. Morgan Structured Products B.V. J.P. Morgan International Finance Limited 100 Y 1(S)
J. P. Morgan Structured Products B.V. J.P. Morgan International Finance Limited =
JPMorgan Asset Management (Japan) Limited JPMorgan Asset Management (Asia) Inc. 100 Y 849,000 (L)
JPMorgan Asset Management (Japan) Limited JPMorgan Asset Management (Asia) Inc. =
JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association JPMorgan Chase & Co. 100 Y 7,626,000 (L)
JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association JPMorgan Chase & Co. =

46 Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2020



REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EEERE

Direct interest Number of
Name of controlled corporation Name of controlling person % interest (Y/N) shares
ZRZEHEE BREATHRESEE REESE%N EHEBEEI(Y/N) ;308 o 4c|
JPMorgan Asset Management (Asia Pacific) Limited JPMorgan Asset Management (Asia) Inc. 99.99 Y 72,858,000 (L)
JPMorgan Asset Management (Asia Pacific) Limited JPMorgan Asset Management (Asia) Inc. =
J. P. MORGAN SECURITIES PLC J.P. MORGAN CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 100 Y 22,125,344 (L)
2,988,013 (S)
J. P. MORGAN SECURITIES PLC J.P. MORGAN CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED =
JPMORGAN ASSET MANAGEMENT (UK) LIMITED JPMORGAN ASSET MANAGEMENT HOLDINGS (UK) 100 N 1,807,000 (L)
LIMITED
JPMORGAN ASSET MANAGEMENT (UK) LIMITED JPMORGAN ASSET MANAGEMENT HOLDINGS (UK) B
LIMITED
JPMORGAN ASSET MANAGEMENT HOLDINGS (UK) JPMORGAN ASSET MANAGEMENT INTERNATIONAL 100 N 7,502,000 (L)
LIMITED LIMITED
JPMORGAN ASSET MANAGEMENT HOLDINGS (UK) JPMORGAN ASSET MANAGEMENT INTERNATIONAL =
LIMITED LIMITED
JPMORGAN ASSET MANAGEMENT INTERNATIONAL JPMorgan Asset Management Holdings Inc. 100 N 7,502,000 (L)
LIMITED
JPMORGAN ASSET MANAGEMENT INTERNATIONAL JPMorgan Asset Management Holdings Inc. =
LIMITED
JPMorgan Asset Management Holdings Inc. JPMorgan Chase Holdings LLC 100 N 99,658,000 (L)
JPMorgan Asset Management Holdings Inc. JPMorgan Chase Holdings LLC =
JPMorgan Chase Holdings LLC JPMorgan Chase & Co. 100 N 101,562,000 (L)
497,000 (S)
JPMorgan Chase Holdings LLC JPMorgan Chase & Co. =
JPMorgan Asset Management (Asia) Inc. JPMorgan Asset Management Holdings Inc. 100 N 77,863,000 (L)
JPMorgan Asset Management (Asia) Inc. JPMorgan Asset Management Holdings Inc. &
J. P. Morgan International Finance Limited JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association 100 N 22,126,799 (L)
2,988,014 (S)
J. P. Morgan International Finance Limited JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association =
JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association JPMorgan Chase & Co. 100 N 115,324,558 (L)
2,988,014 (S)
JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association JPMorgan Chase & Co. =
J. P. Morgan Broker-Dealer Holdings Inc. JPMorgan Chase Holdings LLC 100 N 1,904,000 (L)
497,000 (S)
J. P. Morgan Broker-Dealer Holdings Inc. JPMorgan Chase Holdings LLC =
J. P. MORGAN CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED J.P. Morgan International Finance Limited 100 N 22,125,344 (L)
2,988,013 (S)
J. P. MORGAN CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED J.P. Morgan International Finance Limited =
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and (b)

detail of JPMorgan Chase & Co.'s derivatives interests are as follows:

Listed derivatives — Cash settled: 1,323,000(S)

Unlisted derivatives — Physically settled 507,037(S)

Unlisted derivatives — Cash settled: 6,096,760(L) and 1,151,000(S)

Listed derivatives — Convertible instruments 1(S)

AR (b)  JPMorgan Chase & Co. Z HT4E matEzsan | «
] EWtTER—ITE RS A1,323,00005)

. ELEMUTAEATA-NUEDLREK
507,037(S)

. JEEMHTA @ — LATR £ 22 4k6,096,760
(L)BA 21,151,000(S)

. ETHTAET A — A ER s E1(S)

3. According to the disclosure of interest forms filed by JD Oriental Investment Limited, 3. 252020410 5138 JD Oriental Investment Limited = Max
Max Smart Limited, JD.com, Inc., JD.com Investment Limited and Liu Qiangdong Smart Limited - JD.com, Inc. - JD.com Investment Limited
Richard on 13 October 2020, Max Smart Limited, JD.com, Inc., JD.com Investment 81 2155 SRR B m R AR IR H - Max Smart Limited -
Limited and Liu Qiangdong Richard were deemed to be interested in the shares of the JD.com, Inc. » JD.com Investment Limited 822154 5 4% & £
Company as follows: Rz EEEZ - T -

Name of controlled corporation Name of controlling shareholder % interest Direct interest Number of shares
BERLRRE HERERERE ERESL EEfR 3.4
Max Smart Limited Liu Qiangdong Richard 100.00 N 200,180,000 (L)
Max Smart Limited 2R &
JD.com, Inc. Max Smart Limited and Fortune Rising Holdings Limited 72.70 N 200,180,000 (L)
JD.com, Inc. Max Smart Limited and Fortune Rising Holdings Limited &
JD.com Investment Limited JD.com, Inc. 100.00 N 200,180,000 (L)
JD.com Investment Limited JD.com, Inc. a
JD Oriental Investment Limited JD.com Investment Limited 100.00 Y 200,180,000 (L)
JD Oriental Investment Limited JD.com Investment Limited I

4. According to the disclosure of interest form filed by BlackRock, Inc. on 26 November 4. R 1520204511 7 26 B BlackRock, Inc. 3 BB AUz R A% -

2020:
(a) BlackRock, Inc. was deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company as (a) BlackRock, Inc. 4 & ER ZRR D B #Ex - 0
follows: N
Direct interest Number of
Name of controlled corporation Name of controlling person % interest (Y/N) shares
Hiz@Ez

ZRZENHEE BREALTHMESEE REBESE% (Y/N) Bin® A

Trident Merger, LLC BlackRock, Inc. 100 N 2,532,000 (L)

Trident Merger, LLC BlackRock, Inc. =

BlackRock Investment Management, LLC Trident Merger, LLC 100 Y 2,532,000 (L)

BlackRock Investment Management, LLC Trident Merger, LLC =

BlackRock Holdco 2, Inc. BlackRock, Inc. 100 N 211,932,559 (L)

4,959,000 (S)

BlackRock Holdco 2, Inc. BlackRock, Inc. A

BlackRock Financial Management, Inc. BlackRock Holdco 2, Inc. 100 N 207,516,559 (L)

4,959,000 (S)
BlackRock Financial Management, Inc. BlackRock Holdco 2, Inc. =
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Direct interest Number of
Name of controlled corporation Name of controlling person % interest (Y/N) shares

HERR
ZRZEHRRE BEREATHHERERE BEHESE% (Y/N) 30 4|
BlackRock Financial Management, Inc. BlackRock Holdco 2, Inc. 100 Y 4,416,000 (L)

BlackRock Financial Management, Inc. BlackRock Holdco 2, Inc. =
BlackRock Holdco 4, LLC BlackRock Financial Management, Inc. 100 N 80,826,000 (L)
241,000 (S)

BlackRock Holdco 4, LLC BlackRock Financial Management, Inc. =
BlackRock Holdco 6, LLC BlackRock Holdco 4, LLC 90 N 80,826,000 (L)
241,000 (S)

BlackRock Holdco 6, LLC BlackRock Holdco 4, LLC 5
BlackRock Delaware Holdings Inc. BlackRock Holdco 6, LLC 100 N 80,826,000 (L)
241,000 (S)

BlackRock Delaware Holdings Inc. BlackRock Holdco 6, LLC =
BlackRock Institutional Trust Company, National BlackRock Delaware Holdings Inc. 100 Y 32,212,000 (L)
Association 241,000 (S)

BlackRock Institutional Trust Company, National BlackRock Delaware Holdings Inc. =

Association

BlackRock Fund Advisors BlackRock Delaware Holdings Inc. 100 Y 48,614,000 (L)

BlackRock Fund Advisors BlackRock Delaware Holdings Inc. =
BlackRock Capital Holdings, Inc. BlackRock Financial Management, Inc. 100 N 43,302,000 (L)
4,080,000 (S)

BlackRock Capital Holdings, Inc. BlackRock Financial Management, Inc. =
BlackRock Advisors, LLC BlackRock Capital Holdings, Inc. 100 Y 43,302,000 (L)
4,080,000 (S)

BlackRock Advisors, LLC BlackRock Capital Holdings, Inc. =
BlackRock International Holdings, Inc. BlackRock Financial Management, Inc. 100 N 83,388,559 (L)
638,000 (S)

BlackRock International Holdings, Inc. BlackRock Financial Management, Inc. =
BR Jersey International Holdings L.P. BlackRock International Holdings, Inc. 86 N 83,388,559 (L)
638,000 (S)

BR Jersey International Holdings L.P. BlackRock International Holdings, Inc. =
BlackRock Lux Finco S.ar.l. BlackRock HK Holdco Limited 100 N 11,260,768 (L)

BlackRock Lux Finco S.ar.l. BlackRock HK Holdco Limited o
BlackRock Japan Holdings GK BlackRock Lux Finco S.ar.l. 100 N 11,260,768 (L)

BlackRock Japan Holdings GK BlackRock Lux Finco S.ar.l. =
BlackRock Japan Co., Ltd. BlackRock Japan Holdings GK 100 Y 11,260,768 (L)

BlackRock Japan Co., Ltd. BlackRock Japan Holdings GK =3
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Direct interest Number of
Name of controlled corporation Name of controlling person % interest (Y/N) shares

HERER
ERRZEHRRE BREATHHERERE EHESE% (Y/N) B #AE
BlackRock Holdco 3, LLC BR Jersey International Holdings L.P. 100 N 62,401,016 (L)
638,000 (S)

BlackRock Holdco 3, LLC BR Jersey International Holdings L.P. B
BlackRock Canada Holdings LP BlackRock Holdco 3, LLC 99.9 N 250,000 (L)

BlackRock Canada Holdings LP BlackRock Holdco 3, LLC =
BlackRock Canada Holdings ULC BlackRock Canada Holdings LP 100 N 250,000 (L)

BlackRock Canada Holdings ULC BlackRock Canada Holdings LP =
BlackRock Asset Management Canada Limited BlackRock Canada Holdings ULC 100 Y 250,000 (L)

BlackRock Asset Management Canada Limited BlackRock Canada Holdings ULC =
BlackRock Australia Holdco Pty. Ltd. BR Jersey International Holdings L.P. 100 N 1,278,400 (L)

BlackRock Australia Holdco Pty. Ltd. BR Jersey International Holdings L.P. =
BlackRock Investment Management (Australia) Limited BlackRock Australia Holdco Pty. Ltd. 100 Y 1,278,400 (L)

BlackRock Investment Management (Australia) Limited BlackRock Australia Holdco Pty. Ltd. =
BlackRock (Singapore) Holdco Pte. Ltd. BR Jersey International Holdings L.P. 100 N 19,709,143 (L)

BlackRock (Singapore) Holdco Pte. Ltd. BR Jersey International Holdings L.P. =
BlackRock HK Holdco Limited BlackRock (Singapore) Holdco Pte. Ltd. 100 N 19,476,143 (L)

BlackRock HK Holdco Limited BlackRock (Singapore) Holdco Pte. Ltd. =
BlackRock Asset Management North Asia Limited BlackRock HK Holdco Limited 100 Y 8,215,375 (L)

BlackRock Asset Management North Asia Limited BlackRock HK Holdco Limited =
BlackRock Cayman 1 LP BlackRock Holdco 3, LLC 100 N 62,151,016 (L)
638,000 (S)

BlackRock Cayman 1 LP BlackRock Holdco 3, LLC =
BlackRock Cayman West Bay Finco Limited BlackRock Cayman 1 LP 100 N 62,151,016 (L)
638,000 (S)

BlackRock Cayman West Bay Finco Limited BlackRock Cayman 1 LP FS
BlackRock Cayman West Bay IV Limited BlackRock Cayman West Bay Finco Limited 100 N 62,151,016 (L)
638,000 (S)

BlackRock Cayman West Bay IV Limited BlackRock Cayman West Bay Finco Limited =
BlackRock Group Limited BlackRock Cayman West Bay IV Limited 90 N 62,151,016 (L)
638,000 (S)

BlackRock Group Limited BlackRock Cayman West Bay IV Limited =
BlackRock Finance Europe Limited BlackRock Group Limited 100 N 14,705,161 (L)
485,000 (S)

BlackRock Finance Europe Limited BlackRock Group Limited =
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Direct interest Number of
Name of controlled corporation Name of controlling person % interest (Y/N) shares
HERR
ZRZEHRRE BEREATHHERERE BEHESE% (Y/N) 30 4|
BlackRock (Netherlands) B.V. BlackRock Finance Europe Limited 100 Y 267,000 (L)
BlackRock (Netherlands) B.V. BlackRock Finance Europe Limited =
BlackRock Advisors (UK) Limited BlackRock Finance Europe Limited 100 Y 292,000 (L)
BlackRock Advisors (UK) Limited BlackRock Finance Europe Limited =
BlackRock International Limited BlackRock Group Limited 100 Y 278,000 (L)
BlackRock International Limited BlackRock Group Limited =
BlackRock Group Limited-Luxembourg Branch BlackRock Group Limited 100 N 47,167,855 (L)
153,000 (S)
BlackRock Group Limited-Luxembourg Branch BlackRock Group Limited =
BlackRock Luxembourg Holdco S.ar.l. BlackRock Group Limited-Luxembourg Branch 100 N 47,167,855 (L)
153,000 (S)
BlackRock Luxembourg Holdco S.ar.l. BlackRock Group Limited-Luxembourg Branch S
BlackRock Investment Management Ireland Holdings BlackRock Luxembourg Holdco S.ar.l. 100 N 13,446,855 (L)
Limited
BlackRock Investment Management Ireland Holdings BlackRock Luxembourg Holdco S.ar.l. =
Limited
BlackRock Asset Management Ireland Limited BlackRock Investment Management Ireland Holdings 100 Y 13,446,855 (L)
Limited
BlackRock Asset Management Ireland Limited BlackRock Investment Management Ireland Holdings =
Limited
BLACKROCK (Luxembourg) S.A. BlackRock Luxembourg Holdco S.ar.l. 100 Y 33,708,000 (L)
153,000 (S)
BLACKROCK (Luxembourg) S.A. BlackRock Luxembourg Holdco S.ar.l. =
BlackRock Investment Management (UK) Limited BlackRock Finance Europe Limited 100 N 1,466,001 (L)
485,000 (S)
BlackRock Investment Management (UK) Limited BlackRock Finance Europe Limited =
BlackRock Investment Management (UK) Limited BlackRock Finance Europe Limited 100 Y 12,680,160 (L)
BlackRock Investment Management (UK) Limited BlackRock Finance Europe Limited =
BlackRock Fund Managers Limited BlackRock Investment Management (UK) Limited 100 Y 1,466,001 (L)
485,000 (S)
BlackRock Fund Managers Limited BlackRock Investment Management (UK) Limited =3
BlackRock (Singapore) Limited BlackRock (Singapore) Holdco Pte. Ltd. 100 Y 233,000 (L)
BlackRock (Singapore) Limited BlackRock (Singapore) Holdco Pte. Ltd. =
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Direct interest Number of
Name of controlled corporation Name of controlling person % interest (Y/N) shares
HizER
ERRZEHRRE BREATHHERERE BHBESE% (Y/N) B #AE
BlackRock UK Holdco Limited BlackRock Luxembourg Holdco S.ar.l. 100 N 13,000 (L)
BlackRock UK Holdco Limited BlackRock Luxembourg Holdco S.ar.l. =
BlackRock Asset Management (Schweiz) AG BlackRock UK Holdco Limited 100 Y 13,000 (L)
BlackRock UK Holdco Limited =

BlackRock Asset Management (Schweiz) AG

and (b) details of BlackRock, Inc.’s derivatives interests are as follows:

o Unlisted derivatives — Cash settled: 4,294,000(S)

5. (L) denotes long position, (S) denotes short position and (P) denotes lending pool.
Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules during the reporting period and as at the latest practicable date prior to
the issue of this annual report.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

M

Strategic Cooperation Framework agreement and Product
Promotion Cooperation Framework Agreement between Kingdee
China and CloudHub

As the 2019 strategic cooperation framework agreement expired on 31 December
2019 and the transactions contemplated thereunder would continue to be entered
into on a recurring basis, on 31 December 2019, Kingdee China (a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company) and Shenzhen CloudHub Network Co.,
Ltd. (“Shenzhen CloudHub") entered into: (a) the 2020 Strategic Cooperation
Framework Agreement: Shenzhen CloudHub appoints Kingdee China as a
distributor (the “Cloud-Hub Products Distributorship”); and Shenzhen CloudHub
agrees to use the profession in mobile office platform to provide sales support,
business consultation and other services for the sale of Kingdee different kinds of
ERP light App (the “Kingdee Products Sales Support Services”). The pricing for
the transactions under the Cloud-Hub Products Distributorship and the Kingdee
Products Sales Support Services should be determined by reference to market
prices offered to any independent third party by Shenzhen Cloud-Hub and/or
Kingdee China (as the case may be) for the distribution of similar products and
provision of similar services. The annual cap for the year ended 31 December 2020
approved by the Board was RMB60,000,000 and the actual transaction amount was
RMB51,607,702; and (b) the 2020 Product Promotion Cooperation Framework
Agreement: Kingdee China agrees to use its channels and networks to promote the
Public Cloud Products of Shenzhen Cloud-Hub in consideration for a promotion
fee payable by Shenzhen CloudHub to Kingdee China. The annual cap for the year
ended 31 December 2020 approved by the Board was RMB15,000,000 and the
actual transaction amount was RMB7,233,327. The terms of the two agreements
were both one year from 1 January 2020.

As both the 2020 strategic cooperation framework agreement and the 2020 product
promotion cooperation framework agreement have expired on 31 December 2020
and the transactions contemplated thereunder shall continue to be entered into on
a recurring basis, on 4 January 2021, Kingdee China and Shenzhen CloudHub
entered into the 2021 strategic cooperation framework agreement and the 2021
product promotion cooperation framework agreement, pursuant to which the parties
agreed to continue the existing cooperation as disclosed above with each other for
a term of one year commencing from 1 January 2021. The annual caps for the year
ending 31 December 2021 approved by the Board are (a) RMB60,000,000 under
the 2021 strategic cooperation framework agreement; and (b) RMB15,000,000
under the 2021 product promotion cooperation framework agreement.

Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 2 January 2018,
2 January 2019, 31 December 2019, 2 January 2020 and 4 January 2021,
respectively, for further details.
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2020 Partnership Agreement between Kingdee China and Kingdee
Medical

On 31 December 2019, Kingdee China (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) and Kingdee Medical Software Technology Co., Ltd. (“Kingdee
Medical”) entered into the 2020 Partnership Agreement, pursuant to which Kingdee
China agreed to authorise Kingdee Medical to be its sale partner so that Kingdee
Medical can purchase Kingdee EAS and Kingdee Cloud-Stellar (private clouds)
products from Kingdee China and then distribute those products in the PRC for
a term of one year commencing from 1 January 2020. The annual cap for the
year ending 31 December 2020 approved by the Board, which is the maximum
aggregate amount payable by Kingdee Medical to Kingdee China regarding
the distribution of Kingdee China’s products is RMB3,300,000 and the actual
transaction amount was RMB1,041,448.

Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 31 December 2019 for
further details.

Lease Agreements between Kingdee China and Suishou
Technology

Pursuant to a lease agreement dated 1 January 2018 entered into between Kingdee
China (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) and Shenzhen Suishou
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Suishou Technology”), with regard to renting of offices to
Suishou Technology for a term commencing from 1 January 2018 to 31 December
2020 (both days inclusive). The annual cap for the continuing connected
transactions approved by the Board is RMB13,420,146 for each of the years ended
31 December 2018, 2019 and 2020.

On 1 January 2019, Kingdee China and Suishou Technology also entered into
another lease agreement (together with the lease agreement dated 1 January 2018
above, the “Lease Agreements”) under which Kingdee China agreed to lease an
additional office to Suishou Technology for a term of three years commencing
from 1 January 2019. The aggregate annual caps for the continuing connected
transactions contemplated under the Lease Agreements (being the aggregate of
the annual rentals and charges) are RMB14,327,900 for each of the years ended/
ending 31 December 2019, 2020 and 2021 as approved by the Board.

The actual rental paid by Suishou Technology to the Kingdee China for the year
ended 31 December 2020 was RMB10,209,464.

Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 30 June 2017, 2 January
2018 and 2 January 2019, respectively, for further details.

Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited

@)

©)

Annual Report 2020

ERTEESREREBRBESFRE

E—NETZA=+t—H" @%*I%
A2ETRR)HSREFUMMEERA
(ERBREDIZ_ZT_ZFEEHFHE ﬁ%
*IH%%%EFWEEM%%ﬁ LA & 4

BREASKPHBERIASRSEEEZ(FLE
BERUNFEE—FNHE  HRBRBE =
ZTF-A-RAE—F  LEESHENE

ECECTF+A=T-BNERF LR A
SREERERTEZERS BEASEPE
SRR ERRERARS300,0007T - B
BREZ SRR/ A RS04 4487T -

HEF2EHMA_T—
/N i

NE+=ZA=+—H

®RPEEBFRRERGR

%:g—ﬂi—ﬂ—ﬁ'ﬁﬁ¢ﬁ%25%

RRE)ERYITEEFRHER AR (BEFR
HDJi%Fﬁﬂ%“*%K?ﬂ&mﬁ =4
#HESMRE T \F-A-BRE_F
“ZE+A=T-HBEEEMA) - K&
EgHAENBE—_T - \F+-_A=1+—H "
“E-NEFTZA=t—R" _7_7$+_
A=+ —HLEFESFOAFELRERSZ
2 PR AR#13,420,1467T ©

T-NF—A—H 2RPEEBFHE
ﬁJi%Fﬂ‘ﬁm%“*%EZﬁmﬂ =47
FELA—FT-NF-A-BRENEER
& oEAIEERR)  BRE-T-NF—
A—HE=%- ﬁ“‘é%‘%?ﬁtxﬁﬂ’]@i_? N
F O ECRER-T-—F+-A=+—H
HEERFHEE %%ETﬁLﬁmT%@LX
SFNFE FREFEGIFEARERGHRAR
14,327,900 ©

BE_Z_THF+_A=+-HHREPAEF
MERASETEXVNERESSR/ARE
10,209,4647C

HIEE2EHMAE-T
TZ-NFE—A-HE=-Z
o

—+FRA=1+H =
—NF—AZBZAR



REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EEEHE

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the Directors (including the independent
non-executive Directors) considered that the terms of the transactions and their respective
annual caps discussed above have been entered into (i) according to the agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable, (ii) on normal commercial terms and
in the interests of the Company and shareholders of the Company as a whole, and (iii) in
the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged the Company’s auditor
to perform certain agreed-upon procedures in respect of the continuing connected
transactions set out above on a sample basis. The auditor has reported their factual
findings on the selected samples based on the agreed procedures to the Board and has
confirmed that the continuing connected transactions set out above have complied with the
requirements under Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules in respect of the abovementioned connected transactions. Save as disclosed above,
during the year ended 31 December 2020, there were no other connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions of the Company which require the compliance with any
of the reporting, announcement or independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Related Party Transactions

Details of the related party transactions undertaken in the usual course of business of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in Note 37 to the financial
statements.

Save as otherwise disclosed in “Continuing Connected Transactions” above, the related
party transactions set out in Note 37 to the financial statements did not fall under the
definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Competing Interest

None of the Directors or their respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had an
interest in a business, which competes or may compete with the business of the Group.

Management Contracts

No management contracts concerning the whole or any substantial part of the business of
the Company were entered into or existed during the Reporting Period.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The percentages of sales and purchases for the year attributable to the Group’s major
customers and suppliers, respectively, are as follows:
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Sales

- the largest customer 0.99%
- the five largest customers in aggregate 2.91%
Purchases

- the largest supplier 15.98%
- the five largest suppliers in aggregate 32.41%

At no time during the year had the Directors, their associates or any shareholder of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any interest in the major customers or suppliers set out above.

Indemnity of Directors

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in Section 469 of the Companies Ordinance)
for the benefit of the Directors is currently in force and was in force throughout this year.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this report, the Group has
complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in the places where the Group operates
in all material respects.

Environmental, Social and Governance

Details of the Group’s environmental policies and performance as well as the Group’s
relationships with its stakeholders during the reporting period will be included in the 2020
Environmental, Social and Governance Report to be published by the Company.

Retirement Scheme

Details of the retirement scheme operated by the Group are set out in Note 29 to the
financial statements.

Auditor

PricewaterhouseCoopers was appointed as the external auditor of the Company for
the year of 2020, and there has been no change in the Company’s auditor in any of the
preceding three years. A resolution for the re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as
the Company’s auditor will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.
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Appreciation

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our sincere thanks to all our managements
and staff for their dedication during the period. Also, | would like to thank our shareholders
for their continuous support.

By order of the Board

Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited
Chairman

Xu Shao Chun

Shenzhen, the People’s Republic of China, 24 March 2021.

This report, for which the Directors collectively and individually accept full responsibility,
includes particulars given in compliance with the Listing Rules for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained
in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or
deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement
herein or this report misleading.
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Group consistently promotes good corporate governance, pursuing the five principles
of ensuring the rights and interests of shareholders, abiding by the directives of the
Board and management, promoting full disclosure and transparency, ensuring the equal
treatment of stakeholders, and strengthening internal controls and supervision. The
Company endeavors to enhance its enterprise value, so as to ensure the Company's long-
term and stable development and safeguard the interests of its shareholders. The details of
the corporate governance practices of the Company are set out below.

The Company has applied and complied with all the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules throughout
the financial year ended 31 December 2020 except for code provision A.2.1. For details
and reasons for the deviation, please refer to the section headed “Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer”.

Board of Directors

l. The responsibilities of the Board

The Board is the core of corporate governance of the Company. Its major
responsibilities are as follows:

(1) to convene general meetings, report to shareholders and implement the
resolutions of general meetings;

(2)  to review and approve the mid- and long-term strategic plans and
management strategies of the Group;

(3)  to review and approve critical investment and acquisition projects, the
issuance and repurchase of securities, and other plans for financings,

amalgamation, compensation, recruitment and dismissals;

(4)  to review and approve the Group’s budget plans, profit distribution plans
and loss remedy plans;

(5)  todraft amendments to the Articles of Association, and to propose changes
in registered capital;

(6)  toapprove Directors’ remuneration plans as authorized by shareholders;

(7)  to listen to the working report of the Chief Executive Officer and to review
the work of the Chief Executive Officer; and

(8)  to review and approve the Share Award Scheme and the Share Option
Scheme.
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The Board shall empower the senior management of the Group to implement the
decisions of the Board and all members of the senior management of the Group
shall be appointed by the Board. In entrusting management and administrative
functions to the senior management, the Board provides clear instructions
regarding the powers delegated to them, and prior approval of the Board is
required before the senior management makes any key decisions and commitments
on behalf of the Group. The senior management and the Company Secretary will
report to the Board on updates on legal and regulatory developments, business
and market changes and the strategic development of the Group to facilitate the
performance of the Board’s duties. The Board has maintained effective supervision
over the Group’s strategic plans and key policies, management and assessment
of risks, and effective controls over business operations. The members of the
Board and senior management have fully committed to their roles, ensured that the
Group’s development strategies are in line with the changes in the economy and
market, and acted in good faith with a view to furthering the Shareholders’ long-
term interests.

Composition of the Board

As at 31 December 2020, the Board comprised seven members, including two
executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors. The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2020 and
up to the date of this annual report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xu Shao Chun (Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lin Bo (Chief Financial Officer)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Dong Ming Zhu
Mr. Zhou Bo Wen (appointed on 18 March 2020)
Mr. Shen Yuan Ching (resigned on 18 March 2020)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Gary Clark Biddle

Mr. Ni Zheng Dong (appointed on 4 January 2021)
Mr. Liu Chia Yung

Mr. Cao Yang Feng (resigned on 4 January 2021)

Throughout the reporting period, the number of independent non-executive
Directors exceeded one-third of the Board. The Directors have professional
background in finance, technology and management, respectively. They have
extensive experience and independent views in their respective areas of expertise so
that they can provide professional advice in respect of the long-term development
of the Company. The biographies of the Directors are set out in the “Directors and
Senior Management” section on page 29 to 33 of this annual report.
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The term of appointment of each of the Directors (including non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors) is two years. According to the
Articles of Association, each Director shall retire by rotation at least once every
three years and all the retiring Directors are eligible for re-election at the AGM
in that year. At the AGM, three Directors, namely Mr. Xu Shao Chun, Ms. Dong
Ming Zhu and Mr. Zhou Bo Wen shall be retired by rotation and be eligible for re-
election. Additionally, Mr. Ni Zheng Dong who was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 4 January 2021, shall hold office only until the AGM and
shall also be eligible for re-election at the AGM.

None of the Directors who shall be retired and proposed for re-election has
a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

As at the date of this annual report, to the best knowledge of the Board, save as
disclosed in this report there is no financial, business or family relationship among
the members of the Board or the chief executives.

Board Meeting/General Meeting

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company convened 5 Board meetings
and one AGM. The following table shows the details of the Directors’ attendance:
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Attendance/Number of Meetings

HEER SRRy

Board Meetings AGM
Directors EE EFgeR BRBEXE
Executive Directors BiTER
Mr. Xu Shao Chun (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) ~ %A EFSA(BELTIFEREFNTE) 5/5 11
Mr. Lin Bo (Chief Financial Officer) WEEE(ERTEE) 5/5 i
Non-executive Directors ERITESR
Ms. Dong Ming Zhu ERKTL 5/5 i
Mr. Zhou Bo Wen (appointed on 18 March 2020) BEXRERZE=ZEF= A+/\HEMD) 5/5 i
Mr. Shen Yuan Ching (resigned on 18 March 2020) RLTELEMR-Z-TE=A+/\BET) 1/5 0/1
Independent non-executive Directors BIAHTESR
Mr. Gary Clark Biddle Gary Clark Biddlest & 5/5 0/1
Mr. Liu Chia Yung ARERE 5/5 i
Mr. Cao Yang Feng (resigned on 4 January 2021) EMREER T —F—ANAGT) 5/5 i
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Directors were given sufficient notice of Board meetings in accordance with the
Listing Rules and the Articles of Association. Directors were consulted in advance
regarding the agenda of Board megtings. Notices of regular Board meetings were
given to all Directors at least 14 days in advance of the meetings. For all other
Board meetings, reasonable notices were given. The agenda and other relevant,
complete and reliable accompanying materials were sent to the Directors at least
three days before each meeting. Each Director is aware of his/her obligation to
allocate adequate time to deal with the Company’s affairs.

At the meetings of the Board held during the year ended 31 December 2020,
the matters dealt with by the Directors include but not limited to the following:
formulating the overall development strategy of the Company, considering
and approving the Company’s 2019 annual report and the 2020 interim report,
approving grant of award shares, approving the continuing connected transactions
and discussing other major matters. The secretary of the Board has recorded the
proceedings of each Board meeting by keeping detailed minutes, including all
decisions made by the Board together with concerns raised and dissenting views
expressed (if any) by the Directors. All minutes are kept by the secretariat of the
Board and any relevant files including the agenda, documents and minutes are
open for any Directors’ inspection.

Continuous professional development of Directors

To fully comply with the requirements of the Code on the continuous professional
development of Directors, the Company has provided all Directors with documents
and information aiming at developing and refreshing their professional knowledge
and skills, together with other information (including monthly updates) on the
development of business, operation, activities and corporate governance of the
Company from time to time to assist them to fulfill their responsibilities. Each
of the Directors has been provided with comprehensive induction when they are
first appointed to ensure that they are fully aware of the business and operation
of the Group, and the responsibilities and obligations of Directors under the
Listing Rules and other rules and regulations. The Company has organized regular
trainings for Directors regarding their roles, functions and duties to assist them
in understanding their responsibilities under the Listing Rules and other related
laws and regulations through real case study; and to ensure the Directors are
timely and completely informed of the operations of the Company. Pursuant to
the requirements of the Code, all Directors should provide their training record
to the Company. According to the training records provided by the Directors, the
trainings attended by them during the reporting period are summarized as follows:
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Corporate Governance,
Regulatory Development

and Trainings on

other Relevant Topics

LERETR EERRR
Director EE Hfth4HRE EE RN
Executive Directors MITESR
Mr. Xu Shao Chun (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) BIOEREESESEIFEFREFHNTE) v
Mr. Lin Bo (Chief Financial Officer) WREE(EEVHE) v/
Non-executive Directors EHITES
Ms. Dong Ming Zhu EfizEr Sodun v
Mr. Zhou Bo Wen (appointed on 18 March 2020) BiEXGEEMR—E=ZF= A+ /\BED v
Mr. Shen Yuan Ching (resigned on 18 March 2020) BITEAEMN-_ZE 2= A+/\BHEHD v
Independent non-executive Directors BIEMITES
Mr. Gary Clark Biddle Gary Clark Biddlet 4 v
Mr. Liu Chia Yung IR E v/
Mr. Cao Yang Feng (resigned on 4 January 2021) EgEERZTE_—F— ANHBET) v

(2)  When Directors are asked to express their views on the Company’s connected )
transactions (if any), incentive schemes, internal controls, etc., the Company
retains auditors, financial advisers and/or lawyers and other relevant independent
professionals to provide independent professional advice to assist the Directors in

fulfilling their responsibilities.

(3)  With regard to insurance cover in respect of possible legal actions against 3)
the Directors when performing their duties, the Board had entered into a
“Liability Insurance Contract of Directors, Supervisors and Officers” with Huatai

Property&Casualty Insurance Co. Ltd..

Board Committees

The Board has set up four specialized committees, namely the audit committee, the
remuneration committee, the nomination committee, the corporate governance and strategy
committee to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. The compositions of
these committees are set out below. The meeting procedures of the committees follow the
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statutory procedures and the respective Terms of Reference and Modus Operandi.
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Audit Committee

As at 31 December 2020, the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
comprised three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Gary Clark Biddle
(chairman), Mr. Cao Yang Feng (resigned on 4 January 2021) and Mr. Liu Chia Yung.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are as follows:

(1)

making recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the external auditor, approving the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditors, and any questions of resignation or dismissal
of the auditors, reviewing and monitoring the external auditor's independence, the
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards, the committee shall discuss with external auditor the nature and scope
of the audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences, and acting as
key representative body for overseeing the Company'’s relations with the auditor;

developing and implementing policy on engaging an external auditor to supply
non-audit services, and identifying and making recommendations on any matters
where action or improvement is needed;

meeting with the Company’s auditors at least twice a year to review and to monitor
completeness of the Company’s financial statements and annual reports and
accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly reports,
continuing connected transactions, and reviewing significant financial reporting
judgements contained in them;

reviewing the management letter to the management issued by the auditor, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about the accounting
records, financial accounts or systems of control and management’s response, and
ensuring that the Board responds promptly to the matters raised by the external
auditor in the management letter;

considering any significant or unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected
in the report and accounts;

reviewing the Company’s financial controls, risk management and internal
control systems, the Group’s financial and accounting policies and practices, and
discussing the risk management and internal control systems with management to
ensure that management has performed its duty to have effective systems;

considering major investigation findings on risk management and internal control
matters;

performing the internal audit function by ensuring co-ordination between the
internal and external auditors, and by ensuring that the internal audit function is
adequately resourced and has appropriate standing within the Company, and to
review and monitor its effectiveness;
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(9)  reporting to the Board on the matters in the provision of the Code; and

(10)  reviewing arrangements employees of the Company can use, in confidence, to
raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control
or other matters.

Please refer to the Terms of Reference and Modus Operandi of the Audit Committee
published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company for further details on
the roles and functions of the Audit Committee.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2020, the Audit Committee held three
meetings, at which the Audit Committee:

(1) reviewed the Company’s annual financial report and internal control report for the
year 2019, and submitted them to the Board for approval;

(2)  discussed the Company’s internal control system and reviewed the Company’s
interim financial report of 2020, and submitted it to the Board for approval;

(3)  communicated with the auditor regarding the 2020 annual audit work and audit
plans; and

(4)  reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems, including financial, operational and compliance controls, with the senior
management and the auditors of the Company.

Details of attendance at the Audit Committee meetings during year ended 31 December
2020 are set out below:
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2020 Attendance/

Number of Meetings

k- Jomk- 3. 3

Audit Committee Members BEMRA HEFERRE

Mr. Gary Clark Biddle (Chairman) Gary Clark Biddlef‘ii(EEf“) 33

Mr. Cao Yang Feng (resigned on 4 January 2021) BIRAEERN T —F— ANHEEID) 3/3

Mr. Liu Chia Yung IR E 3/3

The Audit Committee, having reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management  EAZZ E €2 el ALk @E’Jﬂﬁﬁ%ﬂi BB R
and internal control systems, was satisfied with the effectiveness of the Company’s internal ~ EVE R4 - WA R A BFEAZTN 6L

audit function.
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Remuneration Committee

As at 31 December 2020, the remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) comprised two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Liu Chia
Yung (Chairman) and Mr. Cao Yang Feng (resigned on 4 January 2021), and one executive
Director, namely Mr. Xu Shao Chun.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

(1) make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure of
remuneration, long-term incentive and performance management of the Directors
and senior management, and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing such policy and structure, and on the principles and
criteria of remuneration and on long-term incentive modes, implement such policy
and review the same periodically;

(2)  as authorized by the Board, draw up proposals for and make recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration of directors, and salary of individual executive
directors and senior management;

(3)  review and assess the annual performance of directors and senior management,
and review and approve their remuneration, by reference to the corporate goals and
objectives set up by the Board;

(4)  draw up and review proposals for remuneration and make recommendations to the
Board on the adjustment of such remuneration from time to time, by reference to
the Company’s development strategies and goals approved by the Board and the
operating strategies as adjusted by the Board from time to time;

(5)  consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere in the Group;

(6)  review and ensure that the appointment and termination terms for the directors and
senior management are fair;

(7)  review and approve compensation arrangements (if any) relating to any loss or
termination of their office or appointment, or dismissal or removal for misconduct
to executive directors and senior management to ensure that they are consistent
with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and appropriate; and

(8) ensure that no Director or any of his/ner associates is involved in deciding his/her
own remuneration, and that the remuneration of a non-executive Director who is a
member of the Remuneration Committee shall be determined by the other members
of the Remuneration Committee.

Please refer to the Terms of Reference and Modus Operandi of the Remuneration
Committee published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company for further
details on the principal roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee.
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During the financial year ended 31 December 2020, the Remuneration Committee held two
meetings to review the remuneration package of Directors and senior management, discuss
the grant of awarded shares pursuant to the Company’s share award scheme, and submit
proposals to the Board.

Details of attendance at the Remuneration Committee meetings during year ended 31
December 2020 are set out below:

FNEEENBE_Z_TF+_A=1+—HILFE
ARBITTRER  BREFIAFRESRSAE
BABZHMETE - SmRIEAA B A &R
HED - WAEFSRGERT R

BE_Z_ZHET_A=t+—HRFEHFNZEeaR
HEFIBEIIMT -

2020 Attendance/

Number of Meetings

k- =k =3 3

Remuneration Committee Members 54=1:34 HEFERE
Mr. Liu Chia Yung (Chairman) RIRFEFTE(ER) 2/2
Mr. Xu Shao Chun ROEFRAE 2/2
Mr. Cao Yang Feng (resigned on 4 January 2021) B LEER_E_—F— AMWBABT) 2/2

Nomination Committee

As at 31 December 2020, the nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) comprised of one executive Director, namely Mr. Xu Shao Chun (Chairman),
and two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Cao Yang Feng (resigned on 4
January 2021) and Mr. Liu Chia Yung.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (“Board Diversity Policy”) since August
2013. The policy sets out the approach to achieve diversity in the Board which will include
and make good use of the differences in skills, experience background and industry
experience, gender, knowledge and other qualities of the members of the Board. These
differences will be considered in determining the optimum composition of the Board and
all Board appointments will be based on merit, having due regard to the overall effective
functioning of the Board as a whole. The Company believes that diversity can strengthen
the performance of the Board, promote effective decision-making and better corporate
governance and monitoring. The Nomination Committee also monitors the implementation
of this policy and reports to the Board on the achievement of the measurable objectives for
achieving diversity under this policy. All Board appointments are made on a merit basis
with due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board members. Selection of candidates
will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, experience (professional or otherwise), skills and
knowledge. The ultimate decision will be made upon the merits and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.

The Nomination Committee has reviewed the Board Diversity Policy this year and was
satisfied that the diversity of the Board was optimal.
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Nomination Policy

The nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”) was adopted by the Company on 16
March 2012.

The Company embraces high transparency in the Board member selection process. The
Nomination Policy aims to ensure the Board maintains a balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business.
The Nomination Committee has been delegated to identify individuals suitably qualified
to become Board members and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships. The Board is ultimately responsible
for selection and appointment of new Directors.

The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

(1)

formulate nomination policy for the identification, selection and nomination of
candidates for the role of Directors for the Board’s consideration and implement
and review the Nomination Policy;

formulate, review and update, as appropriate, the diversity policy for the Board’s
approval having due regard to the requirements of the Listing Rules, review and
update the objectives that the Board has set for implementing such policy, and
monitor the progress made;

review the structure, size, composition and the balance of skills, knowledge,
experience, length of service and diversity (including as to gender and ethnicity)
of the Board and other factors which may be relevant to its effectiveness at least
annually;

identify individuals suitably qualified to become Directors, and to select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships, having due regard to the Board's diversity policy and composition
profile requirements and ensuring that such individuals will be considered on
merit and against objective criteria and have the time and ability to contribute to
the Board;

make recommendations to the Board with regard to its composition profile
including, where appropriate, preparing a description of the capabilities required
for any particular appointment and on any proposed changes to the Board to
implement the Company’s corporate objectives and strategy;

assess the independence of the independent non-executive Directors including
any conflict which a Director may have with the interests of the Group and
review the independent non-executive Directors’ annual confirmations on
their independence; and make disclosure of its review results in the corporate
governance report in the annual report of the Company;
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7 review annually the time commitment required from a Director (especially

independent non-executive Director) to perform his or her responsibilities;

8) give full consideration and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or reappointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors
and review such plan periodically;

9 develop the procedures for the performance evaluation of the Board and the
committees of the Board, evaluate the performance of the Nomination Committee
following such procedure and review these terms of reference to ensure that the
Nomination Committee is operating at its maximum effectiveness;

(10) recommend candidates to the Board to fill vacancies or new positions on the
committees of the Board as necessary or desirable; and

(11) review the feedback in relation to the role and effectiveness of the committees of
the Board arising from the evaluation of the Board and/or any committees of the
Board and make recommendations of any changes.

Please refer to the Terms of Reference and Modus Operandi of the Nomination Committee
published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company for further details on
the roles and functions of the Nomination Committee.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2020, the Nomination Committee held two
meetings, at which the Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size, compasition
and the balance of skills, knowledge, experience, length of service and diversity of the
Board, reviewed the time commitment required from a Director (especially independent
non-executive Director) to perform his or her responsibilities, and made recommendations
to the Board on the nomination of Mr. Zhou Bo Wen as the non-executive Director.
The criteria of selecting and recommending candidates for directorship adopted by the
Nomination Committee are the qualifications and skills of talent, coupled with goals and
development strategy of the Company.

Details of attendance at the Nomination Committee meetings during the year ended 31
December 2020 are set out below:
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Number of Meeting

bt o 3. 3

Nomination Committee Members 54=1: 34 HEFERY
Mr. Xu Shao Chun (Chairman) wL %?ﬁi(fﬁ) 2/2
Mr. Cao Yang Feng (resigned on 4 January 2021) BRAERZTZ—F— ANAEBT) 2/2
Mr. Liu Chia Yung BIRZESAE 2/2
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Corporate Governance and Strategy Committee

As at 31 December 2020, the corporate governance and strategy committee of the
Company (the “Strategy Committee”) comprised one executive Director, namely Mr. Xu
Shao Chun (Chairman) and one non-executive Director, namely Ms. Dong Ming Zhu.

The main responsibilities of the Strategy Committee set out in the rules of the Board are as
follows:

(1) considering and formulating the mid- and long-term strategies of the Company;
(2)  assessing the effects of the implementation of the Company’s strategies;

(3)  making recommendations on critical issues prescribed in the Articles of Association
and other issues requiring approval from the Board, including those related to
investments, financings, etc.; and

(4)  performing the duties in relation to the compliance with code provision D.3.1 of the
Code.

During the year under review, the Strategy Committee had reviewed and performed the
corporate governance duties as mentioned in (1)-(4) above.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

During the reporting period, Mr. Xu Shao Chun assumed the roles of both the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company which deviated from code provision A.2.1
of the Code that the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. The Board considers that Mr. Xu
Shao Chun, as one of the main founders of the Group, has abundant knowledge of the IT
industry and unique strategic perspectives. The Board believes that he can lead the Group
to formulate effective strategies and react promptly to market changes. His continual
service in both roles is beneficial to the stable and healthy development of the Company.
However, the Board will review and make appropriate changes when necessary in order to
enhance the level of corporate governance.

Adoption of Code of Conduct Regarding Director’s
Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct (the “Code of Conduct”) regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required standard set out in the
Model Code. The Company, having made specific enquiry of all the Directors, confirms
that the Directors have complied with the Code of Conduct and the Model Code throughout
the accounting period covered by this annual report. The Code of Conduct and the Model
Code are also applicable to other specified senior management of the Company.
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The details relating to the securities of the Company held by the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Chief Executive’s Interests or Short Positions in the Shares,
Underlying Shares or Debentures” of the “Report of Directors” on pages 42 to 44 of this
annual report.

Internal Control and Risk Management
1.  Risk Management and Internal Control Governance Framework

The Company has an internal audit function that is used to safeguard the Group’s
establishment and maintenance of an appropriate and effective system for risk
management and internal control, which is a system designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss.

The Board is responsible for the said system for risk management and internal
control and reviewing its effectiveness. The Board reviews the Company’s risk
management and internal control system annually and will take necessary and
appropriate measures to maintain such system and control the effect of risk
management for the purpose of safeguarding shareholders’ investments and the
Company’s assets.

The management has specially established an internal audit department, which is
responsible for supervising and auditing the Company’s risk management, internal
control system and business operation and using internal audit procedures to
conduct independent assessment. At the same time, business organization and
functional operation departments identify, assess and handle the risks in their
charge according to their duties and carry out risk management procedures and
internal control measures within their respective business and functional operation
scope, and the management reports to the Board.

2.  Risk Management
2.1 Risk Management Procedure

The Company has designed its major risk management steps, including risk
identification, risk assessment, risk response and risk control and reporting:

° Risk identification: The Audit Committee reviews the effect of the Group’s
internal control each year and will urge all the business units and functional
departments to identify the internal and external risks that may exist in the
course of operation;

° Risk assessment: All the business units and functional departments assess
the possibility of occurrence of identified risks and the extent of their
impact and screen out major risks;
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2.2

2.3

° Risk response: The risk responsibility department properly uses risk
avoidance, reduction, sharing or tolerance to draw up a risk response
scheme according to identified major risks and the Group’s risk tolerance,
S0 that the Group can reasonably allocate resources for risk response and
reduce its overall risk level to an acceptable level;

° Risk control and reporting: The Group’s risks are controlled and reported
through comprehensive use of risk pre-warning indicators, internal audit
and regular risk summarization reports.

Internal Gontrol

The Company has designed an internal control system according to the Group's
business management features and has established an internal audit department
that is responsible for internal control, conducts risk-oriented internal control
evaluation with respect to daily fund management, financial report management,
purchase and asset management, business operation and collection flow on an
annual basis and to follow up the completion of any rectification discovered in
internal control on a regular basis. The management has reviewed and assessed
the effectiveness of the Group’s system for risk management and internal control
and such review includes financial monitoring, operation monitoring, compliance
control and other major monitoring and risk management functions.

Response to Major Risks

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group audited and assessed the
Company’s annual risk according to the enterprise’s risk management framework
and finalized measures for major risk response and control to prevent or appease
the possibility of occurrence of any major risk to the Company.

The Company has steadily developed its operational business in the past year.
Due to the fierce market competition of the industry, the Company’s market
competition in terms of key customers and cloud services may be intensified and
customers may continue to change their preference and have a higher expectation
of cloud services; marketing costs of the Company’s cloud service are high and
the launch of new business is faced with inherent market risks; at the same time,
as the Company’s brand influence is enhanced, its intellectual property rights are
infringed more frequently and infringers conceal or destroy tort evidence so that it
becomes more difficult for the Company to safeguard its intellectual property rights
and certain financial loss may be caused to the Company.
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2.3

T CTFFR

s [RREY: RREETHMAUESIEINE
RER  SEEERRARE @ ZEE
R - K - DEIERETA
HERBEE TR AREREEESIER
RERELRER - (£ 5ENEER LK
EREAIRZHE

s [REREZFR{RSE  KANARBREEE
% AEES  THRRAEREET
A HERERREITEEREE

PEBEEHE

ARRBAAREEBERSE - Rt T AR
EERAG YRIARAPFIEEARMEZET
fF SFHEARESER WBREERE -
REE - BERE  XBEBERBGUREEET
TURBRAZ R NETE - EHREANE
HIMHBWTKIFR - BREERN  FHETA
SERREERAMEERGOERE - ZF
BIREeRUKeEs  BIFERRARERS
TRERLAREEDLE -

EXEREY

AEBE_Z_TEREBOERREEER -
HRRERFEETRBREZ NS - XHIE
BRERES - EIREsE - I SERA QR
BARRBELRTEE

ARREBRE-FREXGEE TREER
HRATERITETISHFR AU - REEER
BEFREXBIHOTISHEAENE - &P
fRaF NErE (L - HEXBRBEENEES
RAHERBTSREREARARS - ER
HHEEFEBRENTISER  RREEARA R
MR EIER  RAABERTIRETRE
% REARRRE  #RREIZEFHA
BINT RBRAMBEREREE - FJRERHEAT
IR —TEREIEBX

SRERBRGtEEERAT 11



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEERRSE

Since January 2020, the new strain of Coronavirus (2019-nCoV) has spread
over the world, National Health Commission of PRC has classified the new strain
of virus as second-level infectious diseases and will take first-level prevention
and control measures. In the face of these significant risks, the Company took
appropriate and reasonable measures to monitor and prevent the risks, including
formulating epidemic prevention and control mechanism, issuing early warnings,
completely cooperating with the national and local government, informing
and training employees, disinfecting workplaces and public areas, collecting
employees’ health-related information to prevent the spread of coronavirus, and
strictly complying with national and local government’s relevant instructions and
notices.

During the period of the epidemic, the Company continues to conduct its business
by the ways of mobile officing, video broadcast training by invited experts, video/
voice conference, online purchase, management and service platform management
and cloud management and services, continuing to offer efficient and innovative
solutions to help more enterprises to solve mobile officing, management, financial
management, personnel management and industrial transformation problems,
rather than being stagnated in course of the epidemic striking. The Company
became one of the cloud platforms designated by Shenzhen Municipal Government
for the projects which helps the cloud transformation of small and medium-sized
micro enterprises, with launching credit coupons of Kingdee Jingdou Cloud and
Kingdee KIS.

In order to respond to possible operational risks and guarantee the healthy and
sustained development of operational business, the Company (i) has formed a
cloud service development framework based on mutually synergetic development
by optimizing and adjusting its strategic organization; (ii) has allocated a lot of
resources to research and develop new technologies and enhance product value;
(iii) has encouraged its employees to conduct constant product innovation and
optimize customer experience; (iv) has improved the ecological chain of customer
service; and (v) has committed to creating a very competitive cloud platform. In
order to reduce the marketing risk of new business, the Company has established a
major marketing review procedure to strictly review marketing schemes, reasonably
control promotional costs and budget, conduct internal control over promotional
effect and decrease the operational risk caused by marketing. To strengthen the
protection of its intellectual property rights, the Company has enhanced the entire
staff’'s consciousness of such protection through legal advocacy and training, has
further reinforced the market monitoring for the protection of intellectual property
rights and has preserved and notarized tort evidence to prevent its intellectual
property rights from being infringed.
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3. Inside Information and connected transaction

With respect to the procedure and internal control measures for handling and
disclosing inside information, the Company understands its liabilities under the
Listing Rules and the SFO and the major principle that any inside information must
be announced on a timely basis. The Company has formed comprehensive and
proper procedures for internal processing and announcement of information and
comprehensive and proper internal control measures according to the Guidelines
on Disclosure of Inside Information as promulgated by the Securities and Futures
Commission, so as to disclose relevant information to its shareholders and the
regulator in a timely, accurate and appropriate manner.

The Company is committed to strengthening the internal promotion and education
of its internal control relating to connected transactions and the development of
proper internal control system. During the reporting period, the Company has
further standardized the Group’s Connected Transactions standard management
system for the internal control through pre-transaction reporting, information
disclosure, sustained monitoring of transactions and regular exchange meetings
as well as mutual cooperation of the Company’s departments, improving the
scientificity, standardization and effectiveness of the Group’s management and
operation, and enhanced the Group’s risk prevention ability.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board, after reviewing the
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and internal control system,
considered that such internal control system was adequate and effective, and the
Company had complied with the code provisions relating to internal control under
the Code and had not discovered any material matter that may affect the Group’s
financial, operational and compliance control and risk management functions.

Investor Relations

The Company is committed to maintaining good relations with investors. The Company
has set up a specialized department with staff to attend to investor relations affairs. The
Company actively participates in various investor forums physically or via conference
calls, provides investors with the information necessary for them to form their views on the
Company’s performance and reports investors’ feedback to management in a timely manner
in order to improve operations and corporate governance of the Company. To promote
transparency, the Company has announced its operating performance to shareholders and
other stakeholders. These disclosures include: (1) publishing interim and annual reports;
(2) making press releases; (3) meeting regularly with investors; (4) publishing analysts’
reports on the Company; and (5) conducting market consultations.

The Company firmly believes that increased transparency in the capital market will improve
corporate governance and will be beneficial to the long-term development of the Company.
The Company welcomes suggestions from investors and shareholders in relation to
the development of the Company to the Company’s investor relations team via email or
telephone.

3. AFHARRREXRS

BRRERERARESHREMA BB
i ARBABERE(ETRID R(EH R
HERPDEBITOEE  UEAREHER
AR AMHERRE « ARRRTEES
MIAEESRERS] BN —ExTELE
EHANEEE R AHEMARIZEAN DB
B - ARECRENES - R - BEMARRMEE
HERERREE -

ARRBIFBRNNINBEBREXZNNESE
KB B E N EREHIHEER - mEH
A ARRRRZRER  EERE - X5%
SEEE  THRIRERZFNEET - RAIE
MPIEERS E—FRETERBEERIZN
NEERER BT ARERMELNRE
M~ REMEAARUE - 1R T AR R R

ak
Be °©

BE-Z-ZHFT-_A=+—HIFE - &
BT RAREREEMAGZEH RGN EEZ
% BEERARARFNAIMEZNENTR
KRB - MARB IR ET TR EEARE
22T RME - REREAI e E R BT
B EFEE  AREEUNAREERE
MEREIE

REERE

ARB—MIERBIREERR - NAORRBZEP
FIRBETEEREERFE BREZ2EBRANIMEEER
wE - HREESE  MABEEEZHN - RRE
ERFABEAAFERARNKE  IHREEER
NESEEREEEANEARKENRER - RTRITE
AE  ARAIABREREEESANERARRES
KBBN  HERMEMGRES  EHRERRE
(TR BT IMEERE RFR  QTEHER Q)
SEKEERE  (HBEMOTEE AR R OHITR

ARBFREEBEATS NERSEAEENNENE
EKE . BREFRAERR - AAREVIREEM
RIS - BREHIREEARRREEHR
BB O ZFHNARERER EEE

CTOTHEFER cHERRUEEERAR 713



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEERRSE

Shareholders’ Rights

The shareholders’ rights are set out in the Articles of Association. Pursuant to Article 72 of
the Articles of Association, general meetings shall be convened on the written requisition
of any two or more members of the Company deposited at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a principal
office, the registered office, specifying the objects of the meetings and signed by the
requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists hold as at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the requisition proceed
duly to convene the meeting to be held within a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s)
themselves or any of them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights, may
convene the general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which
meetings may be convened by the Board provided that any meeting so convened shall not
be held after the expiration of three months from the date of deposit of the requisition, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) in convening the meeting as a
result of the failure of the Board to convene the meeting shall be reimbursed to them by the
Company.

Any inquiry is welcome to be presented to the Board by shareholders and any proposal
relating to the business, strategy and management of the Company is welcome to be
presented at general meeting for review and discussion. Shareholders’ inquiries and
relevant proposals to the Board can be submitted in written form to the Company Secretary,
and will be dealt with by the Chief Executive Officer or the chairman of the relevant board
committees or other senior management members.

The contact information of the Company Secretary is as follows:

9/F, York House, The Landmark, 15 Queen’s Road, Central, Hong Kong
Fax: (852) 2845 9292

Email: Simonsiu@sfks.com.hk

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company held the annual general megting
on 12 May 2020. All shareholders were given at least 21 days’ (and 20 business days’)
notice for such annual general meeting. The chairman of the Board, executive Directors
and the auditor attended such annual general meeting to communicate with shareholders
and answer questions from shareholders.

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, all resolutions of the general meetings should be voted on
by poll on the basis that one vote is attached to one share (except where the chairman,
in good faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates purely to a procedural or
administrative matter to be voted on by a show of hands), and the poll results would be
published on the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company
(www.kingdee.com).
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Amendments to the Articles of Association
During the reporting period, no amendment had been made to the Articles of Association.
External Auditor

PricewaterhouseCoopers was appointed as the external auditor of the Company for
the year of 2020, and there has been no change in the Company’s auditor in any of the
preceding three years. During the year ended 31 December 2020 PricewaterhouseCoopers
provided audit and non-audit services to the Company, the remuneration paid/payable
to PricewaterhouseCoopers was RMB3,400,000 for audit service, RMB3,530,000 for
non-audit services which included financial due diligence services and Group strategic
consulting service. A resolution for re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

The Board is responsible for ensuring the appropriate preparation of accounts, and the
accuracy, fairness and comprehensiveness of the financial statements of the Company. The
statement by the auditor about their reporting responsibilities is set out in the “Independent
Auditor’'s Report” section on pages 76 to 82 of this annual report.

Company Secretary

The Company engages an external service provider to provide company secretary services,
and Mr. Siu Man Ho, Simon being the main contact person of the external service provider,
has been appointed as the Company Secretary. The Company Secretary may contact Ms.
Yi Wei, the Board secretary of the Company pursuant to code provision F.1.1 of the Code.

Improving Corporate Governance

The Company will continue to regularly review its corporate governance measures
and practices to ensure that they are on par with the corporate governance standards
of international corporations and in light of the changing regulatory requirements
and investors' needs. This will also help in the long term to continuously develop the
Company, and enhance its corporate value.

Appreciation

The Board would like to express its sincere appreciation to its shareholders, customers,
suppliers and bankers for their continued support to the Group. The Board also wishes to
thank the Group’s management and staff for achieving remarkable progress in the Group’s
business and their dedication and commitment to improving the Group’s management.

On behalf of the Board

KINGDEE INTERNATIONAL SOFTWARE GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
Chairman

Xu Shao Chun

Shenzhen, the People’s Republic of China, 24 March 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders of

Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Kingdee International Software Group Company
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 83 to 196,

which comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020;

° the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

o the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of
significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

° Recognition of ERP and cloud implementation revenue

o Impairment assessment of goodwill
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter HREHEE EEHPNAESERELER
Recognition of ERP and cloud implementation revenue ERPREE MM A BIRERR

Refer to Note 4.1(b) and Note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Revenue from ERP and cloud implementation
contracts recognised for the year ended 31
December 2020 amounted to RMBY93,778,000
which represented approximately 29.6% of total
fevenue.

Revenue of ERP and cloud implementation contract
is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress of work performed and
acknowledged by the customers. The corresponding
implementation costs are recognised as incurred
under cost of sales.

We focus on this area due to the significance of
ERP and cloud implementation revenue to the
consolidated financial statements and the significant
judgments and estimates made by management
in determining the progress of work performed,
which are subject to high degree of estimation
uncertainty. The inherent risk in relation to the
recognition of ERP and cloud implementation
revenue is considered significant due to uncertainty
of significant assumptions used.

We have performed the following procedures to address this key audit
mater:

Understood, evaluated and tested the key controls over revenue
recognition of ERP and cloud implementation contracts and assessed
the inherent risk of material misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and other inherent risk factors.

Understood, evaluated and tested the IT general controls over the
system where the information of the ERP and cloud implementation
contracts are recorded and maintained.

Selected ERP and cloud implementation contracts, on a sample basis,
to perform the following audit procedures:

(i) Agreed the key contract information (conract price, payment
terms and list of work tasks with standard man days for each
task efc.) to the relevant contracts;

(ii Agreed the progress of work performed recorded by
management to the position set out in the progress reports
acknowledged by the customers;

(iii) ~ Obtained confirmations from selected customers in respect
of the progress of work performed and compared such to
the progress reports used by management in estimating the
progress of work performed; and

(W) Checked the mathematical accuracy of the calculations of
the progress of work performed and the revenue recognised
based on that.

We found the significant judgments and estimates applied in
determining the progress of work performed were supported by the
gvidence we obtained.
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter RREHEE EEHPNAERRRELER
Impairment assessment of goodwill HERETE

Refer to Note 4.1(d) and Note 8 to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had cost
of goodwill of RMB181,245,000 which was
arisen from the acquisition of Shanghai Guanyi
Cloud Computing Software Co., Ltd. (“Guanyi").
Impairment charge on goodwill of RMB22,881,000
was recognised for the year ended 31 December
2020.

Management engaged an independent valuer to
assist them in carrying out the goodwill impairment
assessment. For the purpose of assessing
impairment, the Group considered that Guanyi is a
separate group of cash-generated-units (the “Guanyi
0GU") and the goodwill is allocated to the Guanyi
0GU. Management assessed the impairment of
goodwill by determining the recoverable amount of
the Guanyi CGU, representing the higher of it fair
value less cost of disposal and valug-in-use which
is calculated using cash flow forecasts based on
the financial budgets approved by management.
The goodwill impairment assessment involves
significant judgements and estimates which include
the adoption of appropriate valuation method and
the use of key assumptions (mainly revenue growth
rale and eamings before interest, taxes, depreciation
and amortisation (‘EBITDA") margin during the
forecast period, terminal growth rate and pre-tax
discount rate).

We focus on this area due to that the goodwill
impairment assessment involves significant
judgements and estimates, which are subject to high
degree of estimation uncertainty. The inherent risk
in relation to the goodwill impairment assessment
is considered significant due to uncertainty of
significant assumptions used.

We have performed the following procedures to address this key audit
mater.

(i) Understood, evaluated and tested management's key controls in
relation to the goodwill impairment assessment and assessed the
inherent risk of material misstatement by considering the degree
0f estimation uncertainty and other inherent risk factors.

Assessed the appropriateness of the Group’s identification of
cash-generated-units and allocation of goodwill based on the
Group's accounting policies and our understanding of the Group's
business;

(iif) Assessed the competency, capabilities and objectivity of the
external valuer engaged by the Group;

(iv) Obtained the valuation report of goodwill impairment and
engaged our in-house valuation experts to assess the
appropriateness of valuation method adopted by management and
the reasonableness of pre-tax discount rate used by management;

(v) Challenged and assessed the reasonableness of the key
assumptions used in the assessment with the involvement of our
in-house valuation experts. For revenue growth rate and EBITDA
margin during the forecast period, we compared them with the
relevant historical data and the approved financial budgets of
Guanyi; for terminal growth rate, we assessed it with reference to
the long-term expected inflation rate based on our independent
Tesgarch;

(vi

Performed a retrospective review by comparing the prior year's
cash flow forecasts with the current year's results to assess the
reliability and historical accuracy of management's forecasting
IOCESS;

(vii) Evaluated the reasonableness of sensitivity analysis performed by
management on the key assumptions to understand the impact
of reasonable changes in assumptions on the estimated goodwill
impairment; and

(vii) Checked the mathematical accuracy of the calculations in the
qoodwill impairment assessment.

We found the significant judgements and estimates applied in the
gooawill impairment assessment were supported by the evidence we
obfained.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all of the information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Audit Committee for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit
gvidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYRHENRE

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Tong
Yu Keung.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
SHMBRAR

As at 31 December

»+=—A=+—H
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
st AR®TT AREFT
Assets gE
Non-current assets FEiREEE
Property, plant and equipment TEE - TR RE 6 746,148 546,524
Right-of-use assets FREEE 7 181,920 106,869
Intangible assets mREEE 8 785,500 923,323
Investment properties "E MY 9 1,650,971 1,856,200
Investments in associates B IR E 10 403,032 282,649
Deferred income tax assets BB HEE 23 11,380 -
Financial assets at fair value through profit URAREEEBEES T AlBEH
or loss CREE 12 622,739 428,791
Trade and other receivables JFEE LR SR e L A MR 14 49,526 22,000
Loans to third parties BTEZFER 14 57,449 12,350
Long-term bank deposits RESRITIER 14 30,000 -
4,538,665 4.178,706
Current assets mEEE
Inventories "E 15 18,922 7,357
Trade and other receivables JFEE LT R SR e L A MR 14 333,712 308,153
Loans to third parties BTFEZFER 14 316,666 230,869
Contract assets EREE 5 356,658 451,685
Contract obtaining costs A RESEAR 5 142,280 60,667
Financial assets at fair value through profit AR EBEEBEEEEH T ABED
or loss TRIEE 12 993,656 596,151
Derivative financial instruments TESMIA 13 4,540 -
Pledged bank deposits BHEMIRITER 16 27,206 128
Short-term bank deposits EHRITER 16 1,236,143 687,667
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBSFED 16 2,753,631 1,898,770
6,183,414 4241 447
Total assets HEE 10,722,079 8,420,153
Liabilities afE
Non-current liabilities ERBAER
Lease liabilities HEaE 7 22,320 20,282
Trade and other payables FEATER SR R Eo A A 3K 24 - 69,028
Deferred income tax liabilities FEEFTSH A G 23 142,693 187,079
165,013 276,389

T CTFFR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B ORI &

As at 31 December

»+=ZB=+—H
2020 2019
—EEF —E-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BosE AR#TT AREFT
Current liabilities mERE
Trade and other payables JE IR SR B H A PRI K 24 794,603 615,596
Contract liabilities ARAE 5 1,483,943 996,996
Borrowings R 22 120,000 199,625
Lease liabilities HEBE 7 28,712 21,341
Current income tax liabilities SHMEHARE 39,671 39,085
Deferred income PEIERA 25 131,660 125,450
2,598,589 1,998,093
Total liabilities HaeR 2,763,602 2,274,482
Net assets REE 7,958,477 6,145,671
Equity a
Equity attributable to owners of the NFIRBERS
Company
Share capital A& A 18 83,331 80,037
Share premium PR A (B 18 5,052,514 2,963,096
Other reserves H AR 19 732,002 686,532
Retained earnings BiFW= 20 1,921,784 2,257,263
7,789,631 5,986,928
Non-controlling interests FFEHINER 168,846 158,743
Total equity wiEs 7,958,477 6,145,671

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with

the accompanying notes.

The financial statements on pages 83 to 196 were approved by the Board of Directors on
24 March 2021 and were signed on its behalf.

Xu Shaochun
wOE
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
SRR R

Year ended 31 December
#FE+-_A=1+—HILEE

2020 2019
bt ol 3. 3 —T-hF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k=3 AR®TTT AREFIT
Restated
(Note 2.2)
(M7%2.2)
Revenue from contracts with customers HEE 7 ERE REERA 5,26 3,356,445 3,325,590
Cost of sales SHERAN 27 (1,147,437) (922,373)
Gross profit ] 2,209,008 2,403,217
Selling and marketing expenses HEREEER 27 (1,425,080) (1,374,014)
Administrative expenses THEA 27 (413,610) (386,324)
Net impairment losses on financial assets and & EYEE LA R EEREB L IFEE
contract assets 27 (69,885) (48,416)
Research and development costs 7 R PR RN 27 (983,874) (586,827)
Fair value gains on investment properties BEEMERN R BEZB K 9 5,550 39,994
Other income and (losses)/gains - net Hig A K (8518) /FI1§ —F58 28 262,538 376,157
Operating (loss)/profit SHIEE (R, &2 (415,353) 423,787
Finance income e 48,789 19,768
Finance costs W5 E A (12,855) (14,398)
Finance income — net B — F R 30 35,934 5,370
Share of losses of associates EEBERERNEIENTE 10 (3,320) (33,026)
(Loss)/profit before income tax MERFRSME(BR) 38 (382,739) 396,131
Income tax credit/(expense) FriSFiEeE,(BMA) 31 41,044 (30,333)
(Loss)/profit for the year FEEE(ER) 27 (341,695) 365,798
(Loss)/profit attributable to: (E548)  FIEBER :
Owners of the Company NARVEZFEB A (335,479) 372,580
Non-controlling interests FEFE 1 pE A (6,216) (6,782)
(341,695) 365,798
(Losses)/earnings per share for (loss)/ ~ ZFATIERFHE AR (5i8),
profit attributable BFEK (SR, &2
to owners of the Company (LlsiAR%SE)
(expressed in RMB cents per share)
— Basic —EAK 33 (10.12) 11.52
— Diluted — e 33 (10.12) 11.22

The above consolidated income statement should be read in conjunction with the

accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
aftEalkRR

Year ended 31 December
8FE+-_A=1+—HLEE

2020 2019
—ECEF —ZT—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARET T

(Loss)/profit for the year FE(BR), 28T (341,695) 365,798
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: Hthiza (i8) 27 :

ltemns that may be reclassified to profit or [0ss: HE gt B EE By EH

Currency translation differences INEBITHE ERE (24,631) 284

Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year, FEHMEGS (HIR)2F - NBRE
net of tax (24,631) 284

Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year FERTE (BB, BT (366,326) 366,082

Total comprehensive (loss)/income attributable to:  #iF4 (558)  BFIRER :

Owners of the Company AARE=FBA (360,110) 372,864
Non-controlling interests FEVE B MR A (6,216) (6,782)
(366,326) 366,082

BX

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read in conjunction it & GH4R & WS R FER M —HFBIE -
with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
SHEREER

Atributable to owners of the Company

RRARREE AR
Retained Non-controlling
Shargcapitl  Sharepremium — Other reserves eamings Tota interests Total equity
e AR(E EfisE L Bi FHEIMER B
Notes RMBI00D RMBI00 RMBI000 RMBI00D RMBI000 RMBI000 RMBI00D
W ARETR  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2019 ZE-nE-R-RER 79,585 2903459 565,259 1917757 5,466,060 66,607 5532667
Profloss) ortheyear EERA/ (BB - - - 372580 372580 (6,762 365,79
Other comprehensive income RisaRH
Curtency ranslton diferences INENEER - - 2 - 24 - 284
Total comprehensive incomeyloss) GoERY/(BR) - - b 312580 372864 (6,782) 366,082
Transactions with owners RESKTANRS
Employees share opton scheme: BIRIAREE -
~Valug ofemployee sevices received -BIRBEE - 1032 - - 1032 - 1032
- Proceeds from shares ssued -EARhmER 1) 531 - - 54184 - 54184
Share award pla: Wi feErEE -
~Valug ofemployee srvics received -BIRBEE - 86,660 - - 86,660 - 86,660
~Transer shares fo e avarcegs upon esing. R BEBRAEHAEZEA - (61,787) 56,207 - (25,580) - (25.580)
Trnsactions vith non-controling nferes’s BRI RSN S % - - 64,782 - 64782 65218 110000
Dividend distribution iRy - - - (33,074) (33074 - (33,074)
Contbution fiomnon-contollng ineress—~ SEFEHIMER AT RRA - - - - - 53700 53700
Total transactions with owners, HESBTAURBEADSN
recognised directly in equity EfTRRANEE 4 59637 120,989 (33074) 148,004 9,918 26,922
Balance at 31 December 2019 “E-AE+ZRET-RER 80,037 2.9630% 686,532 2057263 5,386,928 158743 6,145,671

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with

the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

EHEREER
Atiributable to owners of the Company
INGE TN
Retained Non-controlling
Share capital ~ Share premium  Other reserves gamings Total interests  Total equity
2 by Rkl L ait  FHAMEE s
Notes RMB’000 RNB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RB'000 RMB’000 RNB'000
fr  AR®Tm AERTRE ABRTT AE%Tn ABRTRE ABRTR  AERTR
Balance at 1 January 2020 “ECEE-A-RER 80,037 2,963,096 686,532 2,257,263 5,986,928 158,743 6,145,671
Loss for the year EEEE - - - (335,479) (335,479) (6,216) (341,695)
Other comprehensive loss iz A bR
Currency ranslaton diferences NEREER - - (24.631) - (24.631) - (24,631)
Total comprehensive loss GAUER - - (24,631) (335,479) (360,110) (6,216) (366,326)
Transactions with owners HESRTANRS
Employees share opton schem; BIRAMEE -
— Praceeds from shares issued ~BARAIER n 36,329 - - 36,652 - 36,652
Share award plan: IR HEE -
~Valug of employee srvices received -BIRKEEE - 100,857 - - 100,857 - 100,857
= Tranter st fo e awarcees uponvesing. — —~ B BRHERLELZRA - (09,443) 4,920 - (34,523) - (34,523)
Transactions with non-controling interests SIHTHIERNR 5 % - - 5,181 - 5,181 16,319 21,500
Diienddisbuion BFIAR - (36,756) - - (36,756) - (36,756)
[sstg of new shares BIHR 18 2,91 2,088,431 - - 2,001,402 - 2,001,402
Total ransactions with owners, RESKTAURBEANSH
recognised directly in equity ETRRANEE 3,204 2,089,418 70,101 - 2,162,813 16,319 2,179,132
Balance at 31 December 2020 ZECEE+CRSt-RER 83,331 5,092,514 132,002 1,921,784 1,189,631 168,846 1,958,471

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with

the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
SHRERER

Year ended 31 December
H#E+_A=1+—HLEE

2020 2019
—EEFE —ZE-NEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k=S AR®TT ARBFIT
Cash flows from operating activities BETHNRERE
Cash generated from operations excluding net cash outflow KEEENRE TS/ NEEEEK
in loans to third parties from the micro-credit business BTYE=FEFFR2RL) 34(a) 604,347 1,092,951
Net cash outflow in loans to third parties from N EEEBRE=FERN
the micro-credit business FBRE M (104,475) (95,318)
Interest paid 2 E (12,719) (15,377)
Income tax paid B FSH (14,136) (19,329)
Net cash inflow from operating activities BEEIHELERAS 473,017 962,927
Cash flows from investing activities HEFDMHRERE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BETHE - IRERE (42,601) (38,612)
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment HETHE - TREREMER 34(a) 295 6,064
Purchases of intangible assets BEEMEE (310,288) (476,145)
Prepayment for an investment AR ER (12,000) -
Payment for acquisition of a subsidiary BT ARIMT HARE - (6,200)
Pledged bank deposits and short-term and long-term BRI T S A K2 BRI R AR ER T
bank deposits placed - net FRENFE (605,554) (327,969)
Interest received BEUFE 41,702 57,942
Purchases of financial assets at fair value through profit BENUARBEEEEABE
or loss HemEE (4,689,463) (3,068,500
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets BENARBEFEEZFHAES
at fair value through profit or loss KB E ERTSR 4,189,898 2,708,664
Loans provided to related parties RULAR BRSO 1E TR 37(e) (470,000) (300,000)
Repayments of loans from related parties fndez)chapthEllinpe 37(e) 470,000 1,024,031
Investments in associates iR (132,500) (177,763)
Proceeds from disposal of an associate REBENTER 69,885 45,702
Dividend received from an associate gl HopNG ol 10 - 50
Net cash outflow from investing activities BREETHRARHRE (1,490,626) (552,736)
Cash flows from financing activities MEITHHRESTE
Proceeds from issue of new shares BEITHAR R 18 2,091,402 -
Proceeds from issue of shares as a result of exercise of options A& {A TTHEFTIS X 18 36,652 54,184
Transactions with non-controlling interests BRIER MR S 35 4,000 100,000
Capital contribution from non-controlling interests FEFE MR R A AR A = 41,700
Proceeds from borrowings IEENZESE N 34(c) 120,000 263,625
Repayments of borrowings (EEER 34(c) (199,625) (365,125)
Principal elements of lease payments HENRHEEHS (46,848) (22,312)
Dividend paid DI S (36,715) (33,056)
Settlement of payables for previous acquisition of SR ARTFEEREF AR
non-controlling interests in a subsidiary FEPE I A 2 H R (3,175) (6,283)
Net cash inflow from financing activities MEEHELERRE 1,965,691 32,733
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents Re&RREFEMPEM 948,082 442,924
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents EXRFEHERE LRSEBNNLE (93,221) 2,998
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year FYRERALEED 16 1,898,770 1,452,848
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year EXEERALEED 16 2,753,631 1,898,770

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the

accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBERRME

2.1

General information

Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands in 1999 as an exempted company with limited
liability. The address of its place of business is Kingdee Software Park, 2 Keji 12th
Road South, Hi-tech Industrial Park, Nanshan District, Shenzhen, Guangdong
Province, the Peaple’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally engaged in the cloud services,
including enterprise cloud services, finance cloud services, industry cloud services
and other cloud services; and enterprise resource planning (“ERP”) business,
including development and sales of software products, sales of hardware products,
provision of implementation services, software solution consulting services,
maintenance services, upgrade services and other supporting services.

The Company has its primary listing on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Stock Exchange”) since 15 February 2001.

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), unless otherwise
stated.

Summary of significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.
The financial statements are for the Group consisting of the Company and its
subsidiaries.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”)
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and investment properties, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgment in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed
in Note 4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O B R AR

2.1

(a)

(b)

Summary of significant accounting policies 2
(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued) 21
New and amended standards adopted by the Group (a)

The Group has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time
for their annual reporting period commencing 1 January 2020:

e Definition of Material — amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8

e Definition of a Business —amendments to IFRS 3

e |nterest Rate Benchmark Reform —amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7

e Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting

The amendments listed above did not have any impact on the amounts recognised
in prior periods and are not expected to significantly affect the current or future
periods.

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted (b)
The following certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been

published that are not mandatory for 31 December 2020 reporting periods and
have not been early adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Ot B R AR M

2  Summary of significant accounting policies 2 EESHRFEREG
(Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 BEEEE

(b)  New standards and interpretations not yet adopted (Continued) (b)

ARERRFRARRRARAORER - &
SR R 1% (W)

Effective for annual
periods beginning on or after
HEWMEFR

Amendments to IFRS 16

I B B 75 S 5 2 I 381655 (185 T)
Amendments to IAS 1

PR & ST HERISE 5%
Amendments to IFRS 3

I PR B 7 e 5 2 AU S8 355K (185 T)
Amendments to IAS 16

BUFR & 5T RIZE165% (125])

Amendments to IAS 37

BUFR & ST HERIZE3TR (185])

Annual Improvements project

FENEIEE

IFRS 17

I B B 75 S 5 HE B SB TSR

Amendments to IFRS 17

BB B 75 i MR BT 5R (18 RT)

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2

BB B 75 5 MR B 1SR (183T) &2
BIfR g5t ERIE A E2R(185])

Amendments to IAS 8

I B B 75 s 5 HE B 5 857% (18 R])

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28

B BA 7 R 2RI B 105R (18 7]) &2
BB & st RI 52857 (155])

Leases — COVID-19 related rent concessions 1 June 2020
HE - S EIEERNEeEE —ZZETFRA—H
Classification of liabilities as current or non-current 1 January 2022

BESBARDEEIFRBEE —E-—F—AF—H
Reference to the conceptual framework 1 January 2022
DEBSAELR —E-—F—H—H

Property, plant and equipment — proceeds before
intended use

1 January 2022

M - BRE L EE - BE SRR as - —#F—A—H
Onerous contracts - cost of fulfilling a contract 1 January 2022
BlEER—EITE RBEKA —E-—F—-A—H
Annual Improvements 2018-2020 cycle 1 January 2022
R \FE_Z-BFENE —E--F—-H—H
Insurance contracts 1 January 2023
RigERE —E-=F—A—H
Insurance contract 1 January 2023
RBER —T=%—HA—H
Disclosure of Accounting Policies January 1, 2023
BRI —E-=4F—A—H

Definition of Accounting Estimates

BEHATESR

Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associates or joint ventures

January 1, 2023
—E-=F—HF—H
To be determined

REERHEBECENABELE ZAN fFE
BEHNEXLE

RBERENYL S - BRIELEEEER
FARKRNBEMEMAFARNREZ ST A&
HERBELSATE -

Based on management’s preliminary assessment, these standards are not expected
to have a material impact on the entity in the current or future reporting periods and
on foreseeable future transactions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SOt R RM
2  Summary of significant accounting policies 2 EEgHBERBEEGR
(Continued)
2.2 Prior year adjustments 22 LEEERAE
Prior to 1 January 2020, the Group recorded certain outsourcing service fees in ZEZEF-A—B2H  AEBEHEER
relation to ERP and cloud implementation in “selling and marketing expenses”. HEER PR T HERP R EE B R L
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group reassessed the nature of INERBE BE_TZTF+—A=+—H
the above outsourcing service and considered that these service fees charged by LEFE - AKBEHMNG T LN REHE
outsourcers are directly related to ERP and cloud implementation services rendered g WRAINIEWERAE L RIS E B AR E
by the Group to its customers, thus they should be accounted for as and recorded MERFIREMERPREE RS ERZERE - A
in “cost of sales”. Adjustments have been made to reclassify outsourcing service I IEE B SR AE [ E KA - BEfEL AR
fees of RMB270,370,000 which were previously recorded in “selling and marketing BRABEZTE-NFT+ZA=T—HLFE
expenses” for the year ended 31 December 2019 to “cost of sales” to conform with MIHEREEBRIARNINERBERAR
the current year presentation. These changes have been applied retrospectively in #270,370,000 T E R FHEEE KA - LAFE AR
accordance with IAS 8 and there were no net impact on the profit for the year ended FEMNE2HRAIN - GLEEFCIRRBEK ST
31 December 2019 and the financial position as at 31 December 2019. RIZESSEMER HHE_Z—NF+=A
=t+—HEFEMNFBEMEBEZE_T—NF+=
A=+—BrUBRIEFHE -
The impact on the consolidated income statements for the year ended 31 December HE-_Z-NFT+-A=+—HILEFEHEH
2019 is presented as below: BREROFZENT
Year ended 31 December 2019
BlE—=—nhF
+ZA=+—H&EE
RMB’000
AREETTT
Increase in cost of sales SHEE ARG N 270,370
Decrease in gross profit EFE (270,370)
Decrease in selling and marketing expenses HEMHEEBRNRD (270,370)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Ot B R AR M

2.3

2.3.1

2.3.2

2.3.3

94

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity where the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business
combinations by the Group (refer to Note 2.4).

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown
separately in the consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement
of financial position respectively.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not
control or joint control. This is generally the case where the Group holds between
20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for
using the equity method of accounting (see Note 2.3.3 below), after initially being
recognised at cost.

Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognised at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
profits or losses of the investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s share of
movements in other comprehensive income of the investee in other comprehensive
income. Dividends received or receivable from associates are recognised as a
reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted investment equals
or exceeds its interest in the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the other entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O B R AR

2.3

2.3.3

2.3.4

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting (Continued)
Equity method (Continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity-accounted investees have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is tested for impairment in
accordance with the policy described in Note 2.12.

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in
a loss of control as transactions with equity owners of the Group. A change in
ownership interest results in an adjustment between the carrying amounts of the
controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling
interests and any consideration paid or received is recognised in a separate reserve
within equity attributable to owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account for an investment because
of a loss of control or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit
or loss. This fair value becomes the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to
another category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable IFRSs.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence is
retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Ot B R AR M

2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all business
combinations, regardless of whether equity instruments or other assets are
acquired. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary
comprises the:

° fair values of the assets transferred
° liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired business
° equity interests issued by the Group

° fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, and

° fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are, with limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-controlling interest
in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net
identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the:

e consideration transferred

e amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity, and

e acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquired entity

QOver the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If those amounts are less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the
business acquired, the difference is recognised directly in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable
in the future are discounted to their present value as at the date of exchange.
The discount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being the rate
at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent financier
under comparable terms and conditions. Contingent consideration is classified
either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability
are subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O B R AR

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

(a)

(b)

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying
value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured
to fair value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising from such
remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost also
includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon receiving
dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments, has been identified as the executive directors of the
Company that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are
measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in RMB, which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using
the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end
exchange rates are generally recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Ot B R AR M

2.7

(b)

(c)

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)
Transactions and balances (Continued)

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings are presented in
the income statement, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in the income statement on a net basis within “Other losses/
gains — net”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported
as part of the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation differences on non-
monetary assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and
translation differences on non-monetary assets such as equities classified as fair
value through other comprehensive income are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations (none of which has the
currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented
are translated at the closing rate at the date of that statement of financial
position;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of
the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

On consalidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of any
net investment in foreign entities and of borrowings are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is sold or any borrowings
forming part of the net investment are repaid, the associated exchange differences
are reclassified to profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss on sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O B R AR

2.8

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as
a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance are charged in the consolidated income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their costs to
their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

— Buildings 15— 40 years
— Computer and related equipment 5 years
— Office equipment 5 years
— Motor vehicles 5 years

— Leasehold improvements the shorter of the lease term or the useful life
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each reporting period.

Construction in progress represents buildings under construction, which is stated
at actual construction cost less any impairment loss. Construction in progress is
transferred to property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for use.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount
if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.12).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the
carrying amount and are recognised within “Other losses/gains — net” in the
income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Ot B R AR M

2.9

2.10

(a)

100

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising leasehold land and buildings, are
held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that are
not occupied by the Group. It also includes properties that are being constructed
or developed for future use as investment properties. Land held under operating
leases are accounted for as investment properties when the rest of the definition
of an investment property is met. In such cases, the operating leases concerned
are accounted for as if they were finance leases. Investment property is initially
measured at cost, including related transaction costs and where applicable
borrowing costs. After initial recognition, investment properties are carried at fair
value. Changes in fair values are recorded in the consolidated income statement as
part of a valuation gain or loss in “fair value gains on investment properties”.

For a transfer from investment property carried at fair value to owner-occupied
property, the property’s deemed cost for subsequent accounting shall be its fair
value at the date of change in use.

Intangible assets
Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in note 2.4. Goodwill on acquisitions of
subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity
include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment
testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the business combination in
which the goodwill arose. The units or groups of units are identified at the lowest
level at which goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes, being the
operating segments (Note 5).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O B R AR

2.10

(b)

(c)

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)
Research and development expenditure

Research expenditure is recognised as an expense as incurred. Gosts incurred
on development projects (relating to the design and testing of new and improved
software) are recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria are met:

- it is technically feasible to complete the software so that it will be available
for use;

- management intends to complete the software and use or sell it;
- there is an ability to use or sell the software;

- it can be demonstrated how the software will generate probable future
economic benefits;

- adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the software are available; and

- the expenditure attributable to the software during its development can be
reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised include the software development
employee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

Other development expenditures that do not meet these criteria are recognised as
an expense as incurred. Development costs previously recognised as an expense is
not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

Capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible assets and amortised
from when the asset is ready for use on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives of 17 months to 39 months.

Acquired trademarks, licenses and copyrights

Separately acquired trademarks, licenses and copyrights are shown at historical
cost. Trademarks, licenses and copyrights acquired in a business combination
are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Trademarks, licenses and
copyrights have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
the cost of Trademarks, licenses and copyrights over their estimated useful lives of
5 years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Ot B R AR M

2.10

(d)

(e)

2.1

2.12

102

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)
Computer software for own use

Computer software licenses for own use are capitalised on the basis of the
costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software. These costs are
amortised over their estimated useful lives of 1 to 6 years.

Acquired customer relationship

Customer relationship acquired in a business combination are recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date. Customer relationship is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation, amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate the cost of customer relationship over 5 years.

Shares held for share award plan

The consideration paid by the share award plan (Note 21(b)) for purchasing the
Company’s shares from the market, including any directly attributable incremental
cost, is recorded in “Reserves” and the amount is presented as a deduction from
total equity.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are
tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped
at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which
are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O B R AR

2.13

2.13.1

2.13.2

2.13.3

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial assets
Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through QCI or
through profit or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit
or loss or OCI. For investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading,
this will depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at the time
of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model
for managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date,
the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus,
in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when
determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Ot B R AR M

2  Summary of significant accounting policies 2 EBEEEHBRIBEGE

(Continued)

2.13 Financial assets (Continued) 2.13 &RLEE (I8

2.13.3 Measurement (Continued) 2.13.3 EHE(4)

Debt instruments BT A
BEETAEMNBEAEFANAERERZEE
MEBEINURZEENRSRERE - A%
BEEFTEY B TRIET 285

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s business
model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset.
There are two measurement categories into which the Group classifies its debt
instruments:

AR ARG E - R A AKEA R
ReRnEMEE MREARTAER

° Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows °
where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest

are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets
is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or
loss and presented in ‘Other income and gains — net’ together with foreign
exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate
line item in the income statement.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are
measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss and presented net within
‘Other income and gains — net’ in the period in which it arises.

REREARSHF ST - BIZEEMN
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Equity instruments
The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the REBUAR BEHMERRIREEITERER
Group's management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity E NMRASEEEEEEBERIRENLAR
investments in OCI, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and BEMNSFBRFALMERS W - BIEKRE
losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends WRZIBIRER  T2HAREBEFNGMBX
from such investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other income ENHEEER HRRA - EXAKED I
when the Group’s right to receive payments is established. EURFIERERIRS - 2 IREB RS ERHAM
WA R EA U (B518) T A B2 °
Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are recognised in ‘Other HRUA AR BEFEEEZEHTABENSH
losses/gains — net’ in the income statement as applicable. Impairment losses (and BE AR BEEZHIITNERREME
reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not B FE-F5 (EA) - RUA R EE
reported separately from other changes in fair value. SHEFHT AREMEERENERKRE - H
WEBKGARREBLRER) THEMA L E
BEEEHEFIR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O B R AR

2.13

2.13.4

2.14

2.15

2.16

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses
associated with its debt instruments carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by IFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables, see Note 3.1(b) for further
details.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each
reporting period. The accounting for subsequent changes in fair value depends on
whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature
of the item being hedged and the type of hedge relationship designated. Otherwise,
the change of fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss within ‘Other
losses/gains — net’.

The Group did not apply any hedging accounting during the reporting period.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of
business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or
the counterparty.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined on weighted average basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion
and applicable variable selling expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Ot B R AR M

217

2.18

2.19

106

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for software sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade receivables
is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-
current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is
unconditional unless they contain significant financing components when they are
recognised at fair value. The group holds the trade receivables with the objective
of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. See Note 14 for further
information about the Group’s accounting for trade receivables and note 3.1 for a
description of the Group’s impairment policies.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions,
other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts
are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Share capital and shares held for employee share scheme

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to
the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s share capital (treasury
shares), for example as the result of a share buy-back or a share-based payment
plan, the consideration paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs
(net of income taxes) is deducted from equity attributable to the Company’s owners
until the shares are cancelled or reissued. Where such shares are subsequently
reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly attributable incremental
transaction costs and the related income tax effects, if any, is included in equity
attributable to the Company’s owners.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O B R AR

2.20

2.21

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for products or services that have been
acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Tradepayables are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any differences between
proceeds (net of transaction cost) and the redemption value is recognised in the
income statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction
costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will
be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To
the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will
be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated statement of financial position
when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been
extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including
any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or
loss as other income or finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.22

2.23

(a)

(b)

108

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current
period’s taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate for each
jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted
or substantively enacted at the statement of financial position date in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and
considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain
tax treatment. The Group measures its tax balances either based on the most likely
amount or the expected value, depending on which method provides a better
prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities
are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the statement of financial position date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O B R AR

2.23

(b)

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
Deferred income tax (Continued)

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment property that is measured at fair
value is determined assuming the property will be recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that future taxable amounts
will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for temporary differences
between the carrying amount and tax bases of investments in foreign operations
where the company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and where the deferred tax balances
relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset
where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle
on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultangously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In
this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

(i) Investment allowances and similar tax incentives

Companies within the Group may be entitled to claim special tax deductions
for investments in qualifying assets or in relation to qualifying expenditure
(eg the Research and Development Tax Incentive regime in China or other
investment allowances). The Group accounts for such allowances as tax
credits, which means that the allowance reduces income tax payable and
current tax expense. A deferred tax asset is recognised for unclaimed tax
credits that are carried forward as deferred tax assets.
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2.24

(a)

(b)

110

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Employee benefits
Retirement benefits

The Group provides defined contribution retirement plans based on local laws and
regulations. The plans cover full-time employees and provide for contributions
at certain percentage of salary as determined by the respective local government
authorities. The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense
when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent
that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Group
before the normal retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary
redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises termination
benefits at the earlier of the following dates: (a) when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises costs
for a restructuring that is within the scope of IAS 37 and involves the payment
of termination benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based on the number of
employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period are discounted to their present value.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to
the statement of financial position date. Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.25

(a)

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Share-based payment
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based compensation
(including share option schemes and share award plans), under which the entity
receives services from employees as consideration for equity instruments (including
share option and awarded shares) of the Group. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as an
expense over the vesting period.

For grant of share options, the total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted, which includes any market
performance conditions (for example, the Company’s share price); but excludes the
impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions (for example,
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an employee of the entity over a
specified time period); and includes the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for
example, the requirement for employees to hold shares for a specified period of
time). For grant of award shares, the total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the market price of the Company’s shares at the grant date. The Group
also adopts valuation technique to assess the fair value of other equity instruments
of the Group granted under the share-based compensation plans as appropriate.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the number
of shares under options and awarded shares that are expected to vest based on the
non-marketing performance and service conditions. It recognises the impact of the
revision to original estimates, if any, in the income statement, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

In addition, in some circumstances employees may provide services in advance of
the grant date and therefore the grant date fair value is estimated for the purposes
of recognising the expense during the period between service commencement
period and grant date.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new shares. The proceeds
received net of any directly attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital and share premium.
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2.25

(b)

(c)

2.26

112

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Share-based payment (Continued)
Cash-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group granted certain shares to the eligible employees in 2018, which are
to be settled in cash based on the share price of the Company’s shares (see Note
21(c) for details). The Group measures the employee services received and the
liability to pay at the grant date at the fair value of the liability. The fair value of the
employee services received is recognised as an expense over the vesting period.
Until the liability is settled, the fair value of the liability is remeasured at the end
of each reporting period and at the settlement date, with any changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss for the period.

Share-based payment transactions among group entities

The grant by the Company of its equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital contribution. The fair value of
employee services received, measured by reference to the grant date fair value,
is recognised over the vesting period as an increase to investment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity in the parent entity accounts.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will
be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of
the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O B R AR

2.21

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

The Group derives revenue separately or in combination, from cloud services
business (mainly including enterprise cloud, finance cloud, industry cloud and
other cloud services) and ERP business (including sales of software and hardware
products, provision of implementation services, software solution consulting
services, maintenance services, upgrade services, and other supparting services).

Cloud services mainly include Kingdee Cloud, Guanyi Cloud and Jingdou Cloud
related services, which are sold to the end customers directly. Softwares mainly
include Kingdee EAS, Kingdee K/3 WISE and KIS, which are sold either through
distributors or to the end customers directly.

The Group enters into contracts with end customers that can include combination
of standard software, hardware and services which are accounted for as separate
performance obligations because they are capable of being distinct and generally
there is no significant modification or integration and they are not highly dependent
with each other. The Group only sells standard software to distributors. Both
distributors and end customers are regarded as direct customers of the Group as
distributors can control the software and further resell it or sell combined with
other product and related services to end customers.

The transaction price is the price after discount and is a fixed amount upon signing
the contract. The products cannot be returned unless significant problems found,
which rarely happens. The transaction price in an arrangement is allocated to each
separate performance obligation based on the relative standalone selling prices of
the products or services being provided to the customer.

The Group recognises revenue when control of the promised products or service is
transferred to the customer. The customer obtains control of a product or service
if it has the ability to direct the use of and obtain substantially all of the remaining
benefits from that product or service.
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2.27

(a)

(b)

114

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Sales of standard software and hardware

Standard software is a right to use license because the software has standalone
functionality and the customer can use the software as it is available at a point in
time. Licenses are typically delivered by providing the customer an activation code
with access to download the software. The Group recognises revenue for such
licenses at a point in time when the customer has received licenses or the activation
code and thus has control over the software and the Group has present right to
payment. In case there is an update of the standard software, end customers or
distributors are required to pay additional consideration to buy upgraded version.

Sales of hardware and related products are recognised at a paint in time when the
products are delivered and the end customers have physical possession, that is
control over the hardware and related products.

ERP and cloud implementation contracts

Sometimes, customers will request customisation of ERP and cloud based on
customers’ demands and business operations.

Revenue of ERP and cloud implementation contract is recognised over the period
of the contract by reference to the progress of work performed, which is established
according to the value of efforts put in each task (measured by standard man
days for each task) over total value of efforts of the implementation project with
support by progress reports acknowledged by the customers. The corresponding
implementation costs are recognised as incurred under cost of sales.

Variations in implementation work and incentive payments are included in
transaction price to the extent that would have been agreed with the customer.

The Group recognises receivables for performance obligations satisfied over
time gradually as the performance obligation is satisfied and the right to
consideration is unconditional. Judgement is required in determining whether a
right to consideration is unconditional and thus qualifies as a receivable. When
the performance obligation satisfied over time while a right to consideration is
conditional, contract asset is recognised. Contract liabilities primarily reflect
invoices due or payments received in advance of revenue recognition. They are
recognised as revenue upon transfer of control to the customers of the promised
license, products and services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O B R AR

2.27

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Cloud and other services

Cloud services, software solution consulting, maintenance, upgrading, training and
other supporting services are provided mainly in the form of fixed-price contracts.
Revenue related to these services are recognised ratably over the service contract
period. The Group provides cloud services directly to end customers or through
its distributors. For cloud services provided through distributors, the Group is
responsible for delivering the services, paying server fees to external cloud server
vendors to ensure the services are accessible and stable, and the Group has
discretion in establishing the prices for these services. The distributors have the
contractual obligation to follow the Group’s pricing guidance and are not primarily
obligated to the customers for the quality or performance of the services. Therefore
the Group is the principal to the end customers and recognises revenue at the
gross amount billed to the end customers.

Rebates to distributors

The Group offers rebates to distributors based on the respective purchase volume
of distributors. The rebate is not in the form of cash, but as a coupon to be used
on future purchase order, thus it is regarded as a customer option that provides
material right and be treated as a separate performance obligation. The contract
price allocated to the rebates is recognised as a contract liability which is then
transferred to revenue when the coupons are used or expired after 12 months from
grant date.

Financing components

The Group does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the
transfer of the promised software products to the customer and payment by the
customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the Group does not adjust any of
the transaction prices for the time value of money.

Incremental costs of obtaining customer contract

Incremental costs of obtaining customer contract primarily consisting of sales
commissions are capitalised as an asset. The Group amortises assets recognised
from capitalising costs to obtain a contract on a systematic basis to profit or loss,
consistent with the pattern of revenue recognition to which the asset relates.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Micro-credit business

The Group’s micro-credit business revenue derives from interest income. The
Group generates interest income from providing micro-credit loans to borrowers.
Interest income is recognised and accrued based on the effective interest rate
agreed with each borrower over the loan period.

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit atributable to owners
of the Company, excluding any costs of servicing equity other than ordinary
shares by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the
financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the
year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic
earnings per share to take into account:

° the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated
with dilutive potential ordinary shares, and

° the weighted average number of additional ordinary shares that would have
been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares.

Interest income
Interest income from financial assets at FVPL calculated using the effective interest

method is recognised in the income statement as realised gains on financial assets
at FVPL within “Other losses/gains — net”.

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost calculated using the effective
interest method is recognised in profit or loss as part of other income.

Interest income is presented as finance income where it is earned from financial
assets that are held for cash management purposes, see Note 30 below. Any other
interest income is included in other income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O B R AR

2.29

2.30

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Interest income (Continued)

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial assets that subsequently
become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets the effective interest
rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of
the loss allowance).

Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the
date at which the leased asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to the lease and non-lease components based on
their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real estate for which the
Group is a lessee, it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components
and instead accounts for these as a single lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of
different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor.
Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present
value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease
incentives receivable;

° variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially
measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date;
° amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual value

guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise that option, and

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising that option.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also
included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If
that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case for leases in
the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the
individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with
similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

° where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the individual
lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing
conditions since third party financing was received

° uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted
for credit risk for leases held by the Group, which does not have recent
third party financing, and

° makes adjustments specific to the lease, eg term, country, currency and
security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the individual lessee
(through recent financing or market data) which has a similar payment profile to
the lease, then the group entities use that rate as a starting point to determine the
incremental borrowing rate.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease payments
based on an index or rate, which are not included in the lease liability until they
take effect. When adjustments to lease payments based on an index or rate take
effect, the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.30

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is
charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:
° the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any
lease incentives received;

° any initial direct costs, and
o restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful
life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
underlying asset’s useful life. While the Group revalues its land and buildings that
are presented within property, plant and equipment, it has chosen not to do so for
the right-of-use buildings held by the Group.

Payments associated with short-term leases of office are recognised on a straight-
line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease
term of 12 months or less. The Group did not enter any low-value assets lease.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is recognised in
income on a straight-line basis over the lease term (Note 9). Initial direct costs
incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
underlying asset and recognised as expense over the lease term on the same basis
as lease income. The respective leased assets are included in the statement of
financial position based on their nature.
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2.31
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120

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a
reasonable assurance that the grants will be received and the Group will comply
with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the period necessary to match them with the
costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are included in
non-current liabilities as deferred government grants and are credited to the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of
the related assets.

Dividend distribution
Dividends distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability
in the Group's and the Company’s financial statements in the period in which the

dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders or board of directors,
where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O B R AR

3.1

(a)

Financial risk management
Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including
foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

The Group applies various types of derivative financial instruments (foreign
exchange forward contracts,) to mitigate exposures arising from the fluctuations in
foreign currencies of financial assets.

The directors review and agree policies for managing each of these risks and they
are summarised as follows:

Market risk
Foreign exchange risk

The functional currency of the Company and its major subsidiaries is RMB. The
majority of the revenues of the Group are derived from operations in the PRC.

Foreign exchange risk is the risk of loss resulting from changes in foreign currency
exchange rates. Fluctuations in exchange rates between RMB and other currencies
in which the Group conducts business may affect its financial position and results
of operations. The foreign exchange risk facing the Group mainly comes from
movements in the US dollars (“USD”)/RMB and Hong Kong dollars (“HKD")/RMB
exchange rates.

At 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any derivative financial instrument
for which hedging accounting was applied.

At 31 December 2020, if the RMB had weakened/strengthened by 5% against the
HKD with all other variables held constant, loss before tax for the year would have
been lower/higher by RMB80,399,000 (2019: profit before tax for the year would
have been higher/lower by RMB6,279,000), mainly as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of HKD denominated cash at bank and in hand.

At 31 December 2020, if the RMB had weakened/strengthened by 5% against
the USD with all other variables held constant, loss before tax for the year would
have been lower/higher by RMB10,202,000 (2019: profit before tax for the year
would have been higher/lower by RMB18,332,000), mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses on translation of USD denominated borrowing and cash at
bank and in hand.
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Financial risk management (Continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates is mainly attributable to its
borrowings, details of which have been disclosed in note 22. Borrowings carried at
floating rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk whereas those carried
at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest-rate risk.

The Group currently does not use any interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure to
interest rate risk. However, the Group will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

As at 31 December 2020, borrowings of the Group which were bearing at floating
rates amounted to approximately RMB120,000,000 (2019: RMB85,625,000). As
at 31 December 2020, if the interest rates had been 50 basis point higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s post-tax loss for the years
ended 31 December 2020 would has been approximately RMB540,000 (2019:
RMB385,000) higher/lower.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, contractual cash flows of debt
instruments carried at amortised cost, at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)
and deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to
customers, including outstanding receivables.

Risk management

The management manages the credit risk of cash and cash equivalents, pledged
and short-term and long-term bank deposits and wealth management products
(classified as financial assets at FVPL) by transacting with state-owned financial
institutions and reputable commercial banks which are all high-credit-quality
financial institutions in mainland China and Hong Kong.

In relation to trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has two kinds of
distribution channels, one is sales to distributors and the other is sales to end
customers.

For sales to distributors, the Group has assessed the credit quality of the
distributors, taking into account their financial position, past experience and
other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external ratings in
accordance with limits set by management. The compliance with credit limits by
distributors is regularly monitored by management.

(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O B R AR

3.1

(b)

(if)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Risk management (Continued)

For sales to end customers, the Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk in trade receivables since the balance of trade receivables is composed of
numerous individual small items and the exposure spreads over a large number of
customers.

The Group’s investments in debt instruments, including loans to third parties, are

considered to be low risk investments. The credit ratings of the investments are
monitored for credit deterioration.

For other receivables, management considers the probability of default upon
initial recognition of asset and whether there has been significant increase in
credit risk on an on-going basis. The directors of the Company believe that there
is no material credit risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding balances of other
receivables.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has four types of financial assets that are subject to the expected credit
loss model:

° Cash deposits and wealth management products at banks;
° Trade receivables and contract assets;

° Loans to third parties and other receivables (excluding prepayments);

° Note receivables; and

° Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Cash deposits and wealth management products at banks

While cash deposits and wealth management products at banks are also subject
to the impairment requirements of IFRS 9, the identified impairment loss was
immaterial.

Trade receivables and contract assets
The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit

losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables and
contract assets.
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Financial risk management (Continued) 3 HMERMEHRGE
Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 HMBEEEER(E)
Credit risk (Continued) (b) EEEBE (R
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) iy SMEEREGE)
Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued) JEWBRAFIA A& E ()
To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables and contract assets have BTEHSEHANEREBL  EREXRNER
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. [BL e R EANE ER B SRR A& R B EETT
The contract assets relate to unbilled work in progress and have substantially THH - EREEERRRENTREIEESR
the same risk characteristics as the trade receivables within aging bucket for the WHEBEMARBENSRAEKEREEL LER
same types of contracts. The Group has therefore concluded that the expected loss MR E - Bt - MABHER - IR
rates for trade receivables are a reasonable approximation of the loss rates for the MIEHEARZAREERARNASIRIM
contract assets. (ER
The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales over a period FEEEAEDERZE_EF+=A=+—
of 36 months before 31 December 2020 or 31 December 2019 respectively and ARk —NEF+=A=+—HZH
the corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this period. The =716 A EAE R S S R RIE DU IA Ktk BRI A
historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information FEREEE S SRk - ARFELIBEAE A
on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the KM EBTERFPEEEWREE NN RELE
receivables. The Group has identified the GDP and the unemployment rate of the E=aEr Mg EER - AEEDRBEHEE
countries in which it sells its goods and services to be the most relevant factors, P R R0 AR 7 B9 B SR M GDP AN 5k 3 R F A & 4R
and accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates based on expected changes in FAREZ - WIRIEELEEMNTERE L IRAR
these factors. FESLIELRE o
On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2020 Bl B#EZF-NF+ZA=+—HBN=ZZ
was determined as follows for trade receivables: ZEF+ZA=+—H  EURERNIBAE
& BfgaT
31 December 2019 “Z-A¥+ZR=1+-8 0-1year 1-2 years 2-3years  Over 3 years Total
-k —-ERE WE=F =ZFUE Bt
Expected loss rate BEERBAE 7.00% 61.00% 88.00% 100.00% N/A
A
Gross carrying amount (RMBO00) 1R 4838 — FRUUR R ARB TIL) 119,758 14177 8740 117,230 259,905
Loss allowance (RMB'000) BAEBARETL) 8,383 8,648 7,691 117230 141,952
31 December 2020 —E_Z¥+ZRA=1—-H 0-1year 1-2 years 2-3years  Over 3 years Total
—f£lR —-ERE WE=F =ZFUL &t
Expected loss rate REEREAE 9.89% 54.98% 82.66% 100.00% N/A
A
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) IREAE - ERETARETT) 115,184 37,953 11,589 89,221 253,947
Loss allowance (RMB'000) BREBARETT) 11,394 20,866 9,579 89,221 131,060
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O B R AR

Financial risk management (Continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)

The loss allowances of contract assets were calculated by referring to the expected

credit loss rate of the most current aging period (i.e 0-1 year) of trade receivables.

The loss allowances for trade receivables and contract assets as at 31 December

reconcile to the opening loss allowances as follows:

Foh 365 T B L (W)

RS RBRER ()

5 LB ()

SRARERE )

W IR A ()
REBNARAERROEBHTHEABIKIRR
BB BREE (—F UM BB ERBAE R
i o
AEBBEYRRNERAEERT - A=+—

A MRk BB T Ak - AR
-

Contract assets

Trade receivables

eRAEE i 4l
2020 2019 2020 2019
il ot =N ===z —ZF—N
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTRE ARBTT ARBTRE AREBTET
Opening loss allowance at — B — B E#iRE E R
1 January - - 141,952 128,599
Increase in loss allowance recognised in ANFE T ABZHEFRIEX
profit or loss during the year BRI 39,149 - 35,456 50,009
Receivables written off during the year as AN4F & 4% $i5 #9 # 2 Uk [B1 Y
uncollectible FEUR - - (46,348) (36,656)
Closing loss allowance at +-RA=+—BHHXiEE
31 December #iF 39,149 - 131,060 141,952

Trade receivables and contract assets are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery include, amongst others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment
plan with the group, and a failure to make contractual payments for a period of

greater than 3 years past due.

Impairment losses on trade receivables and contract assets are presented as net
impairment losses within operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of amounts

previously written off are credited against the same line item.
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Financial risk management (Continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Loans to third parties and other receivables (excluding prepayments)

For loans to third parties and other receivables (excluding prepayments) in order
to minimise the credit risk, the Group has established policies and systems for
monitoring and control of credit risk. The management has delegated different
divisions responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring processes to ensure that follow up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, management reviews the recoverable amounts of loan and
interest collectively at each reporting date to ensure that adequate allowance for
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The loss allowance for loans to third parties and other receivables (excluding
prepayments) as at 31 December reconciles to the opening loss allowances as
follows:

P 55 B P L (4W)
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Other Receivables

(excluding
Loans to third parties prepayments)
HthFE
BEHER (FEFTRIERRIP)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREEFTT AREETIT
Opening loss allowance as at B-Z—hhF—HA—H
1 January 2019 1,087 23,493
Increased/(decrease) in the allowance NEARERT AR BB EHES
recognised in profit or loss during Ehn O A
the period 1,128 (1,777)
Closing loss allowance as at R _Z—hEF+-_A=+—H
31 December 2019 2,215 21,716
Opening loss allowance as at W-ZE_TF—HA—H
1 January 2020 2,215 21,716
Increased/(decrease) in the allowance NEFRERT AR BB E I EHS
recognised in profit or loss during the period #hn, CRid) 1572 (6,292)
Receivables written off during 7N BRFEI A SH A A Uk (2] B9 R MR BR X
the year as uncollectible - (3,164)
Closing loss allowance as at R-Z_ZF+_A=+—8H
31 December 2020 3,787 12,260
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O B R AR

(c)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Loans to third parties and other receivables (excluding prepayments) (Continued)

Based on historical experience, majority of the other receivables (excluding
prepayments) were settled within 12 months, and had no historical default at
gach reporting period end, therefore, most of the other receivables (excluding
prepayments) were categorised in stage 1.

However, certain counterparty failed to make demanded repayment when they fall
due, the Group made 100% provision for these receivables (“Non-performing
Receivables”). As at 31 December 2020, the gross amount of RMB3,963,000 of
other receivable was assessed as Non-performing Receivables and RMB3,963,000
of loss allowance was recognised.

Note receivables

The note receivables are guaranteed by reputable banks in mainland China
and have been classified as stage 1 during the years of 2020 and 2019. The
management assessed that the expected credit losses was immaterial.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or l0ss

The Group is also exposed to credit risk in relation to debt investments that are
measured at fair value through profit or loss. The maximum exposure at the
end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of these investments (2020:
RMB993,656,000; 2019: RMB687,312,000).

Liquidity risk

The Group exercises prudent liquidity risk management by reviewing forecast cash
balances on a quarterly basis to maintain sufficient cash levels and the availability
of an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to ensure the availability of
sufficient cash flows to meet any unexpected and material cash requirements in the
course of ordinary business. The Group has no significant exposure to liquidity
risk.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities that will be settled on
a gross basis into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at
the statement of financial position to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due
within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not
significant.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SOt ISR M EE
3  Financial risk management (Continued) 3 HMERMERGE
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 HMBEEER(E)
(¢) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) FRENHEEPE (I8)
Lessthan  Between1 Between2
1year and2years and5years Over 5 years Total
—FlA -EBE BELF HFEUE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARBTT ARETT ARETT AR®TT
At 31 December 2020 RIBZEE+ZA=+-H
Borrowings (including interests) ER(EERFIL) 121,626 - - - 121,626
Trade and other payables (excluding VAT and other tax ~ FERTIRFA R E M FER (RS IBER K
payable and salary and staff welfare payables) HipFie - EAFHERETIEF) 497,040 - = - 497,040
Lease liabilities HEaR 24,808 13,533 16,458 1,724 56,523
Total non-derivatives 643,474 13,533 16,458 1,724 675,189
At 31 December 2019 A_E-NE+ZA=1+—H
Borrowings (including interests) ER(FERFIS) 206,713 - - - 206,713
Trade and other payables (excluding VAT and other tax ~ FEATOR 2% R Bt fE MR (R 2 118 |2
payable and salary and staff welfare payables) Hiiie - EEIFHERETRE) 325,308 - 69,028 - 394,336
Lease liabilities HEaE 24856 13,391 7215 1,999 47 461
Total non-derivatives 556,877 13,391 76,243 1,999 648,510
There were no derivative financial liabilities as at 31 December 2020 and 2019. R-_ZE-_ZEF+_A=+—HN-_Z—AF
+ZA=+—R ETELRAR-

3.2 Fair value estimation 3.2

The table below analyses the Group’s financial instruments carried at fair value as
at 31 December 2020 and 2019 by level of the inputs to valuation techniques used
to measure fair value. Such inputs are categorised into three levels within a fair
value hierarchy as follows:

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities (level 1).

- Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that

is, derived from prices) (level 2).

- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).
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B O B R AR

3.2

3  Financial risk management (Continued) 3 HMERMERGE
Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.2 LDREEMEE)
At 31 December 2020 R-EZEF+-RA=1+-H Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
S8 $28 £3B st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AR®TT AR®TR AR®TT
Financial assets at fair value through DA EEFEEEZEHIAERN
profit or loss SRERE
— Investments desigated at fair value —EEANARBEIMEAEE
through profit or loss FABENRENSREE - = 1,616,395 1,616,395
— Derivative financial instruments —{TESRIA = 4,540 - 4,540
Total &ar = 4,540 1,616,395 1,620,935
At 31 December 2019 R-E-NF+-A=+—-H Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1E FE LR @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Financial assets at fair value through NAREEFTEEEEHHTAERZN
profit or loss PRERE
~ Investments designated at fair value - BERNARBESELAES
through profit or loss FABRENRENSREE 59,139 - 965,803 1,024,942

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is
determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximize
the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as possible
on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

- Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments.

- Discounted cash flow analysis.
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SOt ISR M EE
3  Financial risk management (Continued) 3 HMERMERGE
3.2 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.2 LDREEMEE)

The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for the year ended

31 December 2020 and 2019.

o

TRERHE-_ZT_TFM_FT—NF+=A
=+ HIFEFIELHTAENES)

Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

AREEHEAESEMHA

RRHEMEE

RMB'000

ARBFT

At 1 January 2020 R-ZE_EF—HA—H 965,803
Additions #hn 4,760,238
Disposals BE (4,125,300)
Gains recognised in profit or loss EEERROFG 15,654
At 31 December 2020 Bn-Ee_E2f+-H=+—H 1,616,395

Changes in unrealised losses for the year BRxTERNFERERBENEY

included in profit or loss at the end of the year (4,912)

Financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss
DR EEHEAEEHIA

BEnemEE
RMB’000
AREF T
At 1 January 2019 A _E—hF—HA—AH 572,406
Additions 3 3,068,500
Disposals BE (2,708,664)
Gains recognised in profit or loss TR RS 33,561
At 31 December 2019 BR-ZE—hF+HA=+—H 965,803
Changes in unrealised gains for the year BRiRTPERNFERERNGNESD
included in profit or loss at the end of the year 3,048

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

The following table summarises the quantitative information about the significant
unobservable inputs used in the major level 3 fair value measurements.
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B O B R AR

3  Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Fair value estimation (Continued)

3.2

P 35 L B L (3R)
L RIELEE ()

Range of inputs

Fair value at (probability-weighted average)inputs
HEOREEE WA EHE (BEmEFy)
Relationship of
31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019 unobservable inputs
Description RMB’000 RMB000  Un-observable inputs 2020 2019 tofairvalue
ZEC8 —T-NF AREERRT
e +ZRA=+—H f-A=+—8 FURRMBAE - ok -0 BRBAEDRE
RMB’000 RMB1000
AEBTT ARETT
Unlisted equity investments 622,739 254,491 Expected volatility 42.94% - 57.93% 37.8% The higher the expected
volatility, the higher the
fair value
FEmikERE 622,739 B4491 BEREE 42.94% - 57.93% 8% FEEBHEHS 2
REBEES
Risk-free rate 0.35%-2.95% 1.61%  The higher the risk-free rate,
the lower the fair value
ERRNE 0.35% - 2.95% 161% |EEFEES - 2
R BEBE
Business enterprise value/sales 10.9x 6.0« The higher the multiple, the
multiple higher the fair value
EEE/HERY 10.9x 60 BEHE  ARER
il
Lack of liquidity discount rate 20% 25%  The higher the lack of
liquidity discount rate,
the lower the fair value
Bz R RE 20% %% HZRIEAREY
5 MRBEHSE
Wealth management products 993,656 687,312 Expected annual return rate 1.35% - 4.85% 2.36%-5%  The higher the expected
annual retur rate, the
higher the fair value
BEEEREM 993,656 687,312 JEEIE[ERE 1.35% - 4.85% 236%-5% EHRFREEHES -
MhBEES

T CTFFR
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SOt ISR M EE
3  Financial risk management (Continued) 3 HMERMERGE
3.3 Capital risk management 3.3 ELRARER
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability REBHESEEIE  —RREEEEFES
to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for owners and benefits & AREREDRANAEMERNIFE AR
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the HAE  ARERRENERNEEUNREES
cost of capital. A o
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the BTHEFNABRERGERE  AEBE e
amount of dividends paid to owners, return capital to shareholders, issue new T FREABRFIEEE - FAREREER - B
shares or sell assets to reduce debt. TR EEENRIRER -
Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital on the basis HMEANEMAR & AEEMNHEREBEL
of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. REERHEN o W ERIRRBEBFERABE
Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including “current and non-current EHE - EFFRARBR(BIEAHVBERR
borrowings” as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position) less TSR MIERBMER D RER S MNIRS
cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as “equity” as shown in the ZEY - BEXNRMERE] (A IR RE AT
consolidated statement of financial position plus net debt. H)INERFRE ©
The gearing ratios at 31 December 2020 and 2019 were as follows: CEZE_EFER-FT-NAFE+_A=+—81"
$%IE’J§$EEH:$ZZDT :
2020 2019
—S2F —NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TT AREETTT
Total borrowings (Note 22) B (FFE22) 120,000 199,625
Total lease liabilities (Note 7) %@Tﬁ‘a% (FF5ET) 51,032 41623
Less: cash and cash equivalents (Note 16) A RE RIBSEEM(HIEE6) (2,753,631) (1,898,770)
Net cash ReRE (2,582,599) (1,657,522)
Total equity HaEa 7,958,477 6,145,671
Total capital wEXx 5,375,878 4,446,526
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group is in net cash position. In the BE-_Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HM=F—NF
opinion of the directors, the Group’s capital risk is low. +=ZA=1+—H8 £EEENFHESMKE -EESF
MRAEREENERRBERIE -
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B O B R AR

41

(a)

(b)

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are addressed below.

Fair value of investment properties

The fair value of investment properties is determined by using valuation technique.
Details of the judgments and assumptions have been disclosed in Note 9.

Recognition of ERP and cloud implementation revenue

Revenue from ERP and cloud implementation contract is recognised over
the period of the contract by reference to the progress of work performed
and acknowledged by the customers. For the year ended 31 December 2020,
revenue of RMB993,778,000 is generated from ERP and cloud implementation
contracts (2019: RMB914,758,000). The Group has to estimate the progress of
work performed. If the progress of work performed were to differ by 10% from
management’s estimates (for example, 33% instead of 30%), the amount of
revenue recognised in 2020 would have been higher/lower by approximately
RMB99,378,000 (2019: RMB91,476,000).

41

(a)

(b)

T CTFFR
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41

(c)

(d)

(e)

134 Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited

Critical accounting estimates and judgments
(Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (Continued)
Estimated useful lives of capitalised development costs

The useful lives of capitalised development costs are estimated based on historical
experience, which include actual useful lives of similar assets and changes in
technology. If the estimated useful lives of capitalised development costs were
to shorter or longer by 10% from management’s estimates, the amortisation
charge for 2020 would have been higher by approximately RMB49,747,000
(2019 RMB35,959,000) or lower by approximately RMB41,979,000 (2019:
RMB31,096,000).

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment in
accordance with the accounting policy stated in Note 2.10. The recoverable
amounts of cash-generating units (“CGU”) have been determined based on the
higher of fair value less cost of disposal and value-in-use, which is calculated using
cash flow forecasts based on the financial budgets approved by management.
Details of the impairment test are set out in Note 9.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions. Significant judgment
is required in determining the provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain.
The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates
of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the current and deferred tax assets and liabilities in the period in which
such determination is made.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group were each entitled to a preferential enterprise
income tax rate for a specified period subject to certain conditions. Management
generally applies the applicable preferential tax rate to calculate current income
tax and deferred income tax (Note 31) on the assumption that the subsidiaries
will continue to meet the conditions and qualify for the preferential treatment as
evidenced by past records. The consequence of any failure to meet the conditions
and any change in the applicable tax rate is adjusted in the year when the
information becomes known.

41

(c)

(d)

(e)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O B R AR

4.2

(a)

(b)

(c)

Critical accounting estimates and judgments
(Continued)

Critical judgment in applying the entity’s accounting policies
Capitalisation of development costs

Development costs incurred are capitalised as intangible assets when recognition
criteria as detailed in Note 2.10(b) are fulfilled. Management has applied its
professional judgement in determining whether the related software products could
generate probable future economic benefits to the Group based on the historical
experience of the existing products and the prospects of the markets. Any severe
change in market performance or technology advancement will have an impact on
the development costs capitalised.

Deferred income tax

During the year ended 31 December 2020, deferred income tax liabilities
of RMB21,901,000 (2019: RMB63,334,000) had not been recognised for
the withholding tax that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of
RMB219,013,000 (2019: RMB633,345,000) of certain subsidiaries in the PRC as
these earnings are expected to be retained by the PRC subsidiaries for reinvestment
purposes and would not be remitted to their overseas holding companies in the
foreseeable future based on management’s estimation on the Group’s overseas
funding requirements.

Impairment of financial assets

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk
of default and expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the
Group’s past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates
at the end of each reporting period. Details of the key assumptions and inputs used
are disclosed in the tables in Note 3.1(b).

4.2

(a)

(b)

(c)

T CTFFR
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Segment information

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as executive directors of
the Company. The executive directors review the Group’s internal reporting in order
to assess performance and allocate resources. Management has determined the
operating segments based on these reports.

The executive directors consider the business from product perspective. The Group
has identified the following operating segments:

Including enterprise cloud services, finance cloud
services, industry cloud services and other cloud
Services

Cloud services -
business

Including sales of software and hardware products,
provision of software implementation services,
software solution consulting, maintenance, upgrade
and other supporting services, and the micro-credit
business

ERP business -

Investment properties —  Operation of investment properties

operating business

The chief operating decision-maker (the “CODM”) assesses the performance of the
operating segments based on the profit or loss for the year of each segment. There
were no segment assets and segment liabilities information provided to the CODM,
as CODM does not use this information to allocate resources or to evaluate the
performance of the operating segments. Substantially all of the businesses of the
Group are carried out in the PRC.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Segment information (Continued)

5 SEEMGER)

The segment information for the year ended 31 December 2020 is as follows: HE_Z-_ZEF+_A=+—HLEFEHHE
BT
Investment
Cloud properties
services operating  The Group
business ERP business business Total
LRER rEH
EENE @ PEEE
ERBEES x5 %% £EAaR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AER®TT AE®TRT AER®TT
Revenue (from external customers) WA CGREINEBE ) 1,912,385 1,444,060 - 3,356,445
— Products transferred at a point in time —EmEX—FEEER - 447,626 - 447,626
— Services transferred over time — RGBSR 1,912,385 996,434 - 2,908,819
Operating (loss)/profit EE (ER), BT (606,786) 112,754 78,679  (415,353)
Finance income g e - 48,789 - 48,789
Finance costs BT KA (1,194) (11,661) - (12,855)
Finance (costs)/income — net M () A28 (1,194) 37,128 - 35,934
Share of losses of associates EEBERENEIENTE - (3,320) - (3,320)
(Loss)/profit/before income tax HBRESNRE(HR) 3 (607,980) 146,562 78,679 (382,739)
Income tax credit/(expense) Fri5®ihE,(E ) 8,272 40,640 (7,868) 41,044
Segment results SEWER (599,708) 187,202 70,811 (341,695)
Depreciation and amortisation s ks 362,356 130,192 - 492,548
Impairment charge of goodwill P ERRERTIE - 22,881 - 22,881
Net impairment losses on financial assets and 4 g8 & & M A RIEEH
contract assets FREEK 2,504 67,381 - 69,885
Fair value gains on investment properties HEEMENARBEFIE - - 5,550 5,550
Share-based payments VARE1R BB S 1+ 25,198 135,996 - 161,194

T CTFFR
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5 Segment information (Continued)

5 SWMEMGR

The segment information for the year ended 31 December 2019 is as follows: BEZ-NF+_A=T—HILFEHHE
BT
Investment
properties
Cloud services operating The Group
business  ERP business business Total
PEER RAEM
EIRETE ES
ERBES £ 37 &5
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Revenue (from external customers) WA CREINBEF) 1,313,595 2,011,995 - 3,325,590
— Products transferred at a point in time —EREXE—RRNEE - 945,631 - 945,631
— Services transferred over time — RIS RS 1,313,595 1,066,364 - 2.379,959
Operating (loss)/profit EE (B '8 (195,065) 505,615 113,237 423,787
Finance income ples 688 19,080 - 19,768
Finance costs BAAS R AR (1,005) (13,393) - (14,398)
Finance (costs)/income - net M (HE), WA B8 (317) 5,687 - 5370
Share of losses of associates FEBEREANEENTE - (33,026) - (33,026)
(Loss)/profit before income tax HIEFRSIRAT (F1R),F1H (195,382) 478276 113,237 396,131
Income tax credit/(expense) Frigfire(BR) 23,405 (42,414) (11,324) (30,333)
Segment results AEBER (171,977 435,862 101,913 365,798
Depreciation and amortisation e R 229,806 255,239 - 485,045
Impairment charge of goodwill REERRER R - 31,187 - 31,187
Net impairment losses on financial assets and SREENEREENFRMER
contract assets ES 1,324 47,092 - 48,416
Fair value gains on investment properties REUMENLDR BENEG - - 39,994 39,994
Share-based payments AR AERER LS 642 103,306 - 103,948

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands while the Group mainly
operates its business in the PRC. Revenue from external customers from the
PRC and other locations is RMB3,324,039,000 (2019: RMB3,294,756,000) and
RMB32,406,000 (2019: RMB30,834,000), respectively, for the year ended 31

December 2020.

There was no single customer that contributed to over 10% of the Group’s revenue

for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.
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SO HmRMET
5 Segment information (Continued) 5 SEPEM(KE)
(a) Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers (a) HEFARAEMMHEEMAR

At 31 December

»+=-—BA=+—H

2020 2019
—S2F Z=NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TTT AREETTT

Current contract assets relating to ERP and cloud implementation ~ ERP X EE e & RIFHEIAY A 2
contracts EREE 395,807 451,685
Loss allowance BRERE (39,149) -
Total @t 356,658 451,685
Contract obtaining costs (i) & RIEUS A () 142,280 60,667
Contract liabilities — Cloud services business ARAEE - EREED 996,836 542,793

ERAE-CEEREETE

Contract liabilities — ERP business % 487,107 454203
Total st 1,483,943 996,996

Contract obtaining costs

Management expects the incremental costs, primarily sale commissions paid/
payable, as a result of obtaining the cloud services contracts are recoverable.
The Group capitalised these incremental costs and amortised them in “Sales
promotion” expenses when the related revenue is recognised. There was no

impairment loss in relation to the costs capitalised.

() ESRARE{EHEF

BIEEE  ARNESERBERMAELNE
BRA(ZEREN /RANHEERS) RATK
OlH e ZEEBELEENRAENL X
ERERABRAR  SEBHEAHEREIE

A o EBEAMERRAAALL - SRERERK
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SOt ISR M EE
5 Segment information (Continued) 5 HEBEMGE)
(a) Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers (a) HEFSRABRNHZIEMAILRE)
(Continued)
(i)  Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities (i) HEeWARTRSEZHKEA
The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the current TRETEAHRE AT ERAURA A B4t
reporting period relates to carried-forward contract liabilities. SRAEHEENSE -
Year ended 31 December
#EZE+=-A=+—H
2020 2019
ol Jot- 3 3 —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
E¥®Tn ARETTT
Cloud services business ERRFET 437,419 251,698
ERP business EEREIBTEER 454,203 548,738
891,622 800,436
(ili) Unsatisfied long-term cloud services contracts (iii) FETHRHBERBESE
The following table shows unsatisfied performance obligations resulting from long- TRETTRHABREESHNERKERATRE
term fixed-price cloud services contracts. ITHBAIERTS

At 31 December

®+=-RA=+-—AH
2020 2019
a3 —T-NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
EB¥%Tr ARETFT
Aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to long-termcloud W+ =—A=+—BHEHH D
services contracts that are partially or fully unsatisfied F 2 BRBETHRBERS
as at 31 December ERNER HER 413,164 182,274
Management expects that approximately 45% of the transaction price allocated to EEEE N E_EF+_A=+—H8»
the unsatisfied contracts as of 31 December 2020 will be recognised as revenue BRE2ABITERNXSERHB%EET —(E
during the next reporting period (RMB186,748,000). The remaining approximately R HR R A (AR #186,748,0000T) @ E 4
55% (RMB226,416,000) will be recognised in and after the 2022 financial year. 55% (AR #226,416,000 ) R T - —F K2
TBHER o
All other cloud services and ERP business contracts are for periods of one year FIEEMERBMECEEREEAENEBER
or less or are billed based on time incurred. As permitted under IFRS 15, the FERRR A — sk — F AR sl 3 A B R i U
transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed. B o BRI BmEERF155RHE K -

R RENE RN HERRE -
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SOt R RM
6 Property, plant and equipment 6 AEBE -IRREE
Computer and
related Office Leasehold  Construction
Buildings ~ equipment  equipment  Motor vehicles improvements in process Total
BF TEREEZE  MORE B BomERE  ERIE ait
RMB000 RMBO00 RIBO00 RMBO00 RIBO00 RMBO00 RMBO00
ARBTT  ARETL  ARETT ARETn  ARETR AREBTT ARETR
Year ended 31 December 2019 BECS-NETIACT-ALEE
Opening net book amount BMEEFE Q4318 49691 8518 121% 15283 - 490236
Additions b4 157 19260 2909 184 8,107 69,028 101275
Disposals RE - (4837) (302 (506) (3410) - (6,659)
Depreciation charge ik (14.280) (11831) (2489) (3683) (4080 - (36,132)
Closing net book amount BRIRERE 30019 52683 8,937 9,751 1590 69028 546,524
At 31 December 2019 RZE-AE+ZAZ+-A
Cost e 524,848 113510 %1% 29451 60,001 69,028 823033
Accumulated depreciaton ZifinE (134,639) (60.821) (17.299) (19.700) (44m) - (276,509)
Net book amount EERE 390,19 52,683 8937 9751 15930 69,028 546,524
Year ended 31 December 2020 BE_S-ZETIACT-ALEE
Opering e ook amourt BEETE 390,195 52,683 8,937 9,751 15,930 69,028 546,524
Trense fim ivestment popetes REREHEEN 168,426 - - - - - 168,426
(e acitors g 1,452 25,031 331 1,240 9,407 32,767 13214
Diposds RE (132) (314) (691) (89) (576) - (1,802)
Depeceton chge Vil (12,731) (12,111 (2,480) (3,100 (9,792) - (40,214)
Closing net hook amount HRIEESE 547,210 65,229 9183 7,802 14,969 101,795 746,148
At31 December 2020 RZBZEE+ZA=+-A
(os i 694,369 134,830 0,813 29,805 69,149 101,79 1,067,830
Aocumiated dayeczin ZitirE (147,159) (69,610) (18,730) (22,003) (54,180) - (311,682)
Net book amount EERE 547,210 65,229 9,143 1,002 14,969 101,795 146,148

Depreciation of approximately RMB5,097,000 (2019: RMB8,900,000),
RMB5,558,000 (2019: RMB6,031,000) and RMB29,619,000 (2019:
RMB21,201,000) has been charged to selling and marketing expenses,
development costs and administrative expenses, respectively.

As at 31 December 2020, none of the property, plant and equipment was used as
security for bank borrowings (2019: nil).
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7 Leases

This note provides information for leases where the Group is a lessee.

(a) Amounts recognised in the statement of financial position

The statement of financial position shows the following amounts relating to leases:

(a)

He

AMFERHEARASEEREAEAANEEE
Al e

RERARAERHEH

MIEHORKRIR T BHERREN T IIE5E

2020 2019
3. 3 —ET—hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFTT

Right-of-use assets EHiEEE
Land use rights (i) b {5 R () 135,932 65,685
Buildings BE 45,988 41,184
181,920 106,869

Lease liabilities HEARE

Current mE 28,712 21,341
Non-current IERB 22,320 20,282
51,032 41,623

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the 2020 financial year were
RMB102,578,000 (2019: RMB32,158,000), which include RMB42,353,000

transferred from investment properties.

(i) The Group has land lease arrangement with mainland China government.
The land use rights are located in the PRC and held on leases of between

31 to 42 years, and for self-use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SOt R RM
7  Leases (Continued) 7 HE(HE
(b) Amounts recognised in the statement of profit or loss (b)) WERAEIHELE
The income statement shows the following amounts relating to leases: BRERIRH Ty SBEEEEH
2020 2019
ot e 23 —ZT-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFIT
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets EHESENTESRR
Land T Hb (R 2,059 1,860
Buildings BE 24,984 22,751
27,043 24,611
Interest expense (included in finance cost) FIEERGTABER) 3,484 3,019
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in cost of sales and  ER 2k #E & %2 B G 51 REVIK(E
administrative expenses) BEEHER@ENERGH
MNHEERAREEER) 6,708 16,971
The total cash outflow for leases in 2020 was RMB53,556,000 (2019: —E-EFRBEERANREREHATAAR
RMB38,114,000). #53,556,0007C (== — LF © AR¥38,114,000
L)
(c) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are accounted for (c) FREAMBEITHRESHERE
The Group leases various offices. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed AEBPHZERAE - HEARBTEEEE
periods of 3 months to 8 years, but may have extension options as described in (d) HABR - 3B A ZB8F T - EAIRERE T X (d)FT
below. A BT IR o
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of HEKRFEEEBNER LHEN - BEsE
different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants TR ERFE o B fﬁ/\%ﬁﬁ’]fﬂfé?
other than the security interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor. E’Hﬂ%f“*% HEHE T INER 2L - 1
Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes. EEETBEREBNER BE_T_ZF
+= ﬂ +—8  AEBMRFTEAMARA
BHEINZHAFBEERRLHENHEES
H .
(d) Extension and termination options (d) #ERBJIFEMLLBERFE
Extension and termination options are included in a number of property leases AEBMNZERAZHESSERREREMEK

across the Group. These are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of
managing the assets used in the Group’s operations. The majority of extension
and termination options held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the
respective lessor.

T CTFFR
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SO KM
8 Intangible assets 8 |ERE
Trademarks, Computer Acquired
Development licenses and software customer
Goodwill costs copyrights ~ forownuse relationship Total
1 B A
[ AREF Efeit aPERRG EFRME &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETR
At1 January 2019 RZE-AFE+-RA=1+-H
Cost 5% 181,245 2,409,959 185,169 36,798 26,149 2,839,320
Accumulated amortisation ~ ZETEESH - (1,818,812 (163,989) (29,646) (9,589) (2,022,036)
Net book amount REPE 181,245 591,147 21,180 712 16,560 817,284
Year ended 31 December HE-Z—NF
2019 +ZA=+—HLEEE
Opening net book amount ~ EBIRENH(E 181245 686,290 15,968 4835 11,330 899,668
Additions R - 477654 6,000 1521 - 485,175
Amortisation charge SHig - (413,982) (8571) (2,550) (5,230) (430333)
Impairment HE (31,187) - - - - (31,187)
Closing net hook amount  ER#&IRTE i B{E 150,058 749,962 13,397 3,806 6,100 923,323
At31Decemher 2019 ~ R=E—hF+-A=+—B
Cost PR 181,245 3,266,850 192,871 44,098 26,149 323
Accumulated amortisation  ZETEES - (2,516,888) (179.474) (40,292) (20,049) (2,756,703)
Impairment E (31,187) - - - - (31,187)
Net book amount IRERE 150,058 749962 13,397 3806 6,100 923323
Year ended 31 December HEE_S_TF+_A=+—H
2020 j12:3: 3
Opening net book amount ~ ERIIREHE 150,058 749,962 13,397 3,806 6,100 923,323
Additions N - 314,119 - 1,728 - 315,847
Amortisation charge BB = (415,434) (7,043 (3,083) (5,229) (430,789)
Impairment AE (22,881) - - - - (22,881)
Closing net book amount KA IR EFE 127,171 648,647 6,354 2,451 8 785,500
At31December2020 R-Z-EB&H+ZB=+—H
Cost 3% 181,245 3,636,541 192,870 45,827 26,149 4,082,632
Accumulated amortisation  ZzTEEH - (2,987,89) (186,516) (43,376) (25,278)  (3,243,064)
Impairment AE (54,068) - - - - (54,068)
Net book amount REPE 121,171 648,647 6,354 2,451 8N 785,500

Amortisation charge of RMB15,355,000 (2019: RMB16,351,000) and
RMB415,434,000 (2019: RMB413,982,000) has been charged to administrative

expenses and research and development costs, respectively.
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Intangible assets (Continued)
Impairment test for goodwill

Goodwill arises from the Group’s acquisition of Shanghai Guanyi Cloudcomputing
Software Co., Ltd. (“Guanyi”) and was determined at the date of acquisition on 29
February 2016, being the difference between the purchase considerations and the
fair value of net identifiable assets of Guanyi. Goodwill has been allocated to the
CGU of Guanyi for impairment testing.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on the higher of its fair
value less cost of disposal and value-in-use. The higher amount represents
the value-in-use, which is calculated using pre-tax cash flow forecasts based
on the financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year period.
Management determined a forecast period of five years based on expected
development trend of Guanyi and industry experience. Cash flows beyond the five-
year period are extrapolated using the estimated terminal growth rate stated below.
The terminal growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for
the enterprise management cloud services business in which the CGU operates.
The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to the relevant
industry.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations for 2020 and 2019 are as
follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O B R AR

8

ERAE R
o

BERERAREH LBESENELRHER
REWEE  HE T R"F_A T LAWK
BRER - ZBEREZIETHRFEEAR
BEAXNUENEZE HEFHEHELNRE
EOBBREENETTET TRER -

ReELEUNARESEZEREAAE
BEREREKRAMEREERE RS E®E
EH - BENeRARREE  AEEER
BEEEMENRERFHBNTEEE - &
AR RERANG LN - ERERERHE
MERERBE RITEERET T AFOTER
- BahFHRNREREEMATHEEN
RSB REMEL - XKBEERETHEBCGUES
MEREEERBEGORBFIERER - A
ERAMITREENANES - RRT EZBRTE
BRENEERR o

—RoER-T-AFEAREHEEANE
ERRIT

2020 2019

—S2F ZE-NF

Revenue growth rate during the forecast period SENEE AL PN S 25%—-36% 22%-32%
EBITDA margin during the forecast period TERIER R B AR T EE B S A F B =R 3%—23% 14%-26%
Terminal growth rate KB RE 2.50% 3.00%
Pre-tax discount rate GIEIEBERS 19.06% 19.88%

EBITDA margin equals to earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation divided by total revenue.

T CTFFR
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SO HmRMEE
8 Intangible assets (Continued) 8 HEEEEGE
Impairment test for goodwill (Continued) AR EE)
The following table shows the sensitive analysis performed by management as at TRETTEERENTHNHE-_ZS T+ A
31 December 2020: =+ —HOBRMEDHT -
Goodwill impairment amount
Assumptions Changes in assumptions will decrease(increase)
55 RS E BmERESERRY (8n)
RMB'000
AREFT
Revenue growth rate Increase by 5% 3,480,000
AR & 5%
Decrease by 5% (3,480,000)
5%
EBITDA margin Increase by 5% 9,280,000
BRITER R AE R HE 5%
Decrease by 5% (9,280,000)
5%
Terminal growth rate Increase by 5% 580,000
KB RE HEAN5%
Decrease by 5% (580,000)
5%
Pre-tax discount rate Increase by 5% (9,280,000)
AT HEAN5%
Decrease by 5% 9,860,000
5%
9 Investment properties 9 HAMRYE
2020 2019
- Jamt - 3 —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFT
At fair value NREE
At 1 January »—A—H 1,856,200 1,816,206
Fair value change recognised in profit or loss FEERTPEINAAEEED 5,550 39,994
Transfer to property, plant and equipment and WEEYEEABTEE
right-of-use assets (210,779) -
At 31 December »+=-A=+—H 1,650,971 1,856,200
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B O B R AR

(a)

(b)

Investment properties (Continued) 9 BREMYEGE
Amounts recognised in profit and loss for investment properties (a) BEMMEXCERRARIZHME
2020 2019
—E_Zf —ZT-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#TT ARETT
Rental income AW A 74,217 75,148
Direct operating expenses from property that generates ~ Z= A FA & W A VIR E IE WD EE Y
rental income HREEZEER (1,088) (1,905)
73,129 73,243
An independent valuation of the Group’s investment properties was performed HEAMPREUL ) EEFGBEBR AR A REAR
by the valuer, ZnongMing (Beijing) Assets Appraisal International Co., Ltd, to SEMREYMELET TELNE  UBE_T
determine the fair value of the investment properties based on highest and best ZEF+ A=t ANERRNEEEREE
use as at 31 December 2020. The Group’s investment properties, which comprised RERBEEREVENAAER RZTZZT
office buildings in the PRC, were carried at fair value and measured using +ZA=+—BEkZZE-—NFF+=ZA=+—H
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) as at 31 December 2020 and 2019. F - BREPERABERANMELA R EET)
B - W{EAEAT A B SRE AR (EIR) T
2
Leasing arrangements (b) HEE=RE

The investment properties are leased to tenants under operating leases with rentals
payable monthly. Lease payments for some contracts include CPI increases, but
there are no other variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate. Where
considered necessary to reduce credit risk, the Group required the tenants to
provide deposits for the term of lease contract.

Although the Group is exposed to changes in the residual value at the end of the
current leases, the Group typically enters into new operating leases and therefore
will not immediately realise any reduction in residual value at the end of these
leases. Expectations about the future residual values are reflected in the fair value
of the properties.

For minimum lease payments receivable on leases of investment properties, refer
to Note 36.

T CTFFR
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Investment properties (Continued) 9 BEMXYEGE
Valuation processes of the Group EEEABGHERE
The Group’s finance department includes a team that reviews the valuations NEBEMFEHHRE —E A  EERUBRE
performed by the independent valuers for financial reporting purposes. This BB HEMNGEEETSES - It/ EE
team reports directly to the chief financial officer (CFO). Discussions of valuation EREEYSECFO)ER - AR AAEEMTF
processes and results are held among the CFO, the valuation team and the HRMFEREAE CFO {HE /MR (EERD
valuers at least once every six months, in line with the Group’s interim and annual =PEBREARE—X - WmbERENEA
reporting dates. R o
At the end of each reporting period the finance department: TEEREFBRFER BTS2
—  Verifies all major inputs to the independent valuation report; - REBIYGEEDRENMBEEZAERK
IR
—  Assesses property valuations movements when compared to the prior year -  EEGEELEFEBERSEEERT
valuation report; KIS ;

—  Holds discussions with the independent valuer. — HEBAEAETHR
As part of this discussion, the team presents a report that explains the reasons for B mEESEIHRE  BEAALEEEY
the fair value movements. E’]J?\I
Valuation techniques {HEH®
For completed office buildings, the valuation was determined using income BRI A KXNENGHENBREE  BERT
approach based on significant unobservable inputs. These inputs include: AIEER ) AEETE © B AR -

Range of Relationship of unobservable inputs to
Unobservable inputs ~ Description unobservable inputs fair value
FURRBA it FURRBAMEE FURRBAHLORBEENRE
Term yields Based on yields extracting from terms of current leases 5% (2019: 4.5-5%) The higher the term yields rate, the lower the

fair value
HERkEE REEREETNRES OGN - FracBRIKER 5% (ZE-NF :455%) MERGEEREE  AxEEEE
Reversionary yields Based on expected yields after expiry of any current lease 6% (2019: 5-5.5%) The higher the reversionary yields, the lower the
fair value
HEME = $ETJ*§.§ETJE SITOREANIET  TEEESRIMIKE  6%(CF—NE 555%) MEMNEZRES A EEME
Fair market rents Based on the actual location, type and quality of the properties and supported ~ RMB66— RMB182 per month per The higher the rental value, the higher the fair
by the terms of any existing lease, other contracts and external evidence square meter (2019: RMB4%- value
such as current market rents for similar properties RMB133 per month per square
meter)

ki *ETFW%E’J?W@ES BANER UhAEMAFEENGE STYAKEBAAREN @HHtds  AnEEES

#F o Rt aRAMSMEE G mEU D ENE SR E A

SET% :

TR (ZE-NE
BFARGAARKLY

—1337T)

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SOt R RM
10 Investments in associates 10 BERE
2020 2019
—E2F ZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TTT AREETTT
At 1 January »—A—AH 282,649 234,403
Additions (a) 12 N(a) 127,500 110,241
Disposal RE (3,797) (26,401)
Dividend received elliiel = (50)
Share of losses of associates (b) EEBERERNEEMED) (3,320) (35,544)
At 31 December »+=-A=+—H 403,032 282,649
(a) It mainly represented RMB120,000,000 of an additional investment made by the ~ (a) TEBEFANHELEAFTPEEELRHEARA
Group to Citic Consumer Finance Co., Ltd. AH) AR #120,000,000691E & -
(b) Individually immaterial associates (b) FEEXHBERE
In the opinion of the directors, none of the associates is material to the Group. AEFEERA  AEBEERNNBERE
Summarised aggregate financial information of the individually immaterial AR AZENIFE A ERENM A
associates that are accounted for using the equity method are as following: EALNT :
2020 2019
nt ol 3. 3 ZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TTT AREETIT
Aggregate carrying amounts of individually immaterial ~ FEE A AYEEE A BIEVBRT
associates B 403,032 282,649
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s share of: NEBE TR FEARET
Loss for the year FEEE (3,320) (35,544)
Other comprehensive income EAobira WA = -
Total comprehensive loss HeRaYEH (3,320) (35,544)
(c)  All the associates of the Group are unlisted and operate in Mainland China. There  (¢) ZAEEFABEARYAIIELT AR - HEF

are no significant contingent liabilities relating to liabilities of the associates for
which the Group is severally liable.

BIRRELE - AEEBEEYE AR B EAH
MEBRSBRE -
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B Ot B R AR M

10 Investments in associates (Continued)

10 BERBEE)

(d)  Unrecognised share of losses of associates (d) KREZEEHELTSIR
2020 2019
ot ok -3 3 —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREEFIT
At 1 January —B—H 17,188 11,187
Unrecognised share of losses during the year FERAERNEIENEE 4,531 6,001
At 31 December +=RA=+—H 21,719 17,188
11 Financial instruments by category 11 RENBSPHEMIR
The Group holds the following financial instruments: AEEBBEAT2MIA -
2020 2019
- k- - 2 ZZ-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFL
Financial assets SMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost DEBRFHENSREE
Trade and other receivables (excluding prepayments and VAT EUEER R A MR (TR R RATRE,
recoverable) (Note 14) BT (3E14) 280,100 232,836
Loans to third parties (Note 14) BTE=HER(I4) 374,115 243219
Pledged bank deposits (Note 16) ERRITEHR(6) 21,206 128
Short-term bank deposits (Note 16) AR M (E6) 1,236,143 687,667
Long-term bank deposits (Note 16) REBRITFR (I3E16) 30,000 -
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 16) Re kR e EEN(HI06) 2,753,631 1,898,770
4,701,195 3,062,620
Financial assets at fair value HAREEHENEREE
Financial assets at FVPL WARBEFTEEEET A EENEREE
(Note 12) (P5E12) 1,616,395 1,024,942
Derivative financial assets (Note 13) TESBT A 4,540 -
1,620,935 1,024,942
Financial liabilities SRR
Liabilities at amortised cost DgRsFiEtema R
Trade and other payables (excluding VAT and other taxes payablesand  FE{0R % e ELth JE (9 0 (N2 18 (E ¢ ]2
salary and staff welfare payables) (Note 24) Hipfie - BIF S RE TR (1329 497,040 394,336
Borrowings (Note 22) EEAGEZZ) 120,000 199,625
Lease liabilities (\ote 7) HRARMGD) 51,032 41623
668,072 635,584

The Group’s exposure to various risks associated with the financial instruments is
discussed in Note 3.1(b). The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the
reporting period is the carrying amount of each class of financial assets mentioned
above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O B R AR

12 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(a)

Classification of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group classifies the following financial assets at FVPL:

Debt investments that do not qualify for measurement at either amortised
cost or FVOCI

Equity investments that are held for trading, and

Equity investments for which the entity has not elected to recognise fair
value gains and losses through OCI.

Financial assets measured at FVPL include the following:

12 LISAREHELRSBHARR
B &R R E

(@) BAoREEHELRSBHARRNSME
ESW

RZBZZF+-A=+—H TEEBUT
THEES D RARREEFEBEZEHFA
BanemEE

s THAEHBRARAABEEBFTAH
R & Wasst ERENEHIRE

° RRHMAFARNBRERE ARk

s ARERBERBRBAAEBEEBTA
B G et ERBHERE

UAR AN EARDHABEHSHEESD

FEUATREA

2020 2019
k- k-1 ZT-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AE®TT ARETFT

Investments designated at fair value through profit or loss EEAAEEEHEARSHRE
Wealth management products (i) BEEEER() 993,656 687,312
Unlisted equity investments (ii) JEETRRAER A (i) 622,739 278,491
Listed stock FRE - 59,139
1,616,395 1,024,942
Less: non-current portion B 3ERENER S (622,739) (428.791)
993,656 596,151

(i)

This represented the Group’s investments in various wealth management
products issued by commercial banks and state-owned financial institutions.
These products have a term ranging from 3 months to 12 months. They have
an expected annual return rate ranging from 1.35% to 4.85%. No single wealth
management product investment accounted for over 5% of the Group’s total
assets. The fair values of these investments were determined based on income
approach, details of which refer to Note 3.3.

The current year's increase of the unlisted equity investments mainly represented
the Group’s further investments in Facishare Co., Ltd., which is mainly engaged
in the business of social network working platform for precise interactive
marketing and enterprise collaborative management, and the investment in 4714/
FUMARHR B R 2 ), which is mainly engaged in the business of data middle
platform. The fair value of these investments was determined based on market
approach, detail of which refer to Note 3.3.

(i) ERATAEBEYEERITNEE S BKER
THEEVEERERMNIKRE - BEERN
BRI AMEAAE12EA - MAMNTELE R
EIE1.35%5E4.85% 28 o )R E—HEBEMERE
BREBEBEENSDAL - BERENAR
BEEENRKZAETEN  FHEMZENW
5330

(i) FFLEMRELERAFENENEIEIAEE
#fFacishare Co., LId. A3 —H18E » ZAREE
WEMZBETIETAEL  UREREROE
B REEIE - LA RSN EUR R
HARARNEE  ZARETERELEF
BEER - RERENDABERRENSS
SKHETER - FHIE2MIEE3S ©
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SO HmRMEE
12 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 12

(Continued) By & 5l = E (48)
(b)  Amounts recognised in profit or loss (b) WERHESHEEH

13

(a)

152 Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited

The gains were recognised in profits or loss are as following:

THFERAFAD RSB -

LARRERELRSEHARR

2020 2019
—E_2F —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETIT
Fair value gains on investments at FVPL recognised in -~ AR A BEFTE B EE B+ AIBEH
other gains (Note 28) SREENAREBEEB G (ME
28) 40,113 26,220
Derivative financial instruments 13 $1EeMmTHR
As at 31 Decenber2020
—e_zf+-A=+—H
Assets Liabilities
HE &
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TTT ARETIT
Not qualified for hedge accounting Tl EER S5 B9
— Foreign exchange forward contracts (a) —SMNERHAE X 4,540 -
Analysed as: DA
— Curent — D 4,540 -

The notional amount of these foreign exchange forward contracts was (a)
approximately RMB504,960,000. These contracts have maturity dates between
26 February 2021 to 30 December 2022 and strike rates (HKD: RMB range) from

0.8520 to 0.8795.

The Group has no derivative financial instruments for hedging purpose at 31

December 2020 (2019: nil).

fE %) /50.8520%0.8795 ©

ZEIERBHAONZESENAEARE
504,960,0007T ° & LA KA EIEI A A202142 A
268 202212 A308 » THEEETAARE

HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HIL TEEE

AREMRENITESRIA(CE-AF

&) -
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14 Trade and other receivables, and loans to third parties

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O B R AR

14

=ZHER

FEW AR A B - RiGTFE

2020 2019
—s=®E T %
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TRT ARET T

Trade receivables (a) FEURBR K (a) 253,947 259,905
Less: allowance for impairment of trade B FEWEURE ZE A (M EE3.1 (b))
receivables (Note 3.1(b)) (131,060) (141,952)
Trade receivables — net JEURBR TR — F5E 122,887 117,953
Notes receivable R EE 43,650 32,039
Advances to employees (b) miEERHERAS(D) 6,183 12,159
Consideration receivable from disposal of an associate Bz B B & N &) FEUR B9 4B - 28,125
Prepayments SELREN 73,857 67,465
VAT recoverable AR 29,280 35,820
Interest receivables FEUF B, 13,775 2,610
Receivables from related parties (c) (Note 37) JE U BAsE U5 7R A () (B RE37) 17,637 15,309
Receivables from non-controlling interests JEU SRV AR M 39,500 22,000
Others Hitb 48,729 18,389
Less: allowance for impairment of other receivables B ELAh R OB B X (TR BBk
(excluding prepayments) (Note 3.1(b)) S0 (B EE3.1(b) (12,260) (21,716)
383,238 330,153
Less: non-current portion WA IEREND (49,526) (22,000)
Current portion mEhE S 333,712 308,153
Loans to third parties (d) HBTEZFER)
— Current portion —REE D 316,666 230,869
— Non-current portion —IERB ML 57,449 12,350
374,115 243,219

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables approximate their fair value.
The Group’s trade and other receivables are mainly denominated in RMB.

JRE W BR R N EL A R YR Z IR I B (B BT L&
BERAEIE o A5 B R YGRS H A B UK
BUAREFHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Ot B R AR M

14

(a)

(b)

(d)

154 Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited

Trade and other receivables, and loans to third parties
(Continued)

Sales are generally made without prescribed credit terms in the sales contracts but
customers usually take 1 to 3 months to settle the receivables. At 31 December
2020 and 2019, the aging analysis of trade receivables based on invoice date were
as follows:

14

(a)

FEU AR SRS H M FEU SR - RiGF 58
ZH ARG

AEBEHES R HEREREREREH
B EEFPBFE—E2=EAAXNHRIE . =
E-NFR-TTF+ A=t -HEWE
HRE DML T

2020 2019

—S2F ZE-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBETTT

0-90 days 0-90K 97,363 73,841

91 - 180 days 91 -180% 5,419 12,637

181 - 360 days 181 -360% 12,402 33,280

Over 360 days i ERIZN 138,763 140,147

253,947 259,905

Advances to employees () MEER#HERE

The amounts advanced to employees were restricted for business purpose MESRENERASERRATELE  flnA

only, such as advances for selling expenses. Such advances were interest-free,
unsecured and repayable on demand. During the years ended on 31 December
2020 and 2019, the Group did not advance any cash to the directors for use on
business activities.

Receivables from related parties were unsecured, interest-free, and repayable on
demand and denominated in RMB.

(c)

WA ZEAE RS - WERRER
BREESE - BIE-F-NFR_F_TF
+ZA=t—R  ARELEAEFAEL R
0 -

FEUR R 7T FORY IR R R EAE - RIBEEK
PERSERIR - LAARMEGHE -

Loans to third parties (d) HFPE=AHER
2020 2019
—EEF ZE-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREEFIT
Loans to third parties MTE=FHER 377,902 245,434

Less: Provision for collective impairment assessment B BERUREERE

of the loans (3,787) (2,215)
Loans to third parties, net of provision BTEZANER—FE 374,115 243219
Less: non-current portion B SEmENER S (57,449) (12,350)
Current portion eIy 316,666 230,869
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(d)

15

SOt R RM
14 Trade and other receivables, and loans to third parties 14 MEIERBEEMENRR > RETSE
(Continued) =FEHRGE)
Loans to third parties (Continued) (d) HBFE=FHIEREE
The loans to third parties represented loans made under the micro-credit business, BTE=-FTHNERR N EEEERELENE
which bear interest from 4.28% to 24.00% (2019: 4.28% to 24.00%) per annum B SF R EAE4.28%524.00% (=T — NLF -
and are repayable with fixed terms agreed with the customers, and all denominated 4.28%%1124.00%) 2 8 - M 1E B% 3 E A9 &l E AP
in RMB. FAEE - BIHUARBHE -
The fair values of the loans to third parties approximated their carrying amounts. ZHETEZFEFNAABEELREEERE
The interest accrued was due within 12 months and presented in interest oo REFHEREWH ST EAARIE -
receivables. W BRPAFE U B o
The Group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and REEZERBEEERERRGEEZNR A8
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis M UREEEARENEEERRERIHER
throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase ZEme BT uﬁﬁ{*ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁé@ﬁﬁ%i‘bﬂ N
in credit risk, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at =S I Hﬁﬁ?ﬁ?ﬁi AR A B 4 ey B B B 4 0
the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. RE AR REBRETTILE
The Group performed expected credit loss assessment of loans to third parties $‘$l@iﬂ’ﬁ BEHBEUEARBRFEHERHE
collectively by grouping loans with similar credit risk characteristics. During the THH - XRHE=FEFHEIT T BHENER
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the majority of the loans were in stage 1 TESEEWE CEE-ZT-ZTF+=ZA=+—H
and there were no significant change in credit quality for loans for both years. MZZE-NF+ZA=+—HHFEF ' X%
HERENE—FEE  YEAEMENEREA
BHEYRFEBREL -
Inventories 15 8
2020 2019
—S2F ZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TTT AREETFTT
Software products and related parts B Em R ABEERL T 18,922 7,357
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in “cost of sales” GFEXRAFERABERWIAHEER NN
amounted to approximately RMB172,904,000 (2019: RMB150,363,000) (Note 27). BT AREEAT72,904,000C(ZF—NF - A
FR#150,363,0007T) (K 5E27) o
T oTHEEY  SERERS4EEARAT 195



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SOt ISR M EE
16 Cash and cash equivalents 16 ReERR&FED
2020 2019
—S2F ZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TT AREETTT
Cash at bank and in hand (a) RITREFHRE() 4,046,980 2,586,565
Less: Short-term bank deposits (b) R EERSRITIER(D) (1,236,143) (687,667)
Long-term bank deposits (c) REPRITIE(C) (30,000) -
Pledged bank deposits (d) EHRIRITEN(d) (27,206) (128)
Cash and cash equivalents HekReEED 2,753,631 1,898,770
(a)  Cash at bank and in hand was denominated in the following currencies: (a) MITREFRSATINEEE :
2020 2019
kol 3 3 ZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TT ARBETIT
RMB AREE 2,254,596 2,406,491
usD ET 204,035 112,143
HKD e 1,586,932 66,444
Others Hi 1,417 1,487

4,046,980 2,586,565

(b)  The weighted-average effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was 3.16% (b))  3{& B =12{8 B M EHIE T F R BB FI R &
(2019: 3.66%) with terms ranging from 3 months to 12 months. 3.16%(=Z—LF : 3.66%) °

(c)  The effective interest rate on long-term bank deposits was 3.65% withatermof 36 (¢) ~RHBERITIFNEIH KFIE 53.65% * HMR 4361
months. Ao

(d)  The bank deposits were pledged to banks as required in certain projects the Group ~ (d) EBHRZBELEEERIEHEHINESOER -

was tendering. Such pledged deposits will be released upon the closure of the I EREFREGRBIELERESEHINES LD
tendering. E|ERIE ARBR IR ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O B R AR

17 Subsidiaries

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2020:

17 Fa8

UWTAR-_Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HFEFRQ

7 :
Proportion of ordinary Proportion of  Proportion of ordinary
Place of incorporation Particularsof ~ shares directly held ~ ordinary shares held ~ shares held by non-
Name and kind of legal entity issued share capital hy parent (%) by the Group (%)  controlling interests (%)
HRBIEER HBLFEERS BEREREEY BERBEEE
1] ERERED TERERESHE BRTRFHE Ry ERELA ) EERUAA%) BRGEERLEAC)
Kingdee Software (Ching) Co., Lid. The PRC, limited iabilty Development, manufacturing and seling of RVIB530,000,000 10 10 -
(‘Kinggeg Ching') company software and hardware products and
provision of software-Telated senvics
inthe PRC
SRFHEERAR(2FRE) T8 AREALT AE BERHETERERE  ARER00000 1 1 -
i RRREEER R
o
Kingdee Internafional Software Hong Kong, limited iabiliy Sales of software products in Hong Kong JSD1,000,000 100 10 -
Group (H.K) Co., Lid. company
sHERFHEEERERAT  FF BRRALR PUERHE B 71,000,000 ] 10 -
Crotona Assets Limited BV, limited libility company ~ Marketing and promotion of software USDa0,000 10 10 -
products inthe BVI
Orotona Asses Limied ABEREE AREF UHERDAEE ZBEREE FET000 10 1 -

Kingdee Apusic Cloud Computing Co.Lid.
(Kingdee Apusic’) (Note (2)

MITRREHERAERAA
(TRAIRE])

Stanghai Kingdee Deeking Cloudcomputing
0, Ltd (*Shanghai Kingdee)

LaeREeEHEARAT
([HE2%)

Kingdee Degking Cloudcomputing Co,, Ltd
(‘Kinggeg Degking’)
SRR EHEARLR(2 5% 2))

Kingdee Vehicle Nework Technology Co,, Lt.
(Kingdee Vehicle")

f MEZIAER ] U
(e%E))

Al

The PRC, limited iabiliy
corporation
HE - RHERAF

The PRC, limited iabilty
company
hE BRETAT

The PRC, limited iabilty
company
hE BRELAT

The PRC, limited iabilty
company
hE BREFAT

Sales of software producs in the PRC RVB40,000,000
FHERHE T8 ARE40000000
Sales of software producs in the PRC RVB20,000,000
FHERHE T8 ARE20,000000
Sales of software product in the PRC RVB30,000,000
FHERHE T8 ARE50000000
Development of internet technology in the RVIB100,000,000
PR
ERERIRE 18 AR 100,000,000

T CTFFR

- Ll 60
- Ll 0
- 10 -
- 10 -
- 10 -
- 10 -
- % i
- % L
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO HmRMEE
17 Subsidiaries (Continued) 17 FLATF#E)
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2020: NTIRR_ZE_EF+_A=+—RBFEFR
(Continued) Al (8
Proportion of ordinary Proportion of  Proportion of ordinary
Place of incorporation Principal activities Paricularsof ~ sharesdirectlyheld  ordinary sharesheld ~ shares held by non-
Name and kind of legal entity and place of operation issued share capital by parent (%) by the Group (%)  controlling interests (%)
HRR IR HBARERRS BEREREEN BFRHNER
1] ERTRER TERBREENS ERTRFEE R ERELA %) BERUA%) BRGEERLEAC)
Guanyi The PRC, limited liabiliy Sales of software products in the PRC RMB10,000,000 - 91 9
company
g5 hE  BRETAT FHEREE T8 ARE10000000 - 9 9
Hunan Kingdeg Software Technology The PRC, limited liabiliy Sales of software products in the PRC RMB20,000,000 - 10 -
(o, Ltd company
HReRRLRITERAR hE - FRERAR RUERHE T8 ARE20,000000 - 1 -
Xiamen Kingdeg Sofware Co., Lid. The PRC, limited liabiliy Sales of software products in the PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100 -
company
ErieRaHARLR hE - FRERAR RUERHE HE ARE10000,000 - 1 -
Beijing Kingdeg Management Software The PRC, limited liabiliy Sales of software products in the PRC RMB20,000,000 - 10 -
Co. Ltd. (‘Beijing Kingdeg') company
IReFEERHARAR hE - FREEAR HUERHE T8 ARE20,000000 - ] -
(Ere%)
Shenzhen Kingdeg Internet Finance The PRC, limited liabiliy Online inancialintermediation Services in RMBE7.500,000 - o4 R
Service Co, Ltd company {he PRC
MIneREBELHRBERAT T8 BRRALT Grepmiig 4 ARG 500000 - b4 3%
Shanghai Kingdeg Internet Technology The PRC, limited liabiliy Sales of software products in the PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100 -
Co, Ltd company
PEeREREEARAR hE - FREEAR RUERHE T8 ARE10000000 - 1 -
Kingdee Cloud Technology Co., Lid. The PRC, limited liabiliy Sales of software products in the PRC RMBA0,000,000 - 100 -
company
SRENHERLA hE - FREFAR RUERHE TE ARES0000,000 - ] -
Guangzho Degking Small-Loan Co, Lid The PRC, limited liabiliy Provision of onling financial services inthe RMB200,000,000 - 100 -
company PRC
Eim&s | BESERAR hE - AREALT R EEiRRE - RE AR 200,000,000 - ] -

158 Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited  Annual Report 2020



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O B R AR

17 Subsidiaries (Continued)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2020:

17 F2F ()

UWTAR-_Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HFEFRQ

(Continued) Al (8)
Proportion of ordinary Proportion of  Proportion of ordinary
Place of incorporation Principal activities Particularsof ~ sharesdirectly held  ordinary sharesheld ~ shares held by non-
Name and kind of legal entity and place of operation issued share capital by parent (%) by the Group (%) ~ conirolling interests (%)
R IHER BBLFIEERT HEREREN BELHLER
1] EEEREN TERBRESHE BETRFHE RORBRLL (%) HERLGIC)  HRREERILEAC)

Shenzhen Kingdeg Jingdou Cloud Intermet
Technology Co., Lid. (Note (b))
MR EBERRER LA (HH)

Kingdee Credit Co,, Lt (Note ()
SREEARAT(HD)

Shenzhen Kingdeg Pay Technology Co., Lid.
(Nots (b))

RmEFLARRERAT
i)

Shenzhen Hong Jin Investment Co, Lid.
(Nots (b))
MImLeREERAT

Shenzhen Kingdeg Cloud Computing Co,, Ld.
(Nots (b))
MM SEEERARMH)

Shenzhen Cang Qiong Zhi Shang Investment
Co, Ltd. (Note (b))
MBS HRERRAAWED)

The PRC, limited iabilty
compny
hE - BREELF

The PRC, limited iabilty
company
hE  BRETAT

The PRC, limited iabilty
compny
hE - BREELT

The PRC, fimited iabilty
compny
hE - BREELF

The PRC, limited iabilty
compny
hE - BREELF

The PRC, limited iabilty
compeny
hE - BREELF

Sales of software products in the PRC

UHERHE  TE

Development and service of software in the
PRC

UERE - 8

Development of onling pay technology in
fhe PRC

B EXNERR MRS - #

vestment holding in the PRC

FERR  1E

Investment holding in the PR

RARR  HE

vestment holding in the PRC

RARR  ©H

RHIB12,000,000
ARE12000000
RIB50,000,000
ARES0000000
RIB100,000,000

ARE100000000

RIAB1,000,000
ARE1000000
RNB20,000,000
ARE0,000000
RIB150,000,000

ARE150000000

The directors of the Company considered that the non-controlling interests
in respect of the subsidiaries are not material to the Group, and therefore, no
summarised financial information of the relevant subsidiaries is presented

separately.

ARREERBRAEEFRRRIEG E#R
HEBMFANEK - Fit - HEFRBNE
TSEMBL AR EFTIR

T CTFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Ot B R AR M

17 Subsidiaries (Continued)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2020:

(Continued)
Note:
(a) Although the Group owns less than half of the equity interests in Kingdee

160 Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited

Tianyan Middleware, it is able to gain power over more than one half of the
voting rights by virtue of an agreement. Consequently, the Group consolidates
Kingdee Tianyan Middleware and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Beijing Kingdee
Middleware Software System Co., Ltd. and Shanghai Kingdee Middleware
Software Systems Co., Ltd.

The Group does not have legal ownership in the equity of these operating
companies. The Group has entered into several contractual arrangements with
them and their equity holders since their incorporation. These contractual
arrangements are irrevocable and enable the Group to:

- exercise effective financial and operational control over these operating
companies;

- exercise more than one half of the equity holders voting rights of these
operating companies;

- receive substantially all of the economic interest returns generated by
these operating companies in consideration for the business support;

- obtain an irrevocable and exclusive right to purchase the entire equity
interest in these operating companies from the equity holders;

- obtain a pledge over the entire equity interest of these operating
companies from their equity holders as collateral for all the payments
due to the Group and as security for performance of obligations under
the contractual arrangements.

As a result of such contractual arrangements, the Group has rights to variable
returns from its involvement with them and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over these operating companies (“VIEs") and is considered
to control them. Consequently, the Group regards them as controlled structured
entities in the consolidated financial statements.

Nevertheless, the contractual arrangements may not be as effective as direct
legal ownership in providing the Group with direct control over these VIEs and
uncertainties presented by the PRC legal system could impede the Group’s
beneficiary rights of the results, assets and liabilities of these VIES. The Group
believes that these contractual arrangements are in compliance with relevant
PRC laws and regulations and are legally binding and enforceable.

17
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O B R AR

18 Share capital and share premium

18 BRFEMEFRR

Number of shares Share capital ~ Share premium Total
BE®E BiPIEEE BFEE &t
(thousands) RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Tk AREFT ARETL AREFT
At1 January 2019 —Z-hEF-H—-A%H 3,300,185 79,585 2,903,459 2,983,044
Employee share option scheme BT 2
—Valug of employee services received -BIRKER - - 1,032 1,032
— Exercise of share options (Note 21) —17{E AR (P E21) 20505 452 53,732 54,184
Share award plan PGB
— Value of services received -R5ER - - 86,660 86,660
— Transfer shares to the awardees upon vesting  — A SR BB IR H B 4L E 5B A - - (81,787) (81,787)
At 31 December 2019 ZE-hAE+ZA=T+—HER 3,320,690 80,037 2,963,096 3,043,133
At1 January 2020 —Z_E5-F—-A%HR 3,320,690 80,037 2,963,096 3,043,133
Employee share option scheme BTk 2
~ Exercise of share options (Note 21) — 1T AR (21 12.628 323 36,329 36,652
Share award plan BGERE]
—Value of services received -RI5EE - - 100,857 100,857
—Transfer shares to the awardees uponvesting  — R B BB BRIHVEBLELERA - - (99,443) (99,443)
Dividend distrbution BRIHE - = (36,756) (36,756)
Issue of new shares (b) BITHRD) 133,280 2,971 2,088,431 2,091,402
At 31 December 2020 ZEEZFE+-A=t1+—HER 3,466,598 83,331 5,052,514 5,135,845
(@) The total authorised number of ordinary shares as at 31 December 2020 was (a) BEZZ-ZEF+-A=+—H1 " £%#17

4,000,000,000 (2019: 4,000,000,000) shares with a par value of HKD0.025
(2019: HKD0.025) per share. All issued shares were fully paid.

(b) In August 2020, a total of 133,280,000 new shares had been placed to certain (b)
third-party investors at a price of HK$17.82 per share, the net proceeds from
which were approximately RMB2,091,402,000.

T CTFFR

TESIH 38 IR 4R 28 /54,000,000,0000% (= F — L
4+ 4,000,000,000) % - AL EE0.025/8 7T (=
TNEF 0025870 - FAEDETRMHBE
B e

BE—Z-ZF)\A 1L A #£133,280,0000% %7
BREETBELE=THBIREE  FRER
RIT82E T WEINBR S FRETHRAR
#2,091,402,0007T °
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B B RR M
19 Other reserves 19 HMGEE
Merger Capital  Statutory surplus Property  Shares held for
resere reserve reservefund  revaluation share award plan  Translation  Other reserves Total
EERR EEL
AlEE  EFLE N Eff  HERRRR iR it &t
RMBO00 RIBO0D RIBO0D RHBOD RABO0D RMBO00 RIBO0D RVBO00
AREFL  ARETR NRETT  ARETR ARETTL  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Note (2) Nate (o) Note (c) Nate (d)
() R i F)
At1 January 2019 Z3-NE-R-RER 6570 253488 138,762 476,009 (371.480) 66,116 (4246) 565,259
Currency ransafon diferences IMENEER - - - - - . - 24
Transactons vith non-controlling SSHEIERNR A (TED)
inferests (Note 35) - - - - - - 4,762 64,782
Transter shares to e awardees BOECREIEG)
Upon vesting - - - - 5,207 - - 5,07
At 31 December 2019 “E-AE+ZR=1-B
] 6570 253488 138,762 476,009 (315213) 66,400 6053 686,532
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO HmRMET
19 Other reserves (Continued) 19 Hfh ks (1)
Merger Capital  Statutory surplus Property  Shares held for
resere reserve reservefund  revaluation share awardplan  Translation  Other reserves Total
EERR BT
AHER  ERLR N Eff  HERRRR iR it &t
RMBI00D RMBI0D RMBI0D RMBI000 RMBI000 RMBI00D RMBI000 RMBI000
ARETL  ARETR AREFR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Note (2) Note (o) Note (c) Nate (d)
FiE(a) HiE) itz R
At1 January 2020 ZEIEZE-A-ARR 6,570 253,488 138,762 476,049 (315,213) 66,400 60,536 686,532
Currency anslation diferences INEREEE - - - - - (24,631) - (24,631)
Transactions with non-controling inerests E5EERRI RIS
(Note 35) (FzE30) = = = = - 5,181 5,181
Transer shares o the awarcees upon \RERBRIEGRE
vesting KEA - - - 64,920 - - 64,020
At 31 December 2020 ZECZETCAET-H
i 6,570 253,488 138,762 476,049 (250,353 41,769 65,717 732,002
(a)  The merger reserve represented the difference between the carrying amounts () AHREEENBRARNHAAFTNESZBENE

of the capital of the subsidiaries at the date on which they were acquired by
the Company and the nominal amounts of the Company’s shares issued as
consideration for the acquisitions.

The capital reserve arose mainly from the reinvestment of dividends into the
PRC subsidiaries and capitalisation of reserves of certain subsidiaries.

The Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC are required to follow the laws and
regulations of the PRC and their articles of association. These subsidiaries are
required to allocate at least 10% of their net profits to the reserve fund until the
balance of such fund has reached 50% of their registered capital. The reserve
fund can only be used, upon approval by the shareholders’” meeting or similar
authorities, to offset accumulated losses or increase capital.

The shares held for share award plan were mainly from the ordinary shares of
the Company purchased by the Group in previous years under the share award
plan (Note 22(b)). The carrying amount of these shares held as at the year end
was presented as a deduction against equity.

T CTFFR

AEHEAARFBUBRTHRNEENZE
e

ERRNBEIZEEPEEAFRRNRFE
REMID FRARMFEEER

A B IR B A B R R TE R B AR R R
RERBENARERRMAE - thEhEME
RAAREFE BN PRI DI0%B AR
BES BEEZRBESEARSNEIME
ARHI50% - FHEESEERHERIBRAE
RUEIR AT R RET S IRSUIEMAER -

B B IR ENRN EERAAEER
BROEBFHEMEFRENARAEE
A (BiRE22(b)) © SFIRE 158 B LD OBR T
EERS| AEENGRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO HmRMEE
20 Retained earnings 20 FHEEE
RMB’000
AR®TT
At 1 January 2019 ®-Z—hF—A—H 1,917,757
Profit for the year FEAF 372,580
Dividend distribution EeilbaNi (33,074)
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE—hF+-BA=+—H 2,257,263
At 1 January 2020 N _E_ZEF—HA—H 2,257,263
Loss for the year FERE (335,479)
At 31 December 2020 R-EZEF+"A=+—H 1,921,784
21 Employee share-based arrangements 21 BIRG=RHE
(a) Share option scheme (a) FERRHERTE

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 11 July 2005 (the “2005 Option
Scheme”). At the general meeting of the Company convened on 8 May 2015,
the Company terminated the 2005 Option Scheme and adopted a new share
option scheme (the “2015 Option Scheme”) with the validity period of ten years,
under which the directors may, at their discretion, grant options to any qualifying
participants to subscribe for shares in the Company, subject to the terms and
conditions stipulated therein.

The vesting period of the share options granted is 4 years and the vesting schedule
is 25% after 12 months from the grant date, 25% after 24 months from the grant
date, 25% after 36 months from the grant date, and 25% after 48 months from the
grant date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SOt R RM
21 Employee share-based arrangements (Continued) 21 ATIBR{nRBEGE)
(a) Share option scheme (Continued) (a) FRBRIERTERIGE)
(i)  Movements in share options (i) FRExEEE
Movements in the number of shares under the options outstanding and their MARITER RSB R E A INEF1T
related weighted average exercise prices are as follows: FENEHIAT :
2005 Option Scheme 2015 Option Scheme
051 % 0158 ER
Average exercise  No. of shares under Average No. of shares ~ Total no. of shares
price the options exercise price  under the options  under the options
RETH
SRTHTER BRETORE SREYGHEE  BRETHES E#ast
HKD per share housands HKD per share housands fhousands
i Fit % Fit Fit
At1 January 2019 RZZ-n%-B-H 210 76,244 460 B 109,956
Exercised (Note 16) [Bibpidliral) 2 (13699) 460 (6812) (20505)
LapsedForfeted Bii/EhE 13 (17417) 460 (3410) (20827)
At31 December 2019 RZE-AE+ZAZ+-A 24 513 450 B40 68,624
Currently vested and exercisable as at 31 December 2019 W=B—AE+=R=+-REHETLTTE P 113 450 B4 68,624
At1 January 2020 NZB-25-A-A 24 45,134 4.60 23,490 68,624
Bercised Note 19) B (e 24 (7,988) 4,60 (4,640) (12,628)
LapsedForfeted B/ EhE 2.03 (13,299) 4.60 (1,750) (15,049)
At31 December 2020 RZBZSE+ZA=+-A 261 2,847 460 17,100 40,947
Currently vested and exercisable as at 31 December 2020 W=B=BE+=A=+-RABHFLEATE 261 28,87 460 17,100 b4

T CTFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO KM
21 Employee share-hased arrangements (Continued) 21 RBTIB{nRBEGE)
(a) Share option scheme (Continued) (a) FRBRMERTEIGE)
(ii)  Outstanding share options (i) FITEMRAERE
Details of the expiry dates, exercise prices and the respective number of shares RZEZEF+ZA=+—RARZZE—1F
under the options which remained outstanding as at 31 December 2020 and 31 TZA=+—H - mARITEABRED D H
December 2019 are as follows: A 1TEERSENEBFENAT
Number of shares under options
BB T AR S
Range of
Expiry date within exercise price 2020 2019
B3R BRI EEEE == —E-hEF
HKD per share thousands thousands
aEE gk T&t Tt
2020 3.11-4.25 - 7,721
2021 3.75-4.28 6,899 8,497
2023 1.31-1.34 7,218 16,072
2024 2.66 9,730 12,844
2025 4.60 17,100 23,490
40,947 68,624
Weighted average remaining BAR R T TR O BE AR AE 60 0
contractual life of options FEFIERE RIHIR
outstanding at end of period 3.09 3.62
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O B R AR

21

(b)

Employee share-based arrangements (Continued)
Share award plan

The board of directors adopted a share award plan (“2009 Plan”) on 25 March
2009 for the purpose of recognising and rewarding the contributions of the eligible
persons. The Group adopted a new share award plan on 4 December 2015 (“2015
Plan”) and the shares under 2009 Plan were transferred to 2015 Plan. The share
award plan is valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing from the
adoption date.

21 RIBH =)
(b) BEfRSERIEHE

ARREEFN_TTNFZA-+HARE
Rt ZEE & (G =22 h)) - ZRH
FEEERYEZHARE THRENER - &
ER =T —RF+= AR RAFD SmE
g8 =2—h))  HAE_FTTANENE
HEHE—T R -

No. of shares held for

the share award plan  No. of awarded shares Balance
BB EBERRE ROZRHANRTHE #t
thousands thousands thousands
Tt Tt Tt
At 1 January 2019 —Z-h¥-H-H 107,085 (79572) 21513
Awarded BEIRE - (19,178) (19.178)
Lapsed/Forfeited BXRE,/BlE - 4209 4209
At 31 December 2019 ZZE-AF+ZR=+-H 107,085 (94541) 12,544
Weighted average remaining contractual
life of the awarded shares outstanding 7R i8R 1715 A9 AR5 SR ED A DB S IR A
atend of period [RIEAR 143
At1 January 2020 ZZ2Z%-A-H 107,085 (94,541) 12,544
Awarded BT = (10,826) (10,826)
Lapsed/Forfeited BAY/ENE - 5,199 5,199
At 31 December 2020 225+ RA=1+-H 107,085 (100,168) 6,917
Weighted average remaining contractual BB AT AR SREN O INE LD FI 828
life of the awarded shares outstanding [RIEAR
atend of period 1.17

During the year ended 31 December 2020, 10,826,000 shares (2019: 19,178,000
shares) were awarded to certain directors, senior management and key employees
of the Company.

As at 31 December 2020, the expected retention rate was assessed to be 100%
(2019: 100%).

B2+ -_A=+—H QRFEZF"
SAREIRABMZL A B%10,826,000(=F
—JUEF + 19,178,000) A% 22 EHAR 15 ©

RZB-ZEF+-_RA=+—H  BFEIRHE
E53100% (= ZF— L5 - 100%)

CTOTHEFER cHERRUEEEERAR 167



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Ot B R AR M

21
(b)

(c)

168 Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited

Employee share-hased arrangements (Continued)
Share award plan (Continued)

The fair value of the awarded shares was calculated based on the market price of
the Company’s shares at the respective grant date. The expected dividends during
the vesting period have been taken into account when assessing the fair value of
these awarded shares.

The weighted average fair value of shares awarded during the year 31 December

2020 was HKD9.86 per share (equivalent to approximately RMB8.77 per share).

Details of the awarded shares awarded during 2020

21
(b)

R I3 =5k (i)
47 B8 My ) (40)
SRR 09 2 7 AL R R B AR

MHEEE - EHEERRD AR EER
BEERITREFFHNEMRE -

E-T-TFMRE AN ER IO TS
NRBER/ESREKIIT(HRERARESLT
JT)

B SERpEMEM

Number of awarded

Date of award shares awarded

Average fair
value per share

Vesting period

58 A 4 BRyEMHZRTFHE SRTFHLAREE TESHHY

(thousands) (HKS)

Tt 1

19 March 2020 10,058 9.11 30 April 2021 - 30 April 2024
—E-FEF=A+NA —E_—FNMA=+HE_SE_MFEMA=1H
26 August 2020 550 18.10 30 April 2021 - 30 April 2024
—E-TFNAZ+RH —E_—FMA=+HE_SE_MFEMA=1H
12 September 2020 218 23.60 30 April 2021 - 30 April 2024
—EZEFNA+TZAH —E_—FMA=+HE_SE_MFEMA=1H
Cash-settled share award plan (c) BREFHEMBRMERR

The board of directors adopted a cash-settled share award plan on 8 August 2018
(being the 25th anniversary of the Group) to recognise the contributions of the
eligible employees. Pursuant to the plan, the Group granted 7,104,000 cash-
settled share awards to the eligible employees. These awards will be vested to
whom remains hired by the Group as at 31 December 2020. RMB60,337,000 were
recognised in employee benefit expenses for the year ended 31 December 2020
(2019: RMB16,939,000) under the above plan.
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WRIRSEERERE) - BLBEEE TR _Z
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SOt R RM
22 Borrowings 22 f&®
2020 2019
—EEF —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AER#®TT AREETTT
Current P4 1]
Short-term borrowings, unsecured FEHERIRTTE R - EIKIE 120,000 169,625
Short-term borrowings, secured FEERERTTIERR - B - 30,000
120,000 199,625
At 31 December 2020, all the Group’s borrowings were repayable within 1 year and HEZZT-FTF+-A=+—8 SEHFFAEE

denominated in RMB.

The Group’s bank borrowings bear average interest rate of 4.67% (2019: 4.69%)

per annum.

The carrying amount of the current borrowings approximate their fair value, as the
impact of discounting using a current borrowing rate is not significant.

mi’JE1$WL5§ WIANREFHE -

RRERERERFREIROER @TK
tERHIRE(EEE A R EEED

AEENRTEFINERFOERFENER

467%(—ZF—N5F : 469%) °

/II @J
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Ot B R AR M

23

170 Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited

Deferred income tax

The analysis of deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities is as

follows:

23 BIEFRTSIR

BEPTSTREEMBEASRAEI T

2020 2019
k- Jod- -1 3 —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFTT

Deferred income tax assets: BIEFBSHEE
— Deferred income tax assets to be recovered —EBiB12{E A & U e ABRE AT IS R

after more than 12 months BE 28,954 31,094
— Deferred income tax assets to be recovered

within 12 months — 11218 A AU R M IREFT ISR E = 11,841 -
Total deferred tax assets BIEFRFIREESE 40,795 31,094
Set-off of deferred tax liabilities pursuant to set-off

provisions KR SE AR E IR TSR A (29,415) (31,094)
Net deferred tax assets BIEFRINEESRHE 11,380 -
Deferred income tax liabilities: BIEFBHAE
— Deferred income tax liability to be recovered after —iEBiB12{E A & U= AR E AT SR

more than 12 months B&E (171,810) (216,385)
— Deferred income tax liability to be recovered within 1

2 months —1E1218 A A B RIE ST B & (298) (1,788)
Total deferred tax liabilities BRIEFRBSRARSH (172,108) (218,173)
Set-off of deferred tax assets pursuant to set-off

provisions KR S AR S IR TSR A 29,415 31,094
Net deferred tax liabilities EBEFMRIRARSE (142,693) (187,079)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O B R AR

23 Deferred income tax (Continued)

23

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the year, without
taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction,

is as follows:

iR E P 1S 1R ()

B AENABOREZBARTE
F—ROBIE PR S B B T

Recognised in the

Recognised in the income statement
At 1 January 2019 income statement At 31 December 2019 (Note 31)  At31 December 2020
RZE-NF AZS-NE ERERTER R-B2E
—-R—B EBRRTER +ZA=+-H (Pit&e31) +ZA=+-H
RMB1000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RIB’000
AREFT NS ARBTT ARETT ARETT
Deferred income tax assels BRMEHEE
~ Impairment loss on financial assels ~ — SEAERERL 15,827 (1,203) 14,624 (1,999) 12,625
— Amortisation of computer software  — BASEN(F A 2246 (1218) 1,028 (567) 461
— Unrealised gains on intra-group
fransactions ~SERFRHRERNE - - - 11,380 11,380
— Deferred government grant — BB 9820 2682 12,502 878 13,380
- Lease liabilities -HE8E - 2940 2,940 9 2,949
21893 3,201 31,004 9,701 40,795
Deferred income tax liabilties ERFEHAR
— Deferred development costs —ERFAERA (83212) (4,081) (87,293) 46,411 (40,882)
~ Fair value surplus of infangible assets — & A EIL(E (3.983) 1897 (2,086) 1,788 (298)
— Fair value gains on investment
propertes ~REUNENABELE (119.966) (91 (125,880) (2,445) (128,325)
~ Right-of-use assels -FRREE - 2914) (2,914) Gl (2,603)
(207,163) (11,010) (218,173) 46,065 (172,108)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards to the extent
that the realisation of the related tax benefits through the future taxable profits is
probable. As at 31 December 2020, due to the fact that the directors are not certain
whether it is probable that future taxable profit would be available to the Group
within the validity period of the deductible tax losses, the Group did not recognise
deferred income tax assets of RMB176,763,000 (2019: RMB135,722,000) in
respect of tax losses amounting to RMB822,353,000 (2019: RMB644,121,000) in
certain Group’s subsidiaries, which can be carried forward to offset against future
taxable income, all of which will expire in 2021 to 2025, respectively.

T CTFFR

B 17 B AE S0 A H A B A MR B LA BT BRI RO
MR SR A RIBERENFZE - BZfE
RABEMATER  CEEERALETHER
BE BAR_Z-ZTF+-_A=+—HEHRE
SR RETE 2B Al fE1E R SR A B Sk 0 A AR
RES R HOEMFEFE - AEELREHER
AIHEANR RS 1R A R #5176,763,000 (= — 1
FHZA=+—8 : AR135,722,00070) H i
FE PSS EE A R #822,353,0007T (- E— SL4F
+ZA=+—H : AR¥644,121,0007T) - #&1E
TR T RFEMKRW -
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24 Trade and other payables

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Ot B R AR M

24 FEFTIRER R HALFE MR

2020 2019

—S2F ZE-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%TT AREETTT

Trade payables (a) and (b) JEIIR K (a)F(b) 24,503 15,393

Salary and staff welfare payables ENFHERE TR 243,427 218,556

Deposits payable B RES 130,372 133,611

Accrual for expenses TEIREA 114,307 73,015

Value-added tax (“VAT”) and other taxes payables JEFTIRER REMTE 54,136 71732

Construction payables (c) JERF T2 (C) 105,032 69,028

Unpaid consideration for investment in financial UAREBEFEARSESTAEEH

assets at fair value through profit or loss BaMerREERENRNHE 70,775 -

Government funds payable to project partners (d) FERRIE B BB ES() - 24,851

Unpaid business acquisition consideration AZTHRRIENE B HE - 8,175

Others Hi 52,051 70,263

794,603 684,624

Less: non-current portion (c) B IEREE () - (69,028)

Current portion mEhE 794,603 615,596
(@) The fair values of trade and other payables approximate their carrying () EERFEREMESRZzAREERLD

amounts. The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other payables are

mainly denominated in RMB.

172 Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O B R AR

24 Trade and other payables (Continued)

(b)

24 FEfHIRER B FoAth PR A Bk (49)

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the aging analysis of the trade payables (b) RZZTZZTF+ZA=+—80 ' &~5H
based on invoice date is as follows: ERRRBEZZEHNERR S TWO
T

2020 2019

—S2F ZE-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TTT AREETTT

0—180 days 0-180K% 20,493 9,100

181360 days 181-360K 1,005 669

Over 360 days HiB360K 3,005 5,624

24,503 15,393
It mainly represents the Group’s payables to the construction companies for () EEEAKEHERYISESFE_H
the construction costs incurred relating to Shenzhen Kingdee Software Park THEBHANELEEAMENEEAAN
Phase Il project. In November 2020, the Group renegotiated the payment RE - ZEZTF+—F - AEEHEE
terms with the construction vendors, and these payables will be settled in SEHERENHE T ARUEE - ZER

2021. BN _ZEZ—FNEE -

The Group entered into certain government development projects. () AEEC#ETHETBNERIER © R

According to the underlying contracts of these projects, the relevant
government departments transferred the project funds to the Group directly
and the Group was authorized to allocate the project funds to other third
parties involved in the projects as the Group’s partners.

BLIFAMNERER - HEABTEPIH
HEETHEEBRARE  YAAXE
B ERREES OGRS EERN
BB = ERNRENAERH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO KM
25 Deferred income 25 RIEUTA
2020 2019
- Jat 3 3 —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREETTT
Deferred government grants (a) ERIEETIE B #8h(a) 131,660 125,450
(@)  Movement of deferred government grants is as follows: () BB AHESNAT
2020 2019
—ECZF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREETTT
At 1 January »—A—A 125,450 102,081
Additions H#n 45,348 27,139
Recognised in the income statement RIBE KRR (39,138) (3,770)
At 31 December »+=-A=+—H 131,660 125,450

26

174

It represents cash received from government for financing various research
and development projects conducted by the Group. The cash received
will be recognised as income when the research and development costs
are amortised in expense and certain stipulated conditions required by
government are met (usually when the related development project is
completed).

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group’s revenue includes revenues from cloud services business and ERP
business. Revenue is stated net of applicable VAT in the PRC and comprises the

ZRBRRAAREE TG EIE R mIEHT &
HEVE © R o W FIR AR 70 R0 5 2 A AN
HMERNGTT AR BERERRNFRIEA

B STk iR) HERR AR RE et

26 HEERZHANESREENHKA

SENBABRERBEGARBEEREE
IS - WA HIBER T BIEER - K

following: ABREATEIE
2020 2019
ol St 3 —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TT ARBETIT
Cloud business R 1,912,385 1,313,595
- Enterprise cloud services —EERS 1,356,311 927,375
- Finance cloud services — IS E R 288,766 169,873
- Industry cloud services —1TEEZER 172,479 142,901
- Other cloud services —EMERSE 94,829 73,446
ERP business TEEREETEIERK 1,444,060 2,011,995
- Sales of software and hardware products —HETRHREHER 447,626 945,631
- Software implementation services —HHERERS 453,067 488,476

- Software solution consulting, maintenance, upgrade —BERTER - R EHE - AR

and other supporting services N EH AT IRIRTS 543,367 577,388
3,356,445 3,325,590

Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O B R AR

27 Expenses hy nature 21 HRHHSENER

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and marketing expenses, research and
development costs, administrative expenses and net impairment losses on financial

assets and contract assets are analysed as follows:

SURIRIHERAN ~ HEREEER - IR
ERA - TRERAREREENAREERE

BRFENNBEROITAT

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TTT ARETFIT
Research and development costs 75 S AR
Amounts incurred EXHeRE 882,559 650,499
Less: development costs capitalised W B b2 AR (314,119) (477,654)
Add: amortisation 0 BAME 2 FIEE A A 8 415,434 413,982
983,874 586,827
Employee benefit expenses (Note 29) B THe A s (P 3E29) 2,576,601 2177477
Less: amount included in development costs B BERAREERASENA 2 (812,913) (584,632)
1,763,688 1,592,845
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 6)  #7% (Ff15%6) 40,274 36,132
Less: amount included in development costs B BERREAAENAN 2 (5,558) (6,031)
34,716 30,101
Qutsourcing services INBARTSE 410,357 385,745
Sales promotion and advertising SHEHEERCAR 299,367 194,728
Cost of inventories consumed (Note 15) TEREF SRR (T 5E15) 172,904 150,363
Rental and utilities HeRIEEER 29,128 23,321
Traveling expenses EIRE 61,924 68,876
Office expenses PN~ 31,985 30,779
Other taxes and surcharges E A RS K 41,429 42,781
Impairment charge of goodwill (Note 8) PR MRER R (H7E8) 22,881 31,187
Training costs Bl 12,062 28,032
Professional service fees HEREEH 31,505 21,791
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENITE 27,043 24,611
Amortisation of trademarks, licenses and PO - I EEREE G (P FT8)
copyrights (Note 8) 7,043 8,571
Amortisation of computer software for own use (Note 8) £ FF 5 i & (4 #6 & (FfF 558) 3,083 2,550
Amortisation of customer relationship (Note 8) B P BEEE (H5E8) 5,229 5,230
Auditors’ remuneration I EREM B & 7,160 6,630
- Audit services —&FHART 3,630 3,400
- Non-audit services —IEEA R 3,530 3,230
Net impairment losses on financial assets and CHMEENEREERERXFE
contract assets 69,885 48,416
Others Hitb 24,623 34,570
Total st 4,039,886 3,317,954

T CTFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Ot B R AR M

28 Other income and (losses)/gains — net

28 HAR (B55i8) F1§ — B8

2020 2019
—S2F ZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TT AREETTT
Other income Htu A
VAT refund (a) BERIRE Q) 135,544 164,308
VAT input tax surplus deduction R EREIRB INET kR 8,462 3,422
Government subsidy income BT R A 7T 60,965 31,317
Rental income - net (Note 9) MU A —F5 (P9 73,129 73,243
Interest income from loan to related parties (Note 37(a)) ~ BAEsE 5 R Bk A (B 5E37(a)) 4,078 19,311
282,178 291,601
Other (losses)/gains HAt(B1R) FE
Realised and unrealised gains on financial assets at FVPL AR (BEF = B EE 8 ABa
(b) HEemEERERRERAER
Wz (b) 40,113 26,220
Fair value change of derivative financial instruments MTESBITANAREEEZS)

(Note 13) 4,540 -
Gains on disposal of associates (c) BEEEERRFIEC) 37,963 47,426
Net foreign exchange (losses)/gains SNEETE R B (182K),/FIB (95,297) 2,975
Others EAb (6,959) 7,935

(19,640) 84,556
262,538 376,157
(a)  According to the current tax regulations in the PRC, the development and sales (a) IREFEAREMBIRTHECER @ stE#

176 Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited

of computer software products are subject to VAT with an applicable rate of
16%. From 1 April 2019, according to the circular “2019 No. 39 Notice of
Ministry of Finance, the General Administration of Taxation and The General
Administration of Customs”, the applicable rate for software industry has been
changed from 16% to 13%.

In 2011, the State Council issued a circular regarding the “Taxation Policy for
Encouraging the Development of Software and Integrated Circuits Industry” (Guo
Fa [2011] No.4) (the “Circular”). Pursuant to the Circular, software enterprises
engaged in the sales of self-developed software in the PRC are entitled to VAT
refund to the extent that the effective VAT rate of the sales of the software in the
PRC exceeds 3% of the sales amounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O B R AR

28

29

(a)

Other income and (losses)/gains — net (Continued)

(b) It mainly represented investment return from wealth management products that
are measured at FVPL.

(c) It represented the disposal gain from disposal of the Group’s 2.22% interest in
an associate to a third party in 2020.

Employee benefit expenses

28 RAAR (BR) FI§ — BHGER)

() HEXBRFLALMEENEAREBIHA
R EERESHFBMA -

() HEIER-F-TENAEAEEERH
BRR 22203 T H= O SIS -

29 RMIFEFIBAZ

2020 2019
—s=®E T 0%
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARETTT

Wages, salaries and bonus TE 2R NES 2,157,590 1,778,679
Staff welfare BT 43,286 49 547
Pension scheme contributions (a) RIRETEIH K () 214,531 245,303
Share-based compensation ARR 17 AR B SREN T 21 161,194 103,948

2,576,601 2177477

Pensions - defined contribution plans

The Group participates in defined contribution retirement schemes organised
by the relevant local government authorities in the PRC. The Group is required
to make monthly contributions to the retirement schemes at rates ranging from
12% to 20%, depending on the location of the subsidiaries, based on the basic
salaries of eligible employees. The local government authorities are responsible
for the pension liabilities to retired employees. Forfeited contributions made by
the Group on behalf of employees who leave the scheme prior to full vesting of
the contributions cannot be used by the employer to reduce the existing level of
contributions.

(a) BH&-mEREFHD

AEEZ2EATEE BRI ERESRNE
BEHFERNGE - AEEBABKAEREER
BB AR B & B012% 2 20% (18 F B 2 Bl Z FrfE
HmE) RAKE A EIHK - EHBTHEAR
TRAZFERKREEX(EARE - AREREER
RAREEIS 2 B R AR st 8 MR Y ro i
R NS HEZ BIERIBERE HFUKE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Ot B R AR M

29 Employee benefit expenses (Continued) 29

(b)  Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for the year
include two (2019: two) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented under “Benefits and interests of directors and chief executive officer”
(Note 40). The emoluments payable to the remaining three (2019: three) individuals

T TR BASZ (i)
(b) EHREFMAL

AEEAEERUKSHHNALBIERLL(Z
F-NAF - MDOEF  ANFHEESFR
TTE AR E T s M4 s | (FTRE40) 2 VDT
B AEEXN=ZUAL(ZE—NEF : =f1)

during the year are as follows: BB T -
2020 2019
—S2F ZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TT AREETTT
Basic salaries, housing allowances, other allowances EXFHS - BERL - HabERAA
and benefits in kind EYH &= 6,204 5,276
Share-based compensation R B & A 5,605 5,479
Bonuses ®#e 3,209 3,009
Contribution to pension scheme RIRGT B 121 187
15,139 13,951
The emoluments fell within the following bands: LS FHBE TOESSEN
Number of individuals
A8
2020 2019
kol 3 3 ZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TT ARBETIT
Emolument bands (in HK dollar) M EE (BT E)
HKD4,500,001 - HKD5,000,000 HKD4,500,001 —HKD5,000,000 1 1
HKD5,000,001 - HKD5,500,000 HKD5,000,001 —HKD5,500,000 = -
HKD5,500,001 - HKD6,000,000 HKD5,500,001 —HKD6,000,000 1 2
HKD6,000,001 - HKD6,500,000 HKD6,000,001 —HKD6,500,000 1 -
3 3

During the financial year, no fee was paid or receivable by any of the said three
individuals as an inducement to join or upon join the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O B R AR

30 Finance income/(costs) — net

31

30 MABWA (HEE)-$H#H

2020 2019
—E2F ZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TTT AREETFIT
Finance income B
— Interest income —FBUA 48,789 19,768
Finance costs IR ID
— Interest on borrowings —fERFE (9,371) (11,379)
— Interest on lease liabilities —HEBENE (3,484) (3,019)
(12,855) (14,398)
35,934 5,370
Income tax (credit)/expense 31 FEKGhE) BA

Taxation on the PRC profits is calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the

year at the ates of taxation prevailing in the PRC.

ALEFEHERRBETEARANEANE
FEVABRERL % - 7844 (A REST BRI 2L
B EHTTEE A -

2020 2019
bt ol -3 3 ZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREETIT
Current income tax & HAFT1S TR
— Current tax on profits for the year — ZRERF R B PTIS AR 26,490 31,017
— Qver-provision in prior year — AR EBEER TR (11,768) (8,493)
Deferred income tax LR (55,766) 7,809
(41,044) 30,333
(@ No provision for profits tax in the Cayman Islands and Hong Kong has (@) HBERAEERZEEFERNTHERSK

been made as the Group has no assessable profits for the years in those

jurisdictions.

BREULBERTWMA » R ZFHEL
B S RAAER NPT STER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31

180 Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited

Income tax (credit)/expense (Continued)

(b)

In 2016, a tax law [2016] No.49 has been enacted that entity can register
for the National Important Software Enterprise (“NISE”) in tax bureau if
the entity complies with relevant requirements. Based on management's
assessment, it is highly probable that Kingdee China will meet those
requirements. Therefore, Kingdee China used a preferential corporate
income tax rate of 10% for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: 10%)
to calculate income tax. The application of preferential tax rate stated above
is subject to critical estimates of the management of the Group (Note 4.1(g)).

Kingdee Deeking was qualified as a High-tech Enterprise from December
2019 and was entitled to a preferential corporate income tax rate of 15% in
2020 (2019: 10%).

Kingdee Apusic was consistently qualified as a High-tech Enterprise from
December 2020 and was entitled to a preferential corporate income tax rate
of 15% in 2020 (2019: 15%).

Beijing Kingdee Management Software Co., Ltd. was consistently qualified
as High-tech Enterprise from December 2020 and were entitled to a
preferential corporate income tax rate of 15% in 2020 (2019: 15%).

Guanyi was consistently qualified as High-tech Enterprise from December
2019 and were entitled to a preferential corporate income tax rate of 15% in
2020 (2019: 15%, a preferential rate at half of the corporate income tax rate
for new software enterprises).

Shanghai Kingdee Deeking Cloud Computing Co., Ltd. was qualified as
High-tech Enterprise from 2019 to 2021 and was entitled to a preferential
corporate income tax rate of 15% in 2020 (2019: 15%).

Kingdee Vehicle was qualified as High-tech Enterprise from 2018 to 2021
and was entitled to a preferential corporate income tax rate of 15% in 2020
(2019: 15%).

31
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A G BRME
31 Income tax (credit)/expense (Continued) 31 FRRMGhE), A (8)
(d)  Other PRC subsidiaries of the Group applied the tax rate of 25%. () HPBEFREEMAB%HEEMERE
% o
The taxation on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the ANEFAERAMNBEER FstEMER
theoretical amount that would have arisen using the principal rate of the RERRBEREARLEIMBECEMBRE
PRC corporate income tax due to the following: ERERTEOREARTRE - LBHE2
BT
2020 2019
—S2F ZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TTT AREETFIT
(Loss)/profit before tax FrIR A1 (B51R),FIH (382,739) 396,131
Tax calculated at the statutory tax rate of 25% AT 2% T H TR
(2019: 25%) (ZZ— NG : 25%) (95,685) 99,033
Tax effects of: FE
Preferential tax rates Eﬁ@iﬁ‘—é 59,692 (70,095)

32

Tax losses for which no deferred income tax asset was

REERIELEASHEENTR I ER

recognised 49,292 41,538
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes NRHIBEE A 8,428 12,092
Utilisation of tax losses not recognised in previous years 45 fE AR FERR BV IR LT A8 R A AT K40

518 (2,809) -
Re-measurement of deferred tax due to a change in REREFEFNT2ELHEHRAE

applicable tax rate 4,869 —
Additional deductible allowance for research and g IR THEE A

development expenses (53,063) (43,742)
QOver-provision in prior year VAR E B RERT IR (11,768) (8,493)

(41,044) 30,333

Dividends 32 KR

2020 2019

—ECEF —E-NEF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT AREETTT

Proposed final dividend B F AR - 37,000
Included in the 2019 final dividends of RMB36,756,000 (RMB1.1 cents per share) B ZE - N FHHKES6,756,000T A K
(approximately HKD1.2 cents per share), RMB36,715,000 was paid in 2020, while BERIADARE) EN208TE8KR) - K

the remaining RMB101,000 was outstanding as at 31 December 2020.

36,715,000 CARBE_ZE-_ZTF XN > MH
101,000 ARBBEE-—T -_TF+ -8
=t—BARXH-
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33 (Losses)/earnings per share
33
(a) Basic
(a)
Basic (losses)/earnings per share is calculated by dividing the (loss)/profit
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year, excluding ordinary shares purchased and held for
share award plan.

Hk(BHR),a
BEXx

EAFGR(ER),WERESBRARRER
HEANER), T RAFABETLER
BRI E B E - BT RE/RD KR
HEIMEE AN EEK -

2020 2019
- ~Jal- - —E-NF
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of the Company  (E53R), FIERERELFEABEA
(RMB'000) (AR¥EF L) (335,479) 372,580
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue (thousands) ERTEEROMEFSH (T 3,315,661 3,233,638
Basic (losses)/earnings per share (RMB cents per share)  EASBR(B51R), BRI (TRARE D) (10.12) 152

(b) Diluted
(b)

Diluted (losses)/earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares. The Company has two categories of dilutive potential
ordinary shares: share options and share awards. For the share options and share
awards, the number of shares that could have been issued upon the exercise of all
dilutive share options and share awards less the number of shares that could have
been issued at fair value (determined as the average annual market price of the
Company'’s shares) for the same total proceeds is added to the denominator as the
number of ordinary shares issued for no consideration.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O B R AR

33 (Losses)/earnings per share (Continued)

(b)

Diluted (Continued)

As the Group incurred losses for year ended 31 December 2020, the dilutive
potential ordinary shares were not included in the calculation of diluted loss per
share as their inclusion would be anti-dilutive. Accordingly, diluted loss per share
for year ended 31 December 2020 was the same as basic loss per share of the
respective period.

33 SmERESIR),Wa (R
(b) WG

BHRASEEHEZE-_Z-_TF+=-_A=+—H
WFEEEERBE  AEFEENETTRRKRT
PREFEREREBNGTES  BAKES
BEARRBEED Bl  #EZT=FT
T A=+ HIEFENSREEEIERERE
HER BRERNEERAR -

2020 2019
k- Jank 3 —T-NF
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of the Company  (§518) FIHBERELAFERFEA
(RMB'000) (AREEFT) (335,479) 372,580
(Loss)/profit used to determine diluted earnings per  (E518) FIHALEERESKREE
share (RMB'000) (AR¥F7T) (335,479) 372,580
Weighted average number of ordinary shares inissue B R {TEBIREMEF®H(ARET L)
(thousands) 3,315,661 3,233,638
Adjustments for: R
— Share options (thousands) —BERBE(F&D - 55,771
— Share awards (thousands) — B BN 8 (FED) - 32,565
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for HEBEESRRSNEER - NEF98
diluted earnings per share (thousands) (F&h) 3,315,661 3321974
Diluted (losses)/earnings per share (RMB cents per share) ISR (B51R), R (ERARES) (10.12) 11.22
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34 Cash flow information

(a)

Cash generated from operations

3 BEEEMHHE

(a) EEELEMAS

2020 2019
-t -2 ZT-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR AREFT
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETSHAI(ER),/FIE (382,739) 396,131
Adjustments for: RABER :
— Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 6) — 1B - TRREENTE 0 34,716 30,101
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 7) ~FREEENONE () 21,043 24611
— Losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment -RETHE  IHRZGELESE 1,507 2,791
— Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 8) — B A (H58) 430,789 430333
~ Finance (income)/costs - net (Note 30) — B R AN B (PTE30) (35,934) (5,370)
— Share-based compensation (Note 29) —HERRES A (M3r29) 161,194 103,948
— Share of losses of associates (Note 10) —DEBEATRENBEBMEPE0) 3,320 33,026
— Fair value gains on investment properties (Note 9) —REMEA R BEZHUE (59 (5,550) (39,994)
— Fair value gains on derivative financial instruments (Note 13) —TESBTANDABEREGHI) (4,540) -
— Realised and unrealised gains on financial assets at FVPL (Note 28)  —MA AL BEI B AEE A ABHENER
BER BRI RABEYE (3128) (40,113) (26,220)
— Interest income from loan to related parties (Note 28) — BB 7 R SR B (P 3E28) (4,078) (19.311)
— Impairment charge of goodwill (Note 8) — BB RAENHR () 22,881 31,187
— Net impairment losses on financial assets and contract assets - eREENAREERBRLFE 69,885 48416
— Gains on disposal of associates (Note 28) - REBE ARG () (37,963) (47,426)
240,418 962,223
Changes in working capital (excluding loans to third parties fromthe 2B & EH (R &/ BEEEBRAEZHER
micro-credit business): FFRERL) -
~Inventories -5 (11,565) 1079
~Trade and other receivables — FEUR R R E A PR (15,644) (39,126)
— Contract assets and contract obtaining costs ~AREERARDSHA (25,735) (17,690)
— Contract liabilities -&FAAE 486,947 150,241
— Deferred income —RITRA 6,210 23,369
~Trade and other payables —EIRFREMENR (76,284) 12,855
Cash generated from operations excluding net cash outflow inloansto  \S L ELKPAE (T &/ \EEEEBRAE=HE
third parties from the micro-credit business THEFRERL) 604,347 1,092,951
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34 Cash flow information (Continued)

(a)

(b)

34 BEELENR SR
Cash generated from operations (Continued)
(a) WEEEMRE(E)
In the consolidated cash flow statement, proceeds from disposal of property, plant
and equipment comprise: ERERERA @ HETHE - TRERED
FrS s atE
2020 2019
—E2F ZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TTT AREETFIT
Net book amount (Note 6) R T F KA (FT716) 1,802 8,855
Losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment HERHE - THEZENER (1,507) (2,791)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment  HE&ETEE « TR &R EEIFTSR 295 6,064

Non-cash transactions

There were no significant non-cash investing and financing activities except for
the additions to the right-of-use asset of leasing of office and transferring form
investment properties of RMB72,626,000 in 2020 (2019: RMB32,158,000) (Note

7).

Net cash reconciliation

This section sets out an analysis of net cash and the movements in net cash for

gach of the periods presented.

(b) HFREXH
BR-Z_TFEMBAEEHEARRE LY
FEHNEMAEEEARKT2,626,000T(ZF
—NEF - ARHKES2,158,0007T) 50 - SEEARHIE
ReRmE RS (D) -

(c) BHEEMAME

RERELF 8 BB A PSR B F IR 2 B D AT

Net cash 2020 2019
ReBH ol Jemd- 3 ZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT AREFTT

Borrowings &3 (120,000) (199,625)
Lease liabilities HEAaE (51,032) (41,623)
Less: cash and cash equivalents BB RIBeEEY 2,753,631 1,898,770
Net cash R FRE 2,582,599 1,657,522
Gross debt — fixed interest rates B AR RE — & F % (51,032) (155,623)
Gross debt — variable interest rates EISARE — B FI (120,000) (85,625)
Less: cash and cash equivalents B ReRIREEED 2,753,631 1,898,770
Net cash & F5 2,582,599 1,657,522
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34 Cash flow information (Continued)

(¢) Net cash reconciliation (Continued)

34 BEEEHRS R

(c) BELEEGEE
(ther assets Liabilities from financing activities
HthEE HEEPNEE
Borrowing due
Cash within 1 year Leases Total
Bé —FREEHER - &3t
RMB000 RMB1000 RMB000 RMB1000
AEETT ARBTTI ARBTTL ARBTI
Netcash asat1January 2019 RZB—-AE—F—H$HE 1,452,848 (301,125) (31,214) 1120509
Cash flows Reneg 402,94 101,500 2312 566,736
Acquisition - leases WiE-HE - - (32,721) (32.721)
Foreign exchange adjustments ExiER 2998 - - 29%
Net cash as at 31 December 2019 R=ZB—-AE+-A=+—-HFHE 1898770 (199,625) (41,623) 1657522
Other assets Liabilities from financing activities
Rt EE MEIDNAR
Borrowing due
Cash within 1 year Leases Total
¢ —EREHER e it
RIB’000 RIMB’000 RIMB’000 RIMB’000
N v ARRTT N v ARBTT
Netcashasat1January 2020 W=B=B%—A—H
e 1,898,770 (199,625) (41,629) 1,657,522
Cash flows RemE 948,082 19,625 50,332 1,078,039
Acquisition - eases Wi -HE - - (59,741) (59,741)
Foreign exchange adjustments EXFE (93,221) - - (93,221)
Net cash as at 31 December 2020 W-Z_ZF+-B=+—-H3HE 2,753,631 (120,000) (51,082) 2,562,599

186 Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2020



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O B R AR

35 Transactions with non-controlling interests

(a)

Disposal of interest in a subsidiary without loss of control in 2020

In September 2020, the Group’s disposed of 20% equity interest in a wholly-
owned subsidiary, £ ERBEERF(RINER A (the “©HRIEE")
at a cash consideration of RMB10,000,000, to a limited partnership. After the
disposal, the Group’s equity interest in <& %% 22 4% = was decreased from 100% to
80%. The effect of changes in the ownership interest of <& 4% 22 4% == on the equity
attributable to owners of the Company during the year is summarised as follows:

35 HIFEFEEINTS

R B EFARAEFARBEETLF
E#a

(a)

“ECTHEAR AEBEETEE TR
BEEEREFIDERA Tﬁﬁﬁmﬁiﬁm
20% M4 - R RERARKE0,000,0007T » R
ST R—RERABLE - HER  AKE
REEHREBRZHBREHT00%HK D =80%  F
N SRERBRENAERERESH AR
B ARG ERRIT

2020

B2

RMB’000

AR®TT

Consideration receivable for the 20% equity interest B 20% i o FE A (& 10,000
Carrying amount of non-controlling interests being disposed of JEERERMIREEE (10,000)

Gains on disposal recognised within equity

RSP ERLENG =

In November 2020, the Group further disposed of 8% equity interest in & # 22
#&5E at a cash consideration of RMB4,000,000, to an independent third party.
After the disposal, the Group’s equity interest in <& 2 Z2 1% Z=was decreased from
80% to 72%. The effect of changes in the ownership interest of & #5224 Eon

—ToTEST R AREMREREARE
4,000,000 MBS =77 HE S RRIETZHI8%
Bt - HER  ARERESRERZHBEH
B0%IR D ET2% © AF R RFIRENFTA HEHE

the equity attributable to owners of the Company during the year is summarised as HEBEHANREA ARG ERNFZERR
follows: T
2020
bl Jomd- 3. 3
RMB’000
AR#®TT
Consideration received for the 8% equity interest = 8% i e ER A ET (B 4,000
Carrying amount of non-controlling interests being deemed disposed of JEERERMIREEE (3,982)
Gains on disposal recognised within equity R PR L ENF 18
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35 Transactions with non-controlling interests

(b)

(c)

188 Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited

(Continued)

Disposal of interest in a subsidiary without loss of control in 2020

In November 2020, ERMAE L BRI AR AT (the “TREEH"), a
subsidiary of the Group, received a capital injection of RMB7,500,000 from a
limited partnership. The Group’s equity interest in Kingdee Internet Finance was
diluted from 51.0% to 40.8% after the above capital injection and the Group
continues to retain control over fXA< G X as the Group still has more than 50%
of its voting rights. The effect of changes in the ownership interest of X A% & Bk
on the equity attributable to owners of the Company during the year is summarised
as follows:

35 EIFFREFEINEREZS ()

(b)

A _ECEFARAEFEMEREFARE
=

R-ZB-ZE+—F  AEENMHBEARER
MEEBMEERAR(MEEB DR —RE
RAaBLEESIEAREKT500,0007T < bt
TER - AEENRELBAARAER.0%H
BZE40.8% - AR ANEEDEBBB0%MNIRE
B Rt AEEAEERE MR BB ES
o FN - MEEBNMARESESHHEAR
AR ARG FEREDT

2020

bt ol -3 3

RMB’000

AR®TT

Capital injection from non-controlling interests for the 10.2% BEE10.2% M 2 BN FEHE Il

equity interest IR 7,500
Carrying amount of non-controlling interests being deemed disposed of W B M IEE R S IR E (B (A (2,337)

Gains on disposal recognised within equity i e PR H E TS 5,163

Disposal of interest in a subsidiary without loss of control in 2019

In January 2019, the Group’s disposed of 20% equity interest in a wholly-owned
subsidiary, Kingdee Internet Finance Co. Ltd. (the “Kingdee Internet Finance”) at a
cash consideration of RMB10,000,000, to a limited partnership. After the disposal,
the Group’s equity interest in Kingdee Internet Finance was decreased from 100%
to 80%. The effect of changes in the ownership interest of Kingdee Internet Finance
on the equity attributable to owners of the Company during the year is summarised
as follows:

(c)

R _E-NFAREEFARBEEFLF
e

“E-NF-A AEEREE TSR
EM@AeRERATUATHB ¢ KEHES
7t 1)20% ) A A PA A ER #510,000,0007 3R & 44 & HH
ER—FKABLE - HER  AEEESKRE
s A8 AR R FR100% % ZE80% © & ¥k B Bk
TRMB RN LHZFERBR AR
BERDNTZERENT

2019

—EFNEF

RMB’000

ARBETIT

Consideration receivable for the 20% equity interest i 20% i o JE UL A $TE 10,000
Carrying amount of non-controlling interests being disposed of JHERERMIREEE (6,479)
Gains on disposal recognised within equity R HERLENF 3,521
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35

(c)

36

Transactions with non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Disposal of interest in a subsidiary without loss of control in 2019
(Continued)

In November 2019, Kingdee Internet received a capital injection of
RMB100,000,000 from an independent third party. The Group’s equity interest
in Kingdee Internet Finance was diluted from 80% to 64% after the above capital
injection and the Group continues to retain control over Kingdee Internet Finance as
the Group still has more than 50% of its voting rights. The effect of changes in the
ownership interest of Kingdee Internet Finance on the equity attributable to owners
of the Company during the year is summarised as follows:

35 EIFEFHMERANIH (IR

(c) R-B—AFARXEZHEBEETFAFIE
= (1)

—E-NFT-A ERERBSRESEY
FE=7F& AR®100,000,0007T /£ Fit)x &
% AEEESREBAEDSEABER0%H
BE64% AREDREHSREBESRN
2 - BABB0%HIREE - R TR
TRAMBEERNELHZFERBR AR
BERDNTZERGENT

2019

—E-NEF

RMB’000

ARETT

Deemed consideration received for the 16% equity interest S 16% R o ER Y £ (& 64,000
Carrying amount of non-controlling interests being disposed of JEERERMIRAEE (2,739)
Gains on disposal recognised within equity el PR EERE 61,261

Non-cancellable operating leases commitments

The investment properties are leased to tenants under operating leases with rentals
payable monthly. For details of the leasing arrangements, refer to Note 9.

36 g%ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ —SKEREBAEH

REMMENREHESALEAEST H2
WA - BRMAERNFE - F2HME

9 °

2020 2019
fnd- et 3 3 —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#®TT AREETFIT

Minimum lease payments receivable on leases of WEMERNHREERES

investment properties are as follows: AN

Within 1 year TEBE—F 45,177 72,821
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years BA—FETHART 71,331 89,261
116,508 162,082

The Group leases various offices under non-cancellable operating leases expiring
within 1 months to 5 years. The leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and
renewal rights. Upon renewal, the terms of the leases are renegotiated.

AEBUTARENEEHETALESRE
B REHERVERANEFEE - BOAD
RIAVIETR ~ FHARIGRANAE 2 - BHR - 7L
A EIAHA -

CTOTEFR cHERSAFEEERAT 189



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO KM
37 Related party transactions 37 RELXS
Mr. Xu Shao Chun, who owned 20.30% of the Company’s shares as at 31 BEZZ-ZEF+A=+—8  ®IEHEEE
December 2020, is the Company’s single largest shareholder. A ALE2030%MEE - BRABIMNE —&
KIGER o

(a) Transactions with related parties

(a) HEREHFXHEH

Save as disclosed in employee share-based arrangements (Note 21) and directors’ BEZZ-ZF+A=1T—8 KR T&HH
emoluments (Note 40) in the consolidated financial statements, the Group had BRERZEIRODZHMF2NREERER
transactions with related parties for the year ended 31 December 2020 as follows: EEEMS (4050 REBEMEEERS
PR
2020 2019
—E_Z —T—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARET T

Sales of products EmiEE
— Associates — B 12,191 15,292
— Companies controlled by Mr. Xu Shao Chun —HRLELEMESINEEE 1,441 2,416
13,632 17,708
Sales of services BR7%3H &
— Associates — Bt 11,054 9,461
— Companies controlled by Mr. Xu Shao Chun —HRLELEMESIAEEE 638 620
11,692 10,081
Rental income iEE A ON
— Associates ik 1,766 1,910
— Companies controlled by Mr. Xu Shao Chun — AR HELREMEH A EE 11,304 15,282
13,070 17,192
Interest income FIBWA
— Associates — B 4,078 16,422
— Companies controlled by Mr. Xu Shao Chun —HBLELREAES N EE - 2,889
4,078 19,311
Products and services are sold based on terms agreed with the counterparties EmMBREAEESRBEREIFIHFAELETE
in the ordinary course of business, and the rental rates and interest rates are HBIEREEAMETEITE - HEMFE 42

determined in the same way.

VAR E 7 AV RERE A ©
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37 Related party transactions (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Purchases of products and services

37 RMEHXEZ (&)
(h) WREEHWE

2020 2019
—E_Zf —ZT-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#TT ARETT
Purchases of products EmiEE
— Associates —HtE 7,897 10,892
— Companies controlled by Mr. Xu Shao Chun —HRLFELEMESINEEE 561 998
8,458 11,890
Purchases of services fRISER
— Associates — Bt 44,499 26,067
— Companies controlled by Mr. Xu Shao Chun —HBRLFESLEMESINEEE - 219
44,499 26,286
Products and services purchased from associates and companies controlled by BRI & AR MBR D ELEME
Mr. Xu Shao Chun are carried out on terms agreed with the counterparties in the BIMEREEN  WIRREAEERBRETY
ordinary course of business. 75 P8 TE B ETT ©

Balances with related parties

(c) EHRMERXHEEMFRER

2020 2019
- Jamt- 3 3 ZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFIT
Receivables from related parties (Note 14) FEUR B & 7 R IE (P RE14)
— Associates —BtE A 11,251 12,047
— Companies controlled by Mr. Xu Shao Chun —BIRDELEESIR L 6,034 3,262
17,285 15,309
Payable to related parties recorded in SB[ A R aE] PR E RIS
“Contract liabilities” KA
— Associates iG] 1,352 719
Payable to related parties recorded in FOBRAE [ FEST IR 51 AR A FE < B RS
“Trade payables” KA
— Associates /NG| - 132
— Companies controlled by Mr. Xu Shao Chun —HROFELEMESIA TS - 8
- 140

T CTFFR
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37 Related party transactions (Continued)

(d) Key management compensation

Key management comprise the Company’s directors and senior management. The
compensation paid or payable to key management for employee services is shown

below.

37 BMEREH ()

() FRETEARMS

MBS

BREBASBEARNEENGNERAS -
FRAREEA S NERRBRBENC N RE

2020 2019
—S2F ZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%TT AREETTT
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits FeREMEHES R 18,553 16,413
Share-based payments LARRAD BERER XS 17,435 19,634

35,988 36,047
(e) Loans to related parties (e) HMFREFHER
2020 2019
fnd- Jat 3 3 ZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%TT AREETIT

Loans to companies controlled by Mr. Xu Shao  #§ PR HFLEREHMERER
Chun
At 1 January R—A—H - 104,979
Repayments received from ultimate controlling party WL BESLEMES N EBREN
% - (104,979)
At 31 December W+=—A=+—8 - -
Loans to an associate KPHELESER
At1 January mn—HA—H - 616,534
Loans advanced during the year FREDHER 470,000 300,000
Share of losses of an associate in excess of B D ERBRREE
investment cost - 2,518

Repayments received from related parties R 5K (470,000) (919,052)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H - -
Total loans to related parties HwFRESERESRT = -
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SO R R M
38 Statement of financial position and reserve movement 38 ZFATRIMBKARREHEE
of the Company
As at 31 December
»+=-B=+—H
2020 2019
—EEF —E-NF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
ihEEs AR®TT —ET-NE
Assets gE
Non-current assets EREHEE
Financial assets at fair value through AR EETEAEZEHTA
profit or loss BENeMERE 476,189 254,491
Interests in subsidiaries BT RFIRE 3,369,743 2,607,529
3,845,932 2,862,020
Current assets mEEE
Other receivables H b EUGR 39,176 39,133
Derivative financial instruments TEEmI A 4,069 -
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEEY 1,257,024 142,776
1,300,269 181,909
Total assets HEE 5,146,201 3,043,929
Liabilities afE
Non-current liabilities ERBDAERE
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEfS TR A 315,595 304,219
Current liabilities mEAE
Other payables E At fERT R 68,683 60
Total liabilities b =R 384,278 304,279
Net assets BEE 4,761,923 2,739,650
Equity R
Share capital f& A 83,331 80,037
Share premium PEA R (B 5,052,514 2,963,096
Other reserves s (a) (254,958) (319,878)
(Accumulated loss)/retained earnings Bl (a) (118,964) 16,395
Total equity HEs 4,761,923 2,739,650

ARBNMBERARCHEFER T - —F

The statement of financial position of the Company was approved by the Board of

Directors on 24 March 2021 and was signed on its behalf. ZAZTHA#E  UREEFERE -

Xu Shaochan Lin Bo
#®OF L2, 4
Director Director

EE EE
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38 Statement of financial position and reserve movement

(a)

39

194 Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited

of the Company (Continued)

Reserve movement of the Company

(a)

4 ) G R S E

38 FLTFRIA KR B o 08 R 5 ()

Retained earnings/

(accumulated loss)/ Other reserves
BERE
(RHE5IR) s
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREEFIT
At1 January 2019 —E—hE—H—H 42,340 (376,085)
Profit for the year FEEF 7,129 -
Transfers shares to the awardees upon vesting REBRIGIROBELEREA - 56,207
Dividend distribution R&FI5 e (33,074) -
At 31 December 2019 —Z—-hE+=-A=+—H 16,395 (319,878)
At 1 January 2020 —E-®5—H—H 16,395 (319,878)
Loss for the year FEBHE (135,359) -
Transfers shares to the awardees upon vesting REBRIGIROEBELEREA - 64,920
Dividend distribution A% ) 53 i = -
At 31 December 2020 —E-E¥+=-A=+—H (118,964) (254,958)
Bﬁpefits and interests of directors and chief executive 39 EFRITHEZEMFSNER
otticer
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive is set out below: BRIES RITHAENFMAOT
For the year ended 31 December 2020: HE_Z-_ZTF+-_A=+—HILFE:
Employer’s
contribution
Allowances  toa retirement
Discretionary  and benefits henefit
Fees Salaries bonuses inkind (a)(i) scheme Total
H AT EHRT
B RE by U}
Name it ] g i mfEks {R{E(a)(i) I ETE A 3t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RIMB’000 RIMB’000
AEBTT ARBTT AR®TRT AE®TT AR®TR  AR®TR
Chainman E74
Mr. Xu Shao Chun BROBERE 150 3,354 1,768 7170 45 12,487
Executive diectors HOEE
Mr. LinBo R EE 150 1,686 888 4,660 45 1429
Non-executive directors HHTEE
Ms. Dong Ming Zu ERKTL 150 - - - - 150
Mr. Shen Yuan Ching (a) (i) BT 52 A o)) - - - - - -
Mr. Znou Bo Wen (a) (i) AT ) i) 178 - - - - 178
Independent non-executive diectors BUHHTEE
Mr. Gary Clark Biddle Gary Clark Biddles & 249 - - - - 249
Mr. Liu Chia-Yung ARERE 178 - - - - 178
M. Cao Yang Feng Bz 178 - - - - 178
Total AFt 1,233 5,040 2,656 11,830 90 20,849
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39 Benefits and interests of directors and chief executive 39 EFRITEEZHFISNES ()

officer (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019: HE_Z-NF+A=+—HLFE:
Employer's
contribution
Allowances to aretirement
Discretionary and bengfits bengfit
Fees Salaries bonuses inkind (a)(i) scheme Total
HigH BIER
MRS TEl
Name i34 i e ke L) BEER E5)
RMB1000 RMB1000 RMB1000 RMB1000 RMB1000 RMB1000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETT ARETT ARETR  ARETR
Chaiman IE
Mr. Xu Shao Chun BROBERE 150 2,646 1,783 8,966 5 13,598
Executive diectors HITEE
Mr. LinBo R EE 150 1,386 % 5174 5 7559
Non-executive directors HATEE
M. Dong Ming Zhw BT 150 - - 5 - 1%
Mir. Shen Yuan Ching BLERE 176 - - - - 176
Indkgpencin non-executive diectors BUHHTEE
Mr. Gary Clark Biddle Gary Clark Biddlest & 146 - - 5 - 251
Mr. Liu Chia-Yung ARELE 176 - - 5 - 181
Mr. Cao Yang Feng Efpsz 176 - - - - 176
Total At 1,224 4032 2519 14,15 106 22,0%
(a)  Directors’ emoluments () E=FHH
(i) Includes share options and share award plan, estimated monetary (i) BREBREMKRERETE - RER
value was based on the annual charge of the share-based payment in BR BTSSR R SE258 - (hET ST
accordance with IFRS 2. BERUREAEMOINANFESE
}EH °
(i) Mr. Shen Yuan Ching resigned as a non-executive director of the (i) HBITBEEXER-T=-_TF=RA+N\AH
Company on 18 March 2020 and Mr. Zhou Bo Wen was appointed as a BEARABIERMITESHA - AAEXE
non-executive director of the Company on the same day. AREBHEERARIERITES -
(b)  Directors’ termination benefits (b) EFAKIEREF

None of the directors received or will receive any termination benefits for the
year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

HE-_ZT—NFR-_FT-_ZTF+-_A=+-—
HIEFE  RBEGETIEEESRETME
EBFREILEF -
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39 Benefits and interests of directors and chief executive
officer (Continued)

©)
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Inducement to join the Company

During the financial year, no amount was paid or receivable by any Directors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Company.

Waiver

During the financial year, no Director had waived or agreed to waive any of his/
her emoluments.

Consideration provided to third parties for making available directors’ services

For the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group did not pay
consideration to any third parties for making available directors’ services.

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities with such directors

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, there are no loans, quasi-loans and other
dealing arrangements in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors.

Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements or contracts

The Group's transactions with the companies controlled by Mr. Xu Shao Chun,
the chairman and executive director of the Company, are set out in Note 37.

Save for the afore mentioned transactions, no significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

Annual Report 2020

39 EFRITHRARMHT RMED (H)

AT A A

EZMBRFEN - 8RB E([EEZTREM
ERRBEERMA LR B MARA B EFH
A o

i)

EZVRFERN  BAEEENELREME
EATAAHB -

MIRHEERS RS =T RENEE

HE_Z-—hFE_ZT_TF+_A=+—
HIEFE  SER2BRREEFREMAE
fA] 88 = IR LA (B -

MEBEREE HEZZHEARREN
MEEEERBNEROER  EEHME
XA

BHEZZ - NFR-_T-ZTF+=-A=+—
BUHEEE  TEEEREE  HESEHY
FEABENAREEEFHEBOEENER
EEFMEMZ S o

BEEERS  RHHANTHEA R
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